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INTAIN STABILITY

1O SEEK PROGRESS
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2021 was a year of steady progress for Guotai Junan International. Under the leadership of the parent
company, facing the extremely challenging market environment, we maintained a strong strategic
focus, firmly adhered to strengthen risk management and compliance, and demonstrated strong wealth
management transformation results, delivering a performance at the forefront of the industry.

In the future, we will continue to put priority to stability and act steadily to achieve long-term goals,
strengthen the concept of “Serving the Country with Finance” and the sentiment of “Financing for
Good” . Based on the strategy of “Rooting in Hong Kong, Relying on the motherland, and Serving the
world”, we will build into a “Well Respected, Comprehensively Leading and Internationally Competitive”
financial service provider.
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WA (FETT) 3,966,415 4,872,952 (18.6%)
-AekBREA 1,626,079 1,663,672 4.0%
- A BWA 2,280,539 2,652,075 (14.0%)
- R RIBEFRA 59,797 657,205 (90.9%)
TR R EG S (TET) 1,094,743 1,562,587 (29.9%)
&8 (FHET) 576,259 815,270 (29.3%)
IR Bt =& 53% 52% REERVE
A% 3R # 25 51 3§ % (ROE) 7.2% 11.8%  (4.61EE D)
s8R
BRRERZF CGBAL) 11.4 16.9 (32.5%)
GREERT OBI) 11.4 16.8 (32.1%)
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B AR
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R (FET) 15,307,361 15,118,119 1.3%
EEITRHEAE 9,618,994,707 9,617,228,644 -
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NESRBROIRE AR R ZE S (A0 R 81 ]) ] T 58 118,487,400 {7) 5 & »

LN

@ 57% #esms

2% RHRJERI

BERAER
WAEEIFRIELH S

+ B19,617,228,644(% B 3 1T

15.64

14.19 .
| '

16.26

20194 20204 20214

PMEEED A
WAEEIFRIELH S

O 41% apEe5n

T 18.29

14.49

.
11.42
.

20194 20204 20214



L ONSER L€

HBZ12A31BLEE T8

4,878,400
4,250,171

0 l 3,971,694

20195 20209 2021%F

RTEFNERRBN

M128318 FHET
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BEENITEENTE  HLEEHBERTEHRANKBRANRBMRRE NNEEAMS 20215 EY
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FA AEEEREAEESARBERERESFHELN(ERERBRITHEERERPMITETR) » BHR
mRBREMCRELEMER T ESROLERR - REF=J7FMH AEERELTHASREREREENE
BRERIEERRBRESIEIER XHETE  ARERFADKESGERREZMACEEEBRIER)MER
Rt EaE NE-—PZERALZAAREERS - AKX AKRERKBBEHNFE =T RAFRAEEY
BEFRIRERH L ANESGRI M E - AT ARBEF LREFHESGRAR -
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31H - RALSREEBHEETRREO0EET - ARBLRNEREEARE - RFARRBER
"R2020%F & 1 B 37§17 35 AR 1 48 1 1 18 38 ) B0UA I (4R TR 2021 4 [ B 0 K8 [ 8% 7L S AR MR 49 8 1 18
H2I8 -

Jﬂl
o

a3

(NTERER | mBEHFEEERRES K
FR AEBESRIAERNMERER (RFERBREE) (ZHHEAT) (THE) (THHE
R (B ERERRRERS) ARMAETE AL ALY S - U RATEREYEERE -
By REBRE AETRSERERZED RN TRESG ARER REEWHESLEGAT
BAEGTAREEES TN -



BEREZEZER | 20215% 017

= EERE

2021F - BAEATNBLEBERERERNERE  2FEETKI4%  BEERETEEAAHEERESTE TR
18% ' MPAERBEETEFERIEREHEESY - ERARBNTIBERET  ASEREZ TEOERERE
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ARETRARERE,060EETT - B FRSKCEFEFARTERERLER27T1%E701EE T © &
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FR - AEBRAFREERASE FBEE RXFREBFRAMLED R EL41%  57%EH2% °
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FR AEBEEEEEFETHEEASNEEEERIBEIW A A1.06/EE T (2020%F : 1.5418
BIL)  BEFTR EERAMERBERESRIRBRE L T - 72021F128318 - £ E
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BEMEF AT M -
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21 REEFPERHFHIREF WA
AEEAVEER KESEFRUSESEXBERS -FR BEARBERE &
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B
B
Ji]

BRmmE
R BWABTIERLE FA17%EC.74EBTT o M2021FK  AEBR TFTEFL AN E N HE A4 5
Bty EFA2%=15918 8 T (20204 156 B L) MR A EBTFEESTERBRESER
Zuft BEEEEFHERA BHKBOFEREERNERE—FAE - Z—FE BHREX

NABREREZDHD  EFBWABDIT%ET, 1008E T °

2.2 REBRITHOMNEWA
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The consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and of

its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

HAMBRREREBEFESTMASHRMN(ES
MHREEDEEMH SRR T KB R20214
12A31BMERE MBI MBI EZ B IEFEER
EMBREANGEARETRE Y EEREE(AA]
iR )2 2Bt -




Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEERE

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guotai Junan
International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 149 to 303, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEERE

Key audit matters

FARETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, B ET S IE R B R A = 4
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial REHKRNAGEMEREANBTIRAE
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the EHMEFH SLEHEAEYESTFR
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, RERBETETIEXKERNEETNE
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate BE BT L EBIEHEZGN =

opinion on these matters.

ﬁo

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

BMTEFNERRBRNEALRE AR XFTME

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 163-199.

BREGEBEHERN T 16 RFI163E199R AR HE °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REEEEMNESF PR ONMAESE N

As at 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amount of
loans and advances to customers and its related expected
credit loss (“ECL”) allowance amounted to HK$17,889
million and HK$2,035 million respectively. The net carrying
amount of HK$15,855 million represented 14.9% of the
Group’s total assets.

202112 A31H KT EPHMERRBRAEEMAB KR
Hi@rSERER((RHPERIEXR]) BES5I/17,889
BEATKR20358EE T IREFE15,8558 & & Tih
EEEEEE149% °

The Group uses the ECL model to determine the loss
allowance for loans and advances to customers. The
Group classifies loans and advances to customers
measured at amortised cost into three loss stages.
A financial asset is classified as stage one when its
credit risk has not increased significantly since its initial
recognition; otherwise it is classified as stage two or stage
three. Stage three applies when a financial asset is credit-
impaired. The loss allowance for stage one financial assets
is measured at an amount equal to a 12-month ECL. The
loss allowance for stage two and stage three financial
assets is measured at an amount equal to a lifetime ECL.
EEERARREABRARAUEFATERPNERRRRK
BREEE - EEEHRBHKAFENGKTERNER
RBgEA=ZEEBEER - 8RR S 718 R AR
BEREZLEN BemEERASE —BER TABAZE X
F-ER - F-RREANRGERENEREE - 5 —[&
BReBMEENEERENEBASM2EAEREREALRN
CHABR - F_RE-RReMEEFEBRBENRESRY
SHEMERBRNSHEIE -

Our audit procedures to assess ECL for loans and
advances to customers included the following:

B GE TEFONERRB RO EHRER BRI E
EBFTRFEETIIEIE :

o understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls over the credit risk
management of loans and advances to
customers and the ECL assessment. For the key
systems used for the processing of transactions
in relation to loans and advances to customers,
we involved our information technology
specialists to assess the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of a selection of key
internal controls over access to these systems
and controls over data and change management;

s TEHREAIEGETEFPNERKRBINEERRE
BO AR A ES RERERBRTERS
MITREER - HRAREBGETEFPNER
MBFEENRZHEE RS BHAZIREMD
BAMKRERT AT HZERSERER MBIE
I E TR EARE AN ES
AT MGEITARRR

° understanding and assessing the appropriateness of
the established policies and procedures for the ECL
assessment including the staging criteria, application
of assumptions and inputs into the ECL model;

. T BB R T A BT TE B TE HAME B AR AT AR UK AR
FOa#EE BEBRREE RREAKBEHE
RiaRER g AR
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Key audit matters (continued)
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BRESTEE 2

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

RTEFNERRBRANEREAREXFTME

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 163-199.

BRI BFREN T 16K E163E 1998 AT HE °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ZEERERMNESPRNMAES N

The determination of the loss allowance is subject to a
number of key parameters and assumptions, including
the classification of loss stages, estimates of probability
of default, loss given default, exposures at default and the
discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking information
and other adjustment factors. Management judgement
is involved in the selection of those parameters and the
application of the assumptions.
ETERREEERZHL2HNEBHR DEBEERESR -
HETENFIREMN BAEBEEEX  BORR KX 5Ha)
EMENKREMABREEMERE NETZZF2HNE
RABMRRKRE @ P RETRRE L -

In particular, the determination of the loss allowance is
heavily dependent on the macro-economic environment
and the Group’s internal credit risk management strategy.
The loss allowance for loans and advances to customers
is determined based on estimates whereby management
takes into consideration market data, historical overdue
data, historical loss experience and other adjustment
factors.

LHEHRE BETFEERERELBLERER BE5ERDH
EERRERRR L TEFPNERRBRNEBEREED
REEEEBZRITSHE BEBRIE BEEFEK
Nk H A EEARGTEMEERE -

evaluating the reasonableness and appropriateness
of the ECL model by assessing the critical
assumptions, inputs and parameters used in the
model that has been reviewed by our internal
risk modelling specialists. This included the
classification of loss stages, probability of default,
loss given default, exposure at default, discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information
and other management adjustments. As part of
these procedures, we challenged management’s
revision to estimate and input parameters by
comparing with prior period and considered the
consistency of judgement;

R A E R ZRKE) 5B T S h RS A
BABEANSGEUERGBEEARKEIRANRERE

R BWABERZ2E BREERERRBEE Z
MR BOBEEX  EORR RBERE A

BUEAHFERERR M EERE - (FAKSR
FR—#5  RFRIBEA —HE G LR ER
Bofiit REASBMETIRIEER - L2 B
B ) — B

assessing the value of collateral held for a
sample of loans and advances to customers with
reference to publicly available market prices;
MR ERAE TEPHNERRBRAFET @D
BE ER2ZQFAAEMSER

assessing the existence of collateral by obtaining
independent confirmations or statements from
brokers or clearing houses for a sample of
securities held as collateral per the Group's
records;

B EEETHAFEERRRNES BE8
B NS BEEUS B R SR - MR
ERmOEERFEN
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Key audit matters (continued)

BRESTEE 2

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

RTEFNERRBRANEREAREXFTME

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 163-199.

BRI BFREN T 16K E163E 1998 AT HE °

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ZEERERMNESPRNMAES N

Management also exercises judgement in determining
the quantum of loss given default based on a range of
factors. These include available remedies for recovery, the
financial situation of the borrower, the recoverable amount
of collateral, the seniority of the claim and existence and
cooperativeness of other creditors. When listed stocks are
pledged as collateral, the loan balances to collateral ratio,
and the stock holding concentration of the borrower, the
industry sector and the operation of the issuer, the liquidity
restriction on sales of the stock are taken into account in
the assessment. For loans and advances to customers
that are categorised as stage three, management performs
individual assessment for each borrower by considering
credit enhancements provided to the Group.

EREMTRAGARBSERNZETRENBEEEREE -
ZERZBER AR K E A/ REE - ERATBARR
KR RAKOEE REBEAFTREMEEAREREE
REAEER -ELTREERABEFRDTAER  ERE
MRERME R NERAFTREPE  BITARETERER
EiR - HEZREORD MR FNEFEAZGHEAATE -
HRBAZ=BRNGETEFNERKBR ERELE
BRET EEENGEERAHERERAETERGE -

We identified the ECL assessment for loans and advances
to customers as a key audit matter due to its significance
to the consolidated financial statements and the significant
management estimates and judgements required in the
assessment.
BMEETEPNERRBRNTERAEABERTHERNE
BRESFE DARHEHGEMBBRROEEL RN
hREREAELE XN LA -

assessing the existence and quality of collateral,
guarantees or other forms of credit support
such as remedies for recovery in evaluating the
adequacy of ECL allowance made by the Group
for material loans and advances to customers
classified as Stage three; and

Rt EEEHBEAZF=-RBNGATEFPNE
RERRBFRFAERRAGEABERBERBTE ML
HEERAR  BEREAMEXEEZRF (KD
ARER NEEFEEREZE &

evaluating whether the disclosures on ECLs
for loans and advances to customers meet the
disclosure requirements of prevailing accounting
standards.

A TEPHER KRB R EAEABRHKE
REMERITETENEERTE -
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BRESTEE 2

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

E=REMITAMGE

Refer to Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 163-199.

BRI E N BFREN F41 R E163E1998 A BT HE °

The Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ZERERMNESPRNMAEHY

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities at level 3 amounted
to HK$10,091 million and HK$6,349 million, representing
18% and 19% of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at fair value.

R2021F12A31H - ESEE=femEERERAR
B ATEDRIA/10,091EEETRG3498EET h &
SERATEAENESHEEREHBEN18%K19% °

The valuation of the Group’s financial instruments is based
on a combination of market data and valuation models
which often require judgement.
EEESRIAGMEDNERETSHBERGBERLNEGES
ERIME  HBEHEZ(EDHE -

Some of the inputs used in the valuation models are
obtained from readily available data for liquid markets.
Where such observable data is not readily available, as in
the case of level 3 financial instruments, estimates need to
be developed which can involve significant management
judgement.

HEEEMBETRABE B RS HISRE A FHESD
BRE - MAEBABRABRIIFRBAF BFEF=AH
TAZIER - BIAEL AR BRSPS RERNEREHE -

We identified assessing the fair value of level 3 financial
instruments as a key audit matter because of the degree of
complexity involved in valuing these financial instruments
and the significant degree of judgement exercised by
management in determining the inputs used in the
valuation models.
BMBEFEE=ZFeRmIT AR VERIN R —BHERETSH
B HEZEem TAGAERREMEEEEMEREMA
BMABIBAEREEELERAEG -

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of level 3
financial instruments included the following:

A EE=FeR T EAFTENEFTEFBEE N3
K IF :

[=IR o

assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls over
the valuation of level 3 financial instruments;

FHMEE =R T A G EN R AN EPE R ERE
AT RGEITARR

reading investment agreements for level 3 financial
instruments to understand the relevant investments
terms and identify any conditions that were relevant
to the valuation of these financial instruments;
FEHFEF=ReRITAREHZATHREAKRE R
AR HREZE S m T A EERENE AR

engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist
us in performing independent valuations of certain
level 3 financial instruments where appropriate
and compare these valuations with the Group’s
valuations. This included comparing the valuation
derived from the Group’s valuation models with
our knowledge of current market practice, testing
inputs to the fair value calculations and establishing
our own valuation models to perform revaluations.
If the valuation is determined based on recent
transaction price, we evaluated the appropriateness
of management assessment and verified the
transaction price with supporting documents. For
unlisted fixed income securities and unlisted fund
investments, we also assessed the quality and
sufficiency of the collaterals where appropriate; and
ZRBEMABHEERGBHRMEETE=ZR
CRIAETEYGHE (WER) Y KZEFHE
B SEEMfEETHR - HEEHE S5H
I EBE P A E B 5 T4 E R 518 fl &) &
o AARTEFERARBEREZIRME H
EEBETER - MEENERTIHRRGERE
- BMAFAGEEBETHNGEE RBBEIFEX
HEBRRIEBRRBEIBEXHEZRIZER -
HRIFELTEERREFRIFLMESKE &K
PR EERmemBEREERE (WRERA) &
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Key audit matters (continued)

BRESTEE 2

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

E=RMEMITAMGE

Refer to Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 163-199.

BRI E N BFREN F41 R E163E1998 A BT HE °

The Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ZEERERMNESPRNMAES N

assessing the appropriateness of the use of the
net asset value reports provided by external
fund administrators as the fair value of the level
3 financial instruments at reporting date. This
included comparing the fair value movements
against available market information where
appropriate. For the valuation of fund interests
we obtained and agreed the latest reported
net asset values from the fund managers, our
procedures also included obtaining audited
financial statements of the funds where
applicable and checking the historical accuracy
of the reported net asset values; and

AR HRERMGIINMECEREMRHEES
EREAEFZHEMTARFENSGEE - It
BEGATFEZHEAETISEETHER (W0
BHA) HRBEMBRERRARNESEREE
ESERERMNENE[REETE  KMHE
FIBEREESNLEZMGHmE (NER) &
RERTEMEEFENBEERTE &

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

TESREMBBRRAKE  ER2ERTGHE
AIRTE °
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEERE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZEERE

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continueq)

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B e RS

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continueq)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Siu Tung.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mEEsRkHEMEZENBER

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831BIEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET T
Revenue WA 5 3,966,415 4,872,952
Other income HAth Y 51 5,279 5,448
Revenue and other income WA B H b Y 2 3,971,694 4,878,400
Staff costs BT 6 (803,434) (1,148,710)
Commission to account executives XEFEHEE (224,602) (188,382)
Depreciation e (78,639) (68,859)
Net loss allowance charge BB R R R (220,597) (363,565)
Other operating expenses HigeEm® (581,913) (463,949)
Operating profit 4 5 A 2,062,509 2,644,935
Finance costs B & AR R 7 (774,863) (830,256)
Profit before tax B 5% AT g A 8 1,287,646 1,814,679
Income tax expense FriS®if X 9 (184,373) (246,907)
Profit for the year F R F 1,103,273 1,567,772
Other comprehensive income FRHEAEEWE
for the year, net of tax HBRBE
— Investments at fair value through other - BRFETAEAM
comprehensive income (net movement 2EKENEE (K
in investment revaluation reserve — HESMREEES 7
recycling) £5) 8,308 (7,255)
— Exchange difference on translation of - HNEEE N =R
foreign exchange 38,684 (496)
Total comprehensive income for the FAEZEKREALE
year 1,150,265 1,560,021
Profit for the year attributable to: BiEFERER
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE7F=IN 1,094,743 1,562,587
Non-controlling interests JEIE R HE = 8,530 5,185
1,103,273 1,567,772
Total comprehensive income for the BiEFREZEKEARE:
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company iN/NECTEZ ¥ SN 1,141,735 1,554,836
Non-controlling interests JEIE R HE = 8,530 5,185
1,150,265 1,560,021
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary # 2 T ER KR RELER
equity holders of the parent ZF
- Basic (in HK cents) — B (BAEMED) 11(a) 11.4 16.9

- Diluted (in HK cents) - 58 (LABED) 11(b) 11.4 16.8
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B B S AR R

As at 31 December 2021
H2021%12831H

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FTHE T FHET
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BE R 12 514,853 475,924
Goodwill and other intangible assets EENKEMEREE 13 22,886 22,886
Other assets Hh&E 14 27,959 11,613
Deferred tax assets BT IE & B 15 157,631 150,880
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIT A 21 12,325 108,172
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFABZNS
profit or loss BE 20 17,368,819 16,976,561
— Financial assets held for trading and -BEEEREEN S
investments BE 6,153,930 6,805,621
— Financial products - & RlE m 11,214,889 10,170,940
Total non-current assets FRBEERRE 18,104,473 17,746,036
Current assets REBEE
Loans and advances to customers BTRFMNEZRRER 16 15,854,687 15,604,244
Accounts receivable JE U 7R IA 18 6,559,681 5,638,797
Prepayments, deposits and other TANRIE - 2E R EMER
receivables RIE 19 118,311 143,744
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFABZNS
profit or loss BE 20 37,472,478 53,937,004
— Financial assets held for trading and -BEEERIEER
investments TEREE 17,088,058 24,595,855
- Financial products - EHEM 20,384,420 29,341,149
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEF A M2 E WS
other comprehensive income B & B & B 20 11,529 105,574
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIA 21 606,905 1,153,182
Receivable from reverse repurchase [ 17 [B] & 177 2% 8 UL SR 0B
agreements 22 4,443,729 3,022,800
Tax recoverable A B ¢ 1E 33,585 153,555
Client trust bank balances B EsEIRITA R 23 17,804,841 18,707,026
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEESEEY 23 5,277,874 5,508,779
Total current assets REEERR 88,183,620 103,974,705




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B B S AR R

As at 31 December 2021
H2021%12831H
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2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FET FHET
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable &~ RO 24 (20,587,166)  (22,783,232)
Other payables and accrued liabilities HEEAREREFAE 25 (632,317) (930,801)
Derivative financial instruments MESBTHE 21 (426,552) (528,184)
Interest bearing borrowings TR A 26 (5,334,661) (9,732,840)
Debt securities in issue BERITEKES 27 (34,153,825)  (36,076,779)
— At amortised cost — FRE SR A (18,298,551)  (13,798,151)
- Designated at fair value through - EBERAFEFAER
profit or loss (15,855,274) (22,278,628)
Financial liabilities at fair value through BAFEFAEBRAS R
profit or loss A& 28 (8,772,805) (6,666,260)
Obligations under repurchase agreements [0 & 177 5% (& 18 29 (9,255,723)  (17,396,163)
Tax payable FERFIIE (157,353) (165,492)
_Total current liabilites  nBAMM&E 0 (79,320,402)  (94,279,751)
Netcurrentassets ~ &ABREFE 2 8863218 9,694,954
_Total assets less current liabilites ~~~~ REMERABEE  26967,691 27,440,990
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities LTI B (& 15 (45,843) (17,928)
Interest bearing borrowings FFEER 26 (40,542) (6,557)
Derivative financial instruments MEERTHE 21 (106,409) (334,245)
Debt securities in issue BERETEBES 27 (11,337,958)  (11,843,093)
— At amortised cost — FR A SH X AR (3,139,345) (1,549,563)
— Designated at fair value through - BEZRAFEFABR
profit or loss (8,198,613) (10,293,530)
Net assets EEFE 15,436,939 15,239,167
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2021
H2021%12831H

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B oE FET FABIT
Equity =
Share capital N 30 10,911,163 10,908,749
Other reserve E b 34 (1,236,460) (1,236,460)
Currency translation reserve BB E S 37,078 (1,608)
Share-based compensation reserve LA B& 57 75 5 1 36 B 1% 1 27,429 41,606
— Share option reserve — BV G R 31 27,429 32,521
— Share award reserve - Bty BB S 32 - 9,085
Shares held under the share award BAR D RENET Bl E A AR D
scheme 33 - (80,672)
Investment revaluation reserve HESHHE 1,053 (7,255)
_Retained profts ~~~~ ®R&=&=d» 9,567,098 5,443,757
Equity attributable to holders of the TERIRREGER
ordinary shares 15,307,361 15,118,119
_Non-controlling interests  dFEmdEm N 121,048
Total equity EREEHE 15,436,939 15,239,167
Dr. YIM Fung Ms. QI Haiying
gt WPBELZL
Director Director

EF EF




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831BIEFE
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Shares
held under Investment
Currency Share Share  the share revaluation Non-
Share Other  translation option award award  Retained reserve controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve  scheme profits  (recycling) Total interests equity
REKED REEMR
LY ROGKE GHEET 1
Rx  HifEE e BRERE #E BEORG REEN (THH) Bt FEREE BRER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000
TERT TERT TERT TERL TERL TERL TERL TER TER TER TR
Balance at 1 January 2020 W2020F1 1B K& 8 8,125,856  (1,236,460) (1,110) 30,613 25,576 (73,058) 4,424,607 - 11,295,924 115,863 11,411,787
Total comprehensive income FREZANGESE
for the year - - (496) - - - 1,562,587 (7,255) 1,554,836 5,185 1,560,021
Shares issued under rights issue ~ REERETRH
(note 30) (Mi7£30) 2,779,976 - - - - - - - 2,779,976 - 2,779,976
Shares repurchased (note 30) FERBIRR(A (MI5£30) - - - - - - (19,854) - (19,854) - (19,854
Recognition of equity-settled TR ER s E AR
share-based payments BEBNFR
(notes 31 and 32) (M5E31R32) - - - 6,239 19,223 - - - 25462 - 25462
Vesting of shares for fRip SR EYE B
the share award scheme BOIGREPER))
(notes 32 and 33) = = = - (35714 42,386 (9,469) = 2,797) = 2,797)
Shares issued upon exercise of ~ EEBRIERT BIE T474%
share options under BREMBITORG
the share option scheme (Hi5E30R31)
(notes 30 and 31) 2917 - - (983) - - - - 1,934 - 1,934
Transfer of share option reserve  EEREARMERE
upon the forfeiture of share RS
options - - - (3,248) - = 3,248 = = = =
Final dividend for 2019 (note 10) ~ X f12019F K& A
(MizE10) - - - - - - (191,628) - (191,628) - (191,628)
Interim dividend for 2020 (note 10) #2020 &7 &
(MizE10) - - - - - - (325734) - (325734) - (325734)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERERBEHR

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12A318 LFE
Shares
held under Investment
Currency Share Share  the share revaluation Non-
Share Other  translation option award award  Retained reserve controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve  scheme profits  (recycling) Total interests equity
RGRB REEf
EWaE RG#R GFEET it

RA Rt W BRERE R HENRG REEN (THE) A FEREE BRAE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

Balance at 31 December 2020 20206123318 &k

and 1 January 2021 20211 A1AMES 10908749 (1,236,460)  (1,606) 32,521 9085  (30,672) 5443757  (7,255) 15118119 121,048 15,239,167
Total comprehensive income FREERGEE

for the year - - 38,684 - - - 1,094,743 8,308 1,141,735 8,530 1,150,265
Recognition of equity-settled TR b R A E AR D

share-based payments AERHFHR

(notes 31 and 32) (Mi3£31%32) - - - 1,462 6,314 = = - 7,776 5 7,776
Vesting of shares for Ok RE L

the share award scheme (GERER)

(notes 32 and 33) - - - - (15399 16879  (7.484) - (6,004 - (6,004)
Shares issued upon exercise of ~ BREF HBETTFEER

share options under EmZTHRA

the share option scheme (Mi3£30%31)

(notes 30 and 31) 2,414 - - (733) - - - - 1,681 - 1,681

Transfer of share option reserve ~ EBREXRMERERE
upon the forfeiture of share it

options - - - (5,821) - - 5,821 - - - -
Disposal of shares held under HERDEBDHEET
share award scheme RANRSD - - - - = 13,793 - - 13,793 = 13,793
Final dividend for 2020 (note 10) X ft2020F K& S
(KizE10) - - - - - - (489,670) - (489,670) - (489,670)
Interim dividend for 2021 (note 10) 3 20214 & £k &
(MizE10) - - - - - - (480,069) - (480,069) - (480,069)

Balance at 31 December 2021 R20214512A31 A& 10,911,163 (1,236,460 37,078 27,429 - - 5,567,098 1,063 15,307,361 129,578 15,436,939
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBRERER

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12A31HIEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET T
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating KEEBRG(BA) R
activities e R o 5,879,052 (15,072,535)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHHRERE
Purchases of intangible assets BEEFEE - (500)
Purchases of property, plant and
equipment BEWE BELRHE 12 (43,062) (35,646)
Net cash flows used in investing activities BREEHHAREAEFE (43,062) | (36,146)
Cash flows from financing activities MEIBHEESRE
Net repayment of bank borrowings RITERERFE (4,408,497) (1,485,274)
Proceeds from issuance of debt BITEBESFMERIE
securities 96,210,967 54,424,395
Repayment of debt securities BREKE (96,794,533)  (41,743,699)
Net proceeds from issuance of shares R e AT E M B 1T AR (D
upon exercise of share options Fr 1S 2B F 58 31 1,681 1,934
Disposal of shares held under share HERD ZBEIEBETHES
award scheme B % 15 13,793 =
Dividend paid to shareholders SENEL ¥ 10 (969,739) (517,362)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRH RS D (30,364) (25,403)
Interest portion of lease payments HENZKBOFEZH (1,292) (1,353)
Net proceeds from issuance of shares & i i% M 217 IR 1D AT S
upon right issue SKIBFE 30 - 2,779,976
Repurchase of shares o] B A 1 30 - (19,854)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing MEEE (BA), S
activities RemgFe . 5,977,984) 13,413,360
Net decrease in cash and cash REeRESEEYRL FE
equivalents (141,994) (1,695,321)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUReRASEFEEY
of year 5,258,088 6,953,890
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, R FH)H 7 28558
net 38,845 (499)
Effect of impairment allowance on cash EBEREHReMASSE
and cash equivalents, net EYR 2T (191) 18
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FREERRELEEY

year 5,154,748 5,258,088
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12831BIEFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHE T T
Analysis of balances of cash and cash RERESEEYN
equivalents R
Cash and bank balances RE& MIRTTE % 23 5,080,107 5,178,802
Non-pledged time deposits with original GTHREREBEETE=EA
maturity of less than three months R AR T HBER
when acquired 23 74,641 79,286
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the #RAIRESRERFIIZ
consolidated statement of cash flows BehBREEEY 5,154,748 5,258,088
Non-pledged time deposits with original FHEREBARBA=EA
maturity more than three months but less BN R —F R AT EH
than one year when acquired V=N 23 123,126 250,691
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in AP BEMREKAS 2
the consolidated statement of financial ReRREFEY
position 5,277,874 5,508,779




Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R 3R M RE

31 December 2021
2021 12A31H

1. Corporate and group information

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 8 March 2010 in Hong Kong with limited liability
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 8 July 2010. The registered
office address of the Company is 27th Floor, Low Block, Grand
Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The
Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in brokerage, corporate finance, asset
management, loans and financing, financial products, market
making and investments.

The Company’s immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company are Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited (“GJFHL”)
incorporated in Hong Kong and Guotai Junan Securities Company
Limited (“GJSCL”) incorporated in the People’s Republic of China,

respectively.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are

as follows:
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1. 2EIREEER

BlRALTBBEERER AR (AR
All) A MR2010F3A8H BRI F
RAMEBIET B TMRLZAEBRA
7 AR A 8D 1R201067 A8H
EREBBERSFERAE ([ER
Frl) £k £ - "R R M= E
it BB B2/ KNEF1815 5
WL E SR E271E - KA R AKRE
ZRAE - HNBAREZEREL
worERE BEEHE BEXK
BE - eMEM - M RIEEER -

ARBHNBERZERA R R&FEZER
RAED B AR BB EMA LB
BELERARRAA (BHRERER
2] R E AR KRB W
RINBEREZLEFBNERAA
(TBEH=ERILH]) -

A2021F12A8318 T EM B QA
BT

Percentage of equity attributable

Place of to the Company
incorporation and ARFEERERD L
Company name business Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ARER AMEIREE LT RE Hi BE IEER
Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Samoa/Hong Kong  US$816,300,000 100% - Provision of general administration
Limited (‘GJHK") and support services to its fellow
subsidiaries
BRAR (BA)ERAHA BED/ER 816,300,000 7T 100% - NRZHBARRE-REER
((ERAZEE]) X ERH
Guotai Junan International Singapore SG$9,300,000 100% - Provision of general administration
(Singapore) Pte. Limited and support services to its fellow
subsidiaries
AR 9,300,000 M3 7T 100% - NRZHBARRE-REER

X ERH
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Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R 3R M RE

31 December 2021
2021 12A31H

1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1. 2EAIREEER @2
Percentage of equity attributable
Place of to the Company
incorporation and AAFEERERSL
Company name business Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ARER DAMEIREE T RE B B TEXHB
Guotai Junan International Asset  Singapore SG$4,200,000 100% - Asset management
Management (Singapore) Pte. & il%% 4,200,000 M3 T 100% - HBEER
Limited
Guotai Junan International Singapore SG$3,500,000 100% - Securities brokerage and other
Securities (Singapore) Pte. financial services
Limited Gl 3,500, 000%7 J3% 7 100% - RFREREMSRRE
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Hong Kong HK$7,500,000,000 100% - Securities dealing and broking and
Kong) Limited provision of wealth management
services
BRAZES (BE)BRAR  BA 7,500,000,000% ¢ 100% - BARGREBIRREHEERRY
Guotai Junan Futures (Hong Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100% - Futures dealing and broking
Kong) Limited
BZXARAE (FE)BRAR  BA 50,000,000/ 7 100% - BREEERAR
Guotai Junan Finance (Hong Hong Kong HK$300,000,000 100% - Money lending and trading in
Kong) Limited securities
BRAZHME(FE)BERAR  BE 300,000,000/ 7 100% - [EERESEE
Guotai Junan Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100% - Provision of consultancy and financial
services
BRAZREBRAA 0 50,000,000 7 100% - REFARMBRS
Guotai Junan Assets (Asia) Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100% - Asset management
Limited

BREZEEEE (CM)ERAR B8 50,000,000/ 70 100% - HEEE
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1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1. 2EAIREEER @2
Percentage of equity attributable
Place of to the Company
incorporation and AAFEERERSL
Company name business Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
AT EH EMEIREEHE R B BE IEER
Guotai Junan Fund Management ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 50% - Asset management and trading in
Limited' securities
BRERECERERLA B 10,000,000 50% - HBEEBREFEE
Guotai Junan Financial Products ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% - Trading in securities
Limited
AREZeRERARAA BA 1,000,000/ 7T 100% - HHEE
Guotai Junan FX Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 100% - Leveraged foreign exchange dealing
and broking
BRERMERR AT B 30,000,000/ 7t 100% - ERANERSREL
Guotai Junan Securities Vietnam VND693,500 50.97% - Securities dealing and broking and
(Vietnam) Corporation million margin financing
BRARL A (BE) RHAR  HE 693,500,000,000 50.97% - BHERS BERAERE
M E
Note 1:  The Group considers that it has the ability to govern the financial and izl : BRASEEEIZEXEBRE
operating policies of the entity as the Group has the power to appoint or EeAZYKE WAEER A
remove the majority of the members of its board of directors. HERNEEZEEBNUBRE
B -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in TRENEERAEERNEELEE
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the EFEFERERAEEEEFE
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. FERHZARFIMBAR - ES
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the e NEHMHBAR ZER®
directors, result in particulars of excessive length. EHEEBENITE -
These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue 7% B 15 ¥R R B 1202243 H28H

by the board of directors on 28 March 2022. BESSHEREERE-
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21 iRBEEXE

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“"HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, debt securities in issue designated at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments
which have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE &)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without a loss of control) is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
current year’s presentation.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 22 €3 REEBRHE

disclosures

The group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

° Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-related rent concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

° Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 186, Interest rate benchmark reform — phase 2

The Group has elected not to adopt and apply the practical
expedient of amendments to HKFRS 16 as there is no Covid-19-
related rent concessions granted to the Group during the reporting
period.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest rate
benchmark reform — phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i) accounting
for changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows
of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as
modifications, and (i) discontinuing hedge accounting when an
interest rate benchmark is replaced by an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the reform of interbank offered rates (“IBOR
reform”).

The amendments do not have a significant impact to the Group as
the Group’s majority London Interbank Best Offering Rate (“LIBOR”)
linked financial assets, liabilities and derivative contracts would
mature after LIBOR’s cessation date on 30 June 2023.
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23X EEHHEHME

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, debt securities in issue designated at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments,
fund investments, debt investments and equity investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, (or in the
absence of a principal market) in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

DNFEFTE
AEERERERRZAFEFE
HBEAFEFABRENEREENR
EMAE BHAFEFAEGLEZE
BEWEMEE BERRAFE
FABRBRCBERITERES 14
TMTE ESRE -BEHRER
BRAKRE RFERTHESEER
AERMEERR ST HEREM
WER ER KB R BB ANE
B AFEFAEDNEREEEEL
HRAANRXINEELABETE
MK (ERETEMHERT) KA
BEMNEELREMHETHER
MEL - TEXZEBETHEAR
AEBAEA TS BEXERE
MAFELDERMSE2EENEE
SRECERERANEBRRTE
Y RETHLEENEZELEN
WmITHE °

FeBMEENRFENEART LT
B2 REBFERAREERZEE
ERRERZ  ABZEEHET
HEAREEBZEEERRER
BHEMTIS2EE  AEEKE
ML HRE T ©

AEERMERRARBRAAE
EOBBEAHFTERFENFKEST
o UNEEERAARABRESE R
BEERVERAEIBR28 -




164 Guotai Junan International | Annual Report 2021

Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R 3R M RE

31 December 2021
2021 12A31H

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable (either
directly or indirectly)

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 23 TEE€HBEME o

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 23 TEE€HBEME o

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 25-40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 23 TEE€HBEME o

(continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 25 to 40 years
Building 1 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

The Group’s right-of-use assets are included in property, plant
and equipment.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(o)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease (if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate). The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in interest bearing
borrowings.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 23 TE&SHBEME o)

(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of property and office equipment (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks and
rewards incidental to of ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee Group (other than legal title) are accounted for as finance
leases.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 23 TEE€HBEME o

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 23 TEE€HBEME o

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is (after reassessment) recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets, representing eligibility rights to trade on or
through The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. These intangible
assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite
life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Financial assets and liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 23 TE&SHBEME o)

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or
financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a
financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability,
such as fees and commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets
and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an
expected credit loss (“ECL”) allowance is recognised for financial
assets measured at amortised cost and investments in debt
instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), which results in an accounting loss being
recognised in profit or loss when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the
transaction price on initial recognition, the entity recognises the
difference as follows:

(i) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1
input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets, the difference is recognised as a
gain or loss.

(i) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the
timing of recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is
determined individually. It is either amortised over the life of
the instrument, deferred until the instrument’s fair value can
be determined using market observable inputs, or realised
through settlement.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group’s financial assets include accounts receivable,
deposits and other receivables, loans and advances to
customers, client trust bank balances, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, receivable
from reverse repurchase agreements, derivative financial
instruments, other assets and cash and cash equivalent.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 and classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(i) Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”);

(i) Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”); or

(i)  Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity
instruments are described below:

Debt instruments
Classification and subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depend on:

()  the Group’s business model for managing the
asset; and;

(i) the cash flows characteristics of the asset.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

Business model assessment:

The business model reflects how the Group manages
the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the
contractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect
both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising
from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable
(e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes),
then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’
business model and measured at FVTPL. Factors
considered by the Group in determining the business
model for a group of assets include past experience on
how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how
the asset’s performance is evaluated and reported to
key management personnel, how risks are assessed and
managed and how managers are compensated.

SPPI test:

The Group assesses the contractual terms of instruments
to identify whether the contractual cash flows are ‘solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding’ (“SPPI”). Financial assets that
are consistent with a basic lending arrangement are
considered to meet the SPPI criterion. In a ‘basic
lending arrangement’, consideration for the time value of
money and credit risk are typically the most significant
elements of interest. It may also include consideration
for other basic lending risks such as liquidity risks, costs
associated with holding the financial assets for a period
of time (e.g., servicing or administrative costs) and a
profit margin.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

SPPI test: (continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt
instruments into one of the following three measurement
categories:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”), and
that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at
amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets
is adjusted by any ECL allowance recognised and
measured as described in note 2.3(a)(ii). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in ‘Market making
— debt securities and exchange traded funds’ and
‘Investments — fixed income securities, funds, derivatives
and equity investments’ using the effective interest rate
method.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

SPPI test: (continued)

FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent SPPI, and that
are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and
losses on the instrument’s amortised cost which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in ‘Other income’. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in ‘Market making
— debt securities and exchange traded funds’ and
‘Investments — fixed income securities, funds, derivatives
and equity investments’ using the effective interest rate
method.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss and presented in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income within ‘Market making — debt securities’ in the
period in which it arises. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in ‘Market making — debt
securities and exchange traded funds’ and ‘Investments
— fixed income securities, funds, derivatives and equity
investments’ using the effective interest rate method.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes. The reclassification takes place from the start
of the first reporting period following the change. Such
changes are expected to be very infrequent and none
occurred during the period.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is,
instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation
to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity instruments
include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
Group’s management has elected, at initial recognition,
to irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The Group’s
policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI when
those investments are held for purposes other than
to generate investment returns. When this election is
used, fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCI
and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss,
including on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value. Dividends, when represent a
return on such investments, continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are
included in the ‘Investments — fixed income securities,
funds, derivatives and equity investments’ line in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

ECL allowance

The Group applies a simplified approach to measure ECL
on trade receivable and a general approach to measure
ECL on loans and advances to customers, time deposits
and other financial assets accounted for at amortised
cost as well as loan commitment.

Under the simplified approach, the Group measures the
loss based on lifetime ECL. Under the general approach,
financial assets migrate through the following three
stages based on the change in credit risk since initial
recognition:

Stage 1: 12-month ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that
are not credit-impaired upon origination, the portion
of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of
default events occurring within the next 12 months is
recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are
not credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is recognised.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

ECL allowance (continued)
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For exposures that have become credit-impaired,
a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the expected life between
the reporting date and the date of initial recognition.
The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking
analysis. For certain portfolio of margin loans, the Group
rebuts the presumption that there have been significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition when
financial assets are more than 30 days past due as
management considers the probability of default is highly
correlated with the collateral value rather than the past
due days.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

ECL allowance (continued)
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired (continued)

The Group assesses whether the credit risk on an
exposure has increased significantly on an individual
or collective basis. For the purposes of a collective
evaluation of impairment, financial instruments
are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics, taking into account instrument type,
remaining term to maturity and other relevant factors.

The amount of ECL is measured as the probability-
weighted present value of all cash shortfalls over the
expected life of the financial asset discounted at its
original effective interest rate. The cash shortfall is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Company and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive. The amount of the loss is
recognised using a provision for doubtful debts account.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and
reverses any previously assessed significant increase
in credit risk since origination, then the provision for
doubtful debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-month
ECL.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 23 TEE€HBEME o

(continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued) ctREERER®
(a) Financial assets (continued) (@) THEEE #)
(i) Modification of loans (i) EREEFT
The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies AEBERGENE
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When AR MG B H T
this happens, the Group assesses whether or not the EFHNERMNEHNR&
new terms are substantially different to the original mECERBERT @ &K
terms. The Group does this by considering, among SEENEHEIES
others, the following factors: HERRAFERAEZER -
REBEFERER(E
REE) TIEX
e If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the J &A= R R A
modification merely reduces the contractual cash BRIE B2 E
flows to amounts the borrower is expected to be EEHSHNREN
able to pay. ERLEBRAE
Hgess £ -
e Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, e RAESAEMEEZ
such as a profit share/equity-based return that AT R T
substantially affects the risk profile of the loan. B 3R BB O
SEETENTHE
D AR R R E
i ) [B1 3R o
e Significant extension of the loan term when the e  EERAREERH
borrower is not in financial difficulty. 7% R 3% I K18 iE =
EFEABR -
e Significant change in the interest rate. o FERIBEH -
e Change in the currency the loan is denominated in. e EXRNHEEKEZ
) o
e Insertion of collateral, other security or credit e WMAHEFRMHEBHD
enhancements that significantly affect the credit EERBELESERXN
risk associated with the loan. FENERL  H
b ERELBILEE

fiR
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Modification of loans (continued)

If the terms are substantially different, the Group
derecognises the original financial asset and recognises
a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new
effective interest rate for the asset. The date of
renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date
of initial recognition for impairment calculation purposes,
including for the purpose of determining whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However,
the Group also assesses whether the new financial
asset recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at
initial recognition, especially in circumstances where the
renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to
make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the
carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as
a gain or loss on derecognition.

If the terms are not substantially different, the
renegotiation or modification does not result in
derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross
carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of
the financial asset and recognises a modification gain
or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount
is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows
at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted
effective interest rate for purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets).
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued)

(iv)

Derecognition other than on a modification
Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised
when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the assets have expired, or when they have been
transferred and either (i) the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership, or (i) the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and the Group has not retained
control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows
to other entities and transfers substantially all of the risks
and rewards. These transactions are accounted for as
‘pass through’ transfers that result in derecognition if the
Group:

()  has no obligation to make payments unless it
collects equivalent amounts from the assets;

(i) is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets;
and

(i) has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from
the assets without material delay.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

@

(b)

Financial assets (continued)
(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group
under standard repurchase agreements and securities
lending and borrowing transactions is not derecognised
because the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards on the basis of the predetermined repurchase
price, and the criteria for derecognition are therefore
not met. This also applies to certain securitisation
transactions in which the Group retains a subordinated
residual interest.

Financial liabilities

Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
except for:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives and financial liabilities
held for trading. Gains or losses on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability, which is determined
as the amount that is not attributable to changes in market
conditions that give rise to market risk) and partially profit or
loss (the remaining amount of change in the fair value of the
liability). This is unless such a presentation would create, or
enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which case the gains and
losses attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability
are also presented in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 23 TEE€HBEME o

(continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at their fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.

Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and
as liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Whilst the Group enters into a derivative contract for trading
purposes or to provide economic hedges under the Group’s risk
management framework, it does not apply hedge accounting.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (shares held under
the share award scheme) are recognised at cost and deducted
from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity
instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the
consideration is recognised in equity.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 23 TEE€HBEME o

(continued)

Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with authorised
financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits arising from normal
business transactions. The Group has classified the clients’ monies
as client trust bank balances under the current assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position as the Group is allowed
to retain some or all of the interest income on the clients’ monies
and recognised corresponding accounts payable to the respective
customers in the current liabilities clients on grounds that it is liable
for any loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. Under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) and the Hong
Kong Insurance Companies Ordinance (Cap. 41), the Group is not
allowed to use the clients’” monies to settle its own obligation.

Fiduciary activities

Apart from the client trust bank balances as mentioned above, the
Group provides brokerage and asset management services and the
Group acts in a fiduciary capacity which results in the holding or
placing of assets on behalf of its customers. These assets and any
gains or losses arising thereon are not included in these financial
statements as the Group has no contractual rights to these assets
and its gains or losses under fiduciary activities.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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(continued)

Other assets

Other assets represent the deposits and admission fee paid to
the Stock Exchange, Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, Hong
Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited and other regulators.
They are intended to be held on a long-term basis and are stated
at the nominal amount.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Provision of securities and futures brokerage services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the
customer has obtained control of the service, generally when the
trades are executed.

Provision of investment banking services

The performance obligation for sponsoring and certain consultancy
and financial advisory services are fulfiled when all the relevant
duties of a sponsor or a financial advisor as stated in the contract
are completed.

Revenue from sponsoring fee is recognised at a point in time when
all the relevant duties of a sponsor as stated in the contract are
completed. Certain consultancy and financial advisory services’
performance obligations are satisfied over time as services are
rendered if the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Provision of asset management services

Revenue from asset management services is recognised over time
as the services are provided. Fees for asset management services
are calculated based on a fixed percentage of the value of assets
managed.

Performance fees are recognised on the performance fee valuation
day of the investment funds and managed accounts when there
is a positive performance for the relevant performance period and
it is determined that it will not result in significant reversal in a
subsequent period, taking into consideration the relevant basis of
calculation for the investment funds and managed accounts.

Fund distribution activities are separate performance obligations
from the asset management and the obligation being satisfied at
a point in time upon the investors’ subscription. Subscription and
handling fees relating to the distribution services are recognised at
a point in time when the services are performed and the amount is
known.
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(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Provision of wealth management service

The performance obligation relating to the insurance brokerage
service is satisfied at the point when the terms of the insurance
policy have been agreed contractually by the insurer and
policyholder, and the insurer has a present right to payment from
the policyholder (the ‘transaction date’).

Revenue from other sources and other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Employee benefits

(a) Retirement benefit scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all of its employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

(b) Bonuses
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on an approved formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Group after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

Share-based payments

The Group operates two equity-settled share-based
compensation schemes including a share option scheme
and a share award scheme for the purpose of assisting
in recruiting, retaining and motivating key staff members.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The cost of equity-settled transactions
is recognised, together with a corresponding increase
in the “share award reserve” and “share option reserve”
under equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled in share-based
compensation expense. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

23 XESHHERE»)

BERA 2
(c) UBRHABERNH

AEBRAMBENEDZEE
VAR 75 BB 57 B AT 81 (B 4%
—EBB R 8 Rk —HEB M
RE)ETE)  UHBHEE &
BhABBARET -A&H
MEE (BRES) BER/UK
MRERNFIELANEHH &
I BB REHRBIERER
TAMKE(UAEREER
51) e

HEBURGEEXHHMK
ANSEERREHBHNA
FEE URSEERZH
PR R B R 3K IR S 5 1
ERHEEAENEST IR
o SRR IR 1 ) I [P R f £
B —FERRO SERE
FHAS THER REREH
REEZERBRARRAER S
R 5BRANRFRX - KRB
BEABCEm A KBS
RREBNEZTARABN
REME - REBEMBERER
AR KT AR S BERER &
HIf ) B 00 I B R R eR 9 R
AR E -

REYERBNREED S ®
RFEAX - EEBATSRIERE
BIRGESGHENAERSGER
RO - BT 5 IR B
REREER  HOERES
ERE EMAEMRRES
RIS IR IF RS R ©



Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R 3R M RE

31 December 2021
2021 12A31H

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(c) Share-based payments (continued)
Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect (if any) of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 23 TEE€HBEME o

(continued)

Securities borrowing and lending agreements
The Group has engaged in the securities borrowing and lending
business with financial institutions and the Group’s customers,
under which all transactions are secured in the form of cash. The
Group maintains no net position in such securities borrowing and
lending transactions and is not subject to significant price risk.
However, under the securities borrowing and lending arrangements,
the cash collateral received and cash collateral placed is included
in the accounts payable and accounts receivable from brokers
and dealers respectively. Fees received or paid in connection with
securities borrowing and lending is recorded as interest income or
interest expense, respectively.

Assets sold under repurchase agreements (repos)

In addition, the Group may enter into repurchase agreements
whereby securities are sold to third parties with a concurrent
agreement to repurchase the securities at a specified date. The
Group may be required to provide additional collateral based on the
fair value of the underlying assets if necessary.

Assets purchased under agreements to resell
(reverse repos)

The Group may enter into purchases of assets under agreements
to resell. Reverse repos are initially recorded at the cost of the loan
or collateral advanced in the consolidated statement of financial
position. These securities are not recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position as the counterparty
retains substantially all risks and returns of the securities. In the
event of failure by the counterparty to repay the loan, the Group
has the right to the underlying assets.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 23 TEE€HBEME o

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the currency translation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 23 TE&SHBEME o)

(continued)
Related parties B S
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETIERT - —AHRSEAR
SE B
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s (@ #ZABUTALTHUATAL
family and that person KGR OIS -
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; () PRk ERESAER
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEEEEAFEN
57
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (il AAKBEHIAEETAQ
Group or of a parent of the Group; AMEZEEREKS
or 54
(o) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions b)) ZARFE TIEMIEEN
applies: T
(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZERBHEASEEBR—
group; SEMKERA
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy —FAERAS—EE(X
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of S—EBNTAR) K
the other entity); BAAEREKBA T)
WS QNRIHEER
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same (i) ZEBRASEHAER
third party; —FE=FMEERA
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy —HERBRE=1E®
entity is an associate of the third entity; NWEERA ME—F
BAZE=-"FETENE
E/NCIIE
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) ZELEREERREEFN
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity g ZEEmEa AR
related to the Group; REEHEREEEH

MEEBNES
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 23 TEE€HBEME o

(continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the provisions for
income and other taxes. There are transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which the determination is made.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The
carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax
losses as at 31 December 2021 was amounted to HK$188.1 million
(2020: HK$64.4 million). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at
31 December 2021 was approximately nil (2020: nil). Further details
are contained in note 15 to the financial statements.

Impairment allowances on financial assets

The measurement of ECL allowance under HKFRS 9 across all
categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular,
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
and collateral values when determining ECL allowance and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in
different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the
expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition. The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis. Further details are
contained in note 16 to the financial statements.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and fair value through other comprehensive income

The fair value of financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss that are not traded in an active market is determined
by using external valuations or valuation techniques. The Group
uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each reporting date.
Valuation techniques used include the use of comparable recent
arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flows analysis, option
pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by
other market participants. Changes in assumptions on the valuation
techniques could affect the reported fair values of these financial
assets. Further details are contained in notes 20 and 41 to the
financial statements.

Operating segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the Group’s senior executive
management and in accordance with HKFRSs. The Group’s
operating businesses are structured and managed separately
according to the nature of their operations and the services they
provide. Each of the Group’s operating segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers services which are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of the other operating
segments.
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4.

Operating segment information (continuea)

The institutional investor services segment provides financial
services to corporations, governments and financial institutions.
The wealth management segment provides a comprehensive
financial services and solutions to individual investors and small
to medium-sized businesses and family office. In preparing the
segment information for the year ended 31 December, 2021, the
executive directors considered that the business relating to wealth
management, institutional investor services, corporate finance
services, investment management are considered a separate
reportable segments. Accordingly, the comparative information has
been re-presented to achieve a consistent presentation.

Details of each of the operating segments are as follows:

(@) wealth management provides a comprehensive financial
services and solutions to individual investors and small
to medium-sized businesses and family office including:
brokerage, loans and financing and other wealth management
services;

(b) institutional investor services provide market making,
investments, structured product solutions, lending and
other services to corporations, governments and financial
institutions;

(c) corporate finance services provide advisory services, placing
and underwriting services of debts and equity securities;

(d) investment management provides asset management and
fund management services to institutions and individuals, and
also includes investment in funds, debts and equity securities;
and

(e) the “others” mainly represents rental income and the provision
of information channel services.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with reference to
the prices charged to third parties.
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4, BRERHLER »
The segment results of the Group for the years ended 31 December B 22021F %2020F12 8318 1k
2021 and 2020 are as follows: FE  AKENSHERNAT ¢
Year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2021%12A8318 1
FE
Institutional Corporate
Wealth Investor Finance  Investment
Management Services Services Management Others Total
BEREE XY
HEEE PR % PR % REEE Hits @zt

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET TET TET TET TET

Segment revenue and other income: 9 BRI A B At U 25

Commission and handling income £ R FEEWRA 705,752 182,065 617,194 121,068 - 1,626,079
Interest and coupon income FIERESKA 752,032 1,349,303 - 179,204 - 2,280,539
Net trading and investment income X 5 R E WA F 5 371,662 87,718 - (399,583) - 59,797
Other income H bl A - - - - 5,279 5,279
Total st 1,829,446 1,619,086 617,194 (99,311) 5279 3,971,694
Segment results NEEE 611,929 732,520 317,504 (374,307) - 1,287,646
Income tax expense EHAX (184,373)
Profit for the year FRmH 1,103,273
Other segment information: HHEER
Net loss allowance charge on loans & FEFER R B

and advances to customers BREERETE 27,694 170,602 - - - 198,296
Net loss allowance charge/(reversal) B4 IE B 18 &

on accounts receivable S/ (BE) F8 495 4,124 12,853 (10) - 17,462
Net loss allowance charge/(reversal) E & BEEFHEERE

on other financial assets S/ (BE) F8 (2,234) (3,145) = 8 = (5,371)

Loss allowance charge on financial R AFEFAEMEE

assets at fair value through other W HI S REEERE

comprehensive income g - 10,210 - - - 10,210
Depreciation nE 54,331 5,686 9,953 8,669 - 78,639
Finance costs BEKA 329,915 273,634 - 171,314 - 774,863
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. REFHER @
Year ended 31 December 2020 E £2020F12A318 Lt
E

Institutional Corporate

Wealth Investor Finance Investment
Management Services Services Management Others Total
BERESR rERE
NEEE k% k% REEE Hit Fob
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Segment revenue and other income: 73 =B A T 4t U 2
Commission and handling income RERFEBRA 571,176 227,304 609,281 155,911 - 1,563,672
Interest and coupon income FIBREBWA 651,218 1,804,418 - 196,439 - 2,652,075
Net trading and investment income R 5 &% B WA F 5 226,822 136,766 1,200 292,417 = 657,205
Other income Hi g A - - - - 5,448 5,448
Total @t 1,449,216 2,168,488 610,481 644,767 5,448 4,878,400
Segment results DEEE 391,340 790,432 278,859 354,048 - 1,814,679
Income tax expense EERX (246,907)
Profit for the year FRE T 1,567,772
Other segment information: Hir D E&EH -
Net loss allowance charge on loans % TR EFR KK
and advances to customers FRBREXILER 56,917 295,567 - - - 352,484
Net loss allowance charge/(reversal) e R IE S B
on accounts receivable St/ (BE)F8 792 (1,228) 452 (538) = (522)
Net loss allowance charge/(reversal) EemEEBBERE
on other financial assets St/ (BE)FE 10,327 - - (424) = 9,003
Loss allowance charge on financial  ZAFEFFAEMEAE
assets at fair value through other haEnemEEBA
comprehensive income BB = 1,700 = = - 1,700
Depreciation & 51,775 3,145 8,394 5,545 - 68,859

Finance costs BEKK 439,550 315,891 = 74,815 = 830,256
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4. Operating segment information (continued)

Geographical information
(a) Revenue and other income from external customers
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BEFHER 2

1o 33, &
(@) SIEBEFIRAKE MK o

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET TABIT

Hong Kong BE 3,634,402 4,621,039
Other countries HiBER 337,292 257,361
3,971,694 4,878,400

The information of revenue and other income above is based
on the locations of the markets.

(b) Non-current assets

Majority of the non-current assets (excluding deferred tax
assets) of the Group are located in Hong Kong.

EXH A R B A Uz B B T iR
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5. Revenue 5. WA
The Group’s revenue is disaggregated as follows: RNREFBWWAMAD T :
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBET T
Fee and commission income (note (i) BEAREZHA (H3E0)
Brokerage SR 805,982 649,471
Corporate finance hEHE
Placing, underwriting and sub-underwriting B2 & ~ & &5 & 5 & R B £
commission
- Debt securities - EBES 402,848 461,737
— Equity securities - REES 118,845 85,055
Consultancy and financial advisory fee BEEEBEBHAERA
income 76,058 45,080
Asset management fee and performance  BEEIE S KEWE WA
fee income 106,015 153,508
Handling income on financial products STRMEMFEBRA 116,331 168,821
e 1,626,079 1,563,672
Interest income (note (i) FILE YA (BT aE i)
Interest and handling income from EPRHFARBMENTER
customers and counterparty financing FEEBRA 744,990 757,477
Interest income from banks and others RIT R EAMF B WA 125,269 250,178
Interest income from market making debt
securities MM EBESFERA 506,595 819,032
Interest income from fixed income securities & E 4% #5 75 % Fll 8 4 A 582,768 529,282
Interest income from financial products & EhE @A B U A 320,917 296,106
e 2,280,889 2,652,075
Trading and investments (note (ii)) X GRE (5 ))
Net trading loss from debt securities REBEBEFMMMHRZEE
market making Pk (71,280) (50,832)
Net trading income from fixed income REEEK=ZRZS - EEOF
securities, unconsolidated investment KREES fTAETARRKRAK
funds, derivatives and equity investments X&) F U A F5E 131,077 708,037
., 99,797 . 657,205
3,966,415 4,872,952
Note (i): Revenue arising from customer contracts under HKFRS 15 BEEEG) : IRIZE B B 15 & 2 BI 5515557 2k
BHEFEHNELEMBKA

Note (ii): Revenue arising from other sources B SEG) ¢ E b 2RRE AR WA




Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R 3R M RE

31 December 2021
2021 12A31H

6.

BEREZEZEAR | 202155k 207

Staff costs 6. BEITHA

2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TABIT

Staff costs (including directors’ BEIRA(BEESHE) :

remuneration):

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e B4 MR 782,661 1,112,330

Share-based compensation expense VAR {7 £ EL 0 00 5 B R 2
— Share option scheme (note 31) - BEREE & (FFFE31) 1,462 6,239
— Share award scheme (note 32) - & fn 22 Eh T & (P 5E32) 6,314 19,223
Pension scheme contributions BRIRE B 12,997 10,918
803,434 1,148,710

Finance costs 7. ®ERAK

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TABIT
Bank borrowings and overdrafts SRITER MBS 142,843 335,288
Debt securities in issue BETERRES 355,507 280,078
Securities borrowing and lending BHEE 1,933 2,319
Repurchase agreements o] B 19 5 61,497 148,218
Short selling of debt securities BEEBEBES 208,806 61,637
Lease liabilities HEEBE 1,292 1,353
Others HAth 2,985 1,363
774,863 830,256




208 Guotai Junan International | Annual Report 2021

Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R 3R M RE

31 December 2021
2021 12A31H

8. Profit before tax 8.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BR Bt B % A

AEBEBRB AT SN D&M,

GFA) AT REERFH

2021 2020
202145 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Auditor’s remuneration Z BT B
(i) audit services (i) =SB 2,280 2,325
(i) interim review (i) AR EAZRR 1,010 1,008
(i) Compliance and other consultancy (i) &R EHAM
services B AR 2,348 3,016
Foreign exchange differences, net SNEEF =R 6,750 (61,944)
Other commission expenses EM AR 64,961 45,371
Information services expenses &R S 51,611 45,398
Marketing, advertising and promotion MZHRE BEE R
expenses EETH 9,348 10,135
Professional and consultancy fee HERABE 107,233 137,118
Repair and maintenance (including system He(E N
maintenance) (BIERGHE) 81,874 65,211
Net loss allowance charge on loans and BRTEFERRBR
advances to customers B8 B S R 5E 198,296 352,484
Net loss allowance charge/(reversal) on FERRIBEERE S
accounts receivable (#E)F58 17,462 (522)
Net loss allowance (reversal)/charge on Hih S mh & EBEEE
other financial assets (BE) X HFH (5,371) 9,903
Loss allowance charge on financial assets AT EEAEA
at fair value through other comprehensive FHBENSREE Y
income EBEAEHX N 10,210 1,700
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9. Income tax expense

9. FIEBIRAX

EANNEGHR IR ERNERBELDN
(hEHE R TR LT 216.5% (2020
% :16.5%) B -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year.

2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T4

Current — Hong Kong BVE — &/
- Charge for the year —FRRAX 162,388 103,342
— Under provision in prior years —BAFEERETR 821 11,630
Deferred (note 15) PRI (Fi5E15) 21,164 131,935
Total tax charge for the year FANFHIERAT B 184,373 246,907

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
using the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate

BEREEBRE Z RGN E 2R
HEREREREREXAEZHEERZ

is as follows: HERAR ¢

2021 2020
20214 20204F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit before tax B 350 B 1 1,287,646 1,814,679

Tax at the statutory tax rate at 16.5% AT R16.5%TH 2
(2020: 16.5%) 18 (20204 : 16.5%) 212,462 299,422
Under provision in prior years BEFEREBETR 821 11,630
Income not subject to tax BAERTBA (43,127) (146,290)
Expenses not deductible for tax DB AEZ 31,338 82,149
Tax losses utilised EBAHIEEE (19,079) =
Temporary difference not recognised RERERE5 1,958 (4)
Tax charge for the year FAHIERLZ 184,373 246,907
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10. Dividends

10. R E
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAIT
Interim, paid — HK$0.05 FH - BT -8R
(2020: HK$0.034) per ordinary share I M A%0.0578 7T
(20204 : 0.034%7T) 480,950 326,985
Less: Dividend for shares held under the W AR B PR R EET &
Company’s share award scheme H AR B AR B (881) (1,251)
e 480,069 325,734
Final, proposed — HK$0.01 RE - R -8R
(2020: HK$0.051) per ordinary share L MA%0.018 T
(20204 : 0.051%7T) 96,190 490,479
Less: Dividend for shares held under the W AR B IR R EET &
Company’s share award scheme IH AR B AR B - (943)
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 96,190 489,536
576,259 815,270

The Company paid a final dividend of approximately HK$489,670,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020, as further adjusted to include the dividend

for shares issued under the share option scheme
amounting to HK$134,000.

and share award scheme

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

KA A B IR & £2020F12 4318
IEFE 2 REFAR B 49489,670,0007%
T ERPEE—SELABRAGTR
ARBRIBIEERE B R AR (D5
B &t &1 3 17 /9 iR 15 A% 2.134,0007%

JT ©

FARIK RS

AR AR

REERRBFERE LH4E - TR

1FHE -
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11. Earnings per share attributable to ordinary 11. B A AIZERBREELL
equity holders of the parent BREF
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are SIREERESER T E T ER
based on:
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is as follows: FRERBREOFE T EOT
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
Profit attributable to ordinary equity B N ) 5 A% A% R PE A s A
holders of the parent (in HK$'000) (AFHETat) 1,094,743 1,562,587
Weighted average number of ordinary BT E BRI F 5
shares in issue less shares held for Bt BB B
the share award scheme (in ’000) RMED (LATFET) 9,604,635 9,268,622
Basic earnings per share (in HK cents) FREARZF (LABIE) 11.4 16.9
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) SREBEEF
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the SREERZNTDIEGRAE
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of BRI R EEFERERNGE -
the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares ST E AT B A B I 0
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in BHEDNEFESEREXRRZF
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share FTERBAMFREBETEZARK
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary HE UNBEABEEES
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive TRKREEBRMETHNER

ordinary shares. AR hn#E 3 £ -
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11. Earnings per share attributable to ordinary 11. 8 A G & &R R EE (L

equity holders of the parent (continued) BERER 2
(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued) (b) BEREXRER &)
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is as follows: FIREERFATE RN
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Profit attributable to ordinary equity &R 7] 3 A% A% R P A A
holders of the parent (in HK$'000) (AFABTTEr) 1,094,743 1,662,587
Weighted average number of ordinary AR E R EREF|
shares in issue less shares held for HEZETEERA
the share award scheme used in the INAE 39 0R L AR 19
basic earnings per share calculation HENE B A R R 5
(in "000) (BAF&) 9,604,635 9,268,622
Effect of dilution — weighted average Bexr® —TERrME
number of ordinary shares: I
Share options under the share BT BB T g Ax e
option scheme (in '000) (AF3ET) 799 1,297
Awarded shares under the share A& (n 82 ET 2118 T /9 22 )
award scheme (in '000) & a2 (AT &) 4,777 15,603

Number of ordinary shares for the

purpose of the diluted earnings per REREERANTFEMSH

share calculation (in '000) TP EE CATFED) 9,610,211 9,285,522
Diluted earnings per share SlEERT (LUBLE)

(in HK cents) 11.4 16.8
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12. Property, plant and equipment 12. % -BERRE
Right of use assets
ERERE
Furniture
Office and Leasehold Motor Leasehold
equipment fixtures  Buildings improvements  vehicles  Sub-total land  Buildings  Sub-total Total
HBAZE AR BENE BE

& %E B% 3 RE it 1 B¥ it @it
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TET TET TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

31 December 2021 20215128318
As at 1 January 2021 1202151 A1A
Cost KA 158,210 6,960 81,999 46,945 3,069 297,183 481,832 73,149 554,981 852,164
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (12615 (6331)  (23736)  (42,952)  (3048) (188,682  (137,658)  (49.900)  (187,558)  (376,240)
Net carrying amount REHE 45,595 629 58,263 3,993 21 108,501 344,174 23249 367,423 475,924
Opening net carrying amount FNEEFE 45,595 629 58,263 3,993 21 108,501 344,174 23,249 367,423 475,924
Additions RE 37,621 90 - 5,165 - 42,876 - 74,599 74,599 117,475
Exchange realignment SMEHE 67 - - ) - 64 - 2 2 93
Depreciation charged during ERfTE

the year (29,319) (53 (2199 (3879 @) (35947 (12988 (29704 (42,692  (78,639)
Closing net carrying amount FREAFE 53,965 183 56,064 5,282 - 115,494 331,186 68,173 399,359 514,853
As at 31 December 2021 R20215128318
Cost K& 208,507 6,918 81,999 52,090 3,069 352,583 481,832 91,834 573,666 926,249
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (154,542) (6,735) (25,935) (46,808) (3,069)  (237,089)  (150,646) (23,661)  (174,307)  (411,396)

Net carrying amount REFE 53,965 183 56,064 5,282 - 115,494 331,186 68,173 399,359 514,853
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- . hY 172 e —
12. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 12. % -BERSERE =
Right of use assets
ERERE
Furniture
Office and Leasehold Motor Leasehold
equipment fixtures  Buildings improvements vehicles  Sub-total land  Buildings  Sub-total Total
EYN-S iR BENX HE
EC KB 53 3 & it i) B Nt @it

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAL TAT TATL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TEL

31 December 2020 2020%12R318
As at 1 January 2020 ®202061A1A
Cost KA 126,819 6,797 81,999 45,848 3,069 264,632 481,832 72,919 554,751 819,283
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTE (92,628) (5,736) (21,538) (38,832) (2997)  (161,731)  (124,670) (23,943 (148,613) (310,344
Net carrying amount REFE 34,191 1,061 60,461 7,016 72 102,801 357,162 48,976 406,138 508,939
Opening net carrying amount FNEEFE 34,191 1,061 60,461 7,016 72 102,801 357,162 48,976 406,138 508,939
Additions RE 35,315 166 = 1,111 = 36,592 - 220 220 36,812
Exchangs realignment HERE 13 = = Ul = 6 = ) (8) 22)
Depreciation charged during ERTE

the year (22,978) (9 (2198  (4120) () (995) (12988 (25919  (38907)  (68,859)
Disposals HE (946) - - - - (946) - - - (946)
Closing net carrying amount EREMFE 45,595 629 58,263 3,993 21 108,501 344,174 23,249 367,423 475,924
As at 31 December 2020 #2020F12831A
Cost 1 158,210 6,960 81,999 46,945 3,069 297,183 481,832 73,149 554,981 852,164
Accumulated depreciation 23T E (112,615) (6,331) (23,736) (42,952) (3,048)  (188,682)  (137,658) (49,9000  (187,558)  (376,240)

Net carrying amount REFE 45,595 629 58,263 3,993 21 108,501 344,174 23,249 367,423 475924
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13. Goodwill and other intangible assets 13. HERHMERLEE

Trading rights Goodwill Total
R BEES Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T 7T T4

Net carrying amounts BREFE
As at 1 January 2020 R2020%F1 818 1,913 20,473 22,386
Additions NE 500 - 500
As at 31 December 2020 R2020F12H31H 2,413 20,473 22,886
Trading rights Goodwill Total
REE (G et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET THET

Net carrying amounts RHEFE

As at 1 January and R2021%F1 A1H &

31 December 2021 12H31H 2,413 20,473 22,886

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had three trading
rights in the Stock Exchange and one trading right in The Hong
Kong Futures Exchange Limited. The intangible assets are not
amortised as they have no expiry date.

R20214F K2020F12 8318 » K&
EREAERBIAN A ELE
BHERZHMAER AN —ERXS
e AR EDE A - A
mAE -
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13. Goodwill and other intangible assets 13. HERHMELEE @

(continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the Guotai Junan Securities (Vietnam) Corporation (“GJSV”)
cash-generating unit for impairment testing. The recoverable
amount of GJSV has been determined based on the value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections covering a five-year period
approved by the management. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 11% (2020: 11%) which is determined
based on the past business performance, the management’s
expectation of the market development and future business plan.
The discount rate used reflects specific risks relating to GJSV and
have taken into account of the risk of business uncertainties in the
foreseeable future.

EmERENR
BREGCAHESNBESIRS
BHRELZHFSF (BE) BRH A A
(BHRELZEFEH (Bm)]) BeE
ABEMARBRENR BRELE
F (M) ke SEHERERE
BifEET BEHTERBERERE
REZHRERFHRESABA -]
& 7t TEORI BT A B3R R B11% (2020
F11%)  EDERBEEBEX
R EEEBHMBERSEH KKK
REEBET - FTAAER XX
BHRZLZEH (BE) HEFTR
B ERERRARAKRRANEST
e E IR o

14. Other assets 14. Htt &=
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Basic contribution of the guarantee fund SN TFTEARREES
paid to Hong Kong Securities Clearing RARI([BBHEE]
Company Limited (“HKSCC") B (REE H & A K 800 867
Deposits with Stock Exchange: REERPTEIR S :
— Compensation fund —HEES 150 150
- Fidelity fund —ERE® 150 150
— Stamp duty deposit —EfERize 500 500
Admission fee paid to HKSCC SR TEBEENEAE 150 150
Reserve fund with The SEHK Options REBBAXIMPEGEE
as ref Clearing House Limited BERARINHEES 19,520 3,387
Settlement Risk Fund paid to the YN TEBELFRFH
Shanghai Stock Exchange HERRES 245 238
Deposit with HKFE Clearing Corporation REBSPELEEBRAF
Limited iR e 3,000 3,000
License deposit with the Monetary RETINE & B EE R
Authority of Singapore HRiZ e 577 586
Statutory deposit with Hanoi Stock RARNEHR S TH
Exchange EEAF K 2,867 2,585
27,959 11,6183

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other assets approximate to

their fair values.

AEEEMEAENEEERLAT

BE%E -
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15. Deferred tax 15. IE B 1H
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year FNELEHBAELEESEHEOT :

are as follows:

Losses available

for offsetting
Accelerated tax against future Share-based
depreciation taxable profits Fair value loss compensation ~ ECL allowance Total
ESi
ARBERR NG R BHER
MBHERE HER ATEERR EBmEMN BAEE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAR TAR TAR TER TER
At 1 January 2020 202051 A1 (3,679 62,631 (45,352) 4,220 247,067 264,887
Deferred tax credited/(charged)  FMEZEFA / (06)
to profit or loss BERHE (3,443) 1,776 115,113 (2,721) (242,660) (131,935)
At 31 December 2020 and at 20205124310 &
1 January 2021 R2021%1 818 (7,122) 64,407 69,761 1,499 4,407 132,952
Deferred tax credited/(charged)  FMEaETA/ (1K)
to profit or loss EEHE (1,490) 123,684 (143,654) (1,499) 1,79 (21,164)
At 31 December 2021 R2021% 125318 (8612 188,001 (73,893) = 6,202 111,788
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a EEETEENA AN IBEEE
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current HAHREEEEEEELERSH
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same W hE—F ISR - B A iR iE
taxation authority. The deferred income tax assets and liabilities FTEMEAEEBEDREE - EE
are to be utilised and settled after one year and the following FEMEERBEBEBR —F%& T
amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the BRARGEE N ES AEE K
consolidated statement of financial position. HEEBETHNSBAEES TBRAR
KA -
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET 78T
Deferred tax assets EXERBAEE 157,631 150,880
Deferred tax liabilities BEHRIBEE (45,843) (17,928)

111,788 132,952
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15.

16.

Deferred tax (continued)

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.3, the
Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative
tax losses of HK$1,139.9 million (2020: 390.3 million) as it is
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant jurisdiction and entity. The
tax losses do not expire under the current tax legislation.

15.

EERIE (2)

BIRT T2 3FTH & AT B - AEE
MEFFIEEIE1,1830.98 &8 T
(20204F : 390.3F BB T) R IE
EREEE  ERAEAEER X
BR8] AL R R B ER T 0w A K 8 R
EEE-BEZHH L HIEEE
WAREIH -

Loans and advances to customers 16. e FTEFHNERRERK
2021 2020

20214 20204F

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FHET FET

Margin loans HFRE®R 16,644,045 15,522,931
Term loans to customers BTYTRFPFHTHER 1,245,143 488,418
IPO Loans BHAXAAREBEEER - 1,429,100
Less: Loss allowance B B R (2,034,501) (1,836,205)
15,854,687 15,604,244

Loans and advances are categorised into “excellent”, “good”, “fair”
and “individually impaired”. Excellent refers to exposures which
margin obligation are consistently met and the payment of principal
and interest is not in doubt, collaterals provided are highly liquid
and of good quality. Good refers to exposures which principal
and interest are fully secured but collaterals provided are at a
relatively lower quality where shortfall may be recorded when there
is a significant drop in collateral value. Fair refers to exposures
which principal and interest are fully secured but the quality of
the collateral is deteriorating, shortfall would be expected when
the collateral value continues to deteriorate. Individually impaired
refers to exposures which loss, partial or full, has incurred and with
insufficient collateral.

ERRBROBELRIES] TR
] TEB] R [MERRE] -BF
FERBETHARAEEREAZMFAE
MRAERE - iRt EFmA
EernBUERRFMENAR R
MFEAEMA S 2 A KA ERHK
MERREEEYSE  BEAm
EEAE KK A LR GRENR
o HREASMANE A ER
BEEMMREEEEEE BEAS
EEFETKREDRESRENR
B2 o BRI ERC ELR D HEHK
EREEEAERDORR -
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 16. 8 FEFHNERRKRER

(%&)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount as at 31 December by the BEAREBANBEZETR N EKRDLE
Group’s internal credit rating and year end classification: B2 A31 B EEE B E ST ¢
2021 20214
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

REERE BfRERE
12/ A A NEHED NEHED

FRBX EREX EREX At
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(B—RBE) (B=fEE) (EF=RR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal rating grade W EB AR THERT FTHET THET THERT
Performing E#
Excellent 8% 15,727,974 - - 15,727,974
Good Rif - - - -
Fair Lim - - - -
Non-performing TR
Individually impaired (ERNEETEY - - 2,161,214 2,161,214
15,727,974 - 2,161,214 17,889,188
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 16. 8 FEFHNERRKRER

(%)
2020 20204
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

RMEERE BEREERE
1218 A & 8 GO REE GO BER

EREBX EREX EREX st
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(B—FEE) (BZRRER) (B=RE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
Internal rating grade BT R FHAL FHAL THAIL THIL
Performing 3
Excellent B5 14,598,692 = - 14,598,692
Good BRI 698,159 = = 698,159
Fair B - - - -
Non-performing TR
Individually impaired (ERINERTEY - - 2,143,598 2,143,598

15,296,851 = 2,143,598 17,440,449
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued) 16. 8 FEFHNERRKRER

(&)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL BEAAE R MEETEBA{= I L B
allowance is as follows: AT
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

REERE EfEERE
1218 A & 54 NEHEY NEHES

EREX EEE-FS EREX st
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(B—PEE) (B=FERR) (B=BR)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET THET THET
Gross carrying amount as at 20201 F1B /Y
1 January 2020 REAE 11,129,230 - 2,070,393 13,199,623
New assets originated, purchased EE4L - BB ERMHEE
or assets transferred ROHENEE 8,721,335 - 23,958 8,745,293
Assets derecognised or repaid B IFERKEEEN
BE (4,407 ,906) - (96,561)  (4,504,467)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 MFE—EHREAZE
F=BER (145,808) - 145,808 -
Gross carrying amount as at R2020F 12 A31H K&
31 December 2020 and as at 1 R2021F1 F1 BRI
January 2021 maE 15,296,851 - 2,143,598 17,440,449
New assets originated, purchased DEL  CHEEMHEE
or assets transferred FEERNEE 7,984,019 - 36,697 8,020,716
Assets derecognised or repaid  ERIFERKEEEN
BE (7,552,896) - (19,081) (7,571,977)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 MFE—EHREAZE
F[EE - - - -

Gross carrying amount as at R2021F12A31HE
31 December 2021 REAE 15,727,974 - 2,161,214 17,889,188
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16. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

16. 8 FTEFNERRER

(%)
The movements in the ECL allowance on loans and advances to WMFEEHERLR B RTEHR=RE
customers are as follows: RHBEEBMOT -
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
REERE BEERHE
1218 A 12 278 5 M2 H TR
EHREX EREX EREX @zt
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(B—FER) (B=FERR) (B=MEE)
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET FET FTER
ECL allowance as at 7202051 H1B KT8 Hf
1 January 2020 EREXES (7,193) - (1,476,528) (1,483,721)
New assets originated or BELSEEEN
purchased HEE (715) = - (715)
Assets derecognised or repaid  ERIFHERSKEEEN
BE 138 - 1 139
Changes to risk parameters ElEE 6L 4,793 - (356,701) (351,908)
ECL allowance as at 20205 12A318 &
31 December 2020 and 2021F1A1EH
1 January 2021 BHERERERE (2,977) - (1,833,228) (1,836,205)
New assets originated or BEAREBEN
purchased MEE - - (799) (799)
Assets derecognised or repaid ~ ERIFERKEEEN
BE 1,756 - 7 1,763
Changes to risk parameters Gy L) (774) = (198,486) (199,260)
ECL allowance as at #2021%E12A31 B #Y
31 December 2021 RECRBELES (1,995) - (2,032,506) (2,034,501)

The contractual amount outstanding on loans and advances
to customers have been written off but were still subject to

enforcement activity was nil at 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

R2021F12H31H © & i 518 1)
BETRHPETHNGE TEFPH

ERRBROKREES

(20205 : &) o
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16. 8 FTEFNERRER

16. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

Margin financing operations

The Group provides customers with margin financing for securities
transactions, which are secured by customers’ securities held as
collateral. The maximum credit limit granted for each customer is
based on the customer’s financial background and the quality of
related collateral. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit and risk management
department to monitor credit risks.

Margin loans to the customers are secured by the underlying
pledged securities, bear interest at a rate with reference to the
Hong Kong dollar prime rate and are repayable on demand. The
carrying value of margin loans approximates to their fair value. No
ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, an
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature
of the margin loans business. The amount of credit facilities granted
to margin clients is determined by the discounted market value of
the collateral securities accepted by the Group. As at 31 December
2021, the total value of securities pledged as collateral in respect
of the margin loans was approximately HK$58,946 million (2020:
HK$48,183 million) based on the market value of the securities as
at the end of the reporting period.

Term loans to customers

The Group also provides term loans to customers. In determining
the interest rates, reference is made to the credit standing of
the relevant customers and the quality and value of the collateral
pledged. The term loans granted to customers amounted to
HK$1,210,522,000 (2020: HK$456,128,000), and the accrued
interest amounted to HK$34,621,000 (2020: HK$32,290,000) as
at 31 December 2021. The carrying amounts of the term loans to
customers approximate to their fair values.

(&)

FRBEXRK
AEERELHFRHATFRHEATR
BE UEPHNEZFFHIERMMmE
R -BREFPERNEREERE
TIAR PGS S RAAFFARE
HmMERRELE - AEERRE
B E KRB (B R W R B B AR R I
WA TEE REREEBFISEE
EERR -

BTEFHNAREFRAERBD KT
BEER  BRBBEBSTRERRNE
EEMMEGFE  WHRERKEE-
FREFNEEREREE A FEE
E-HREEFRE ERFREXR
EBOME Rk DM T2 RHE
BINMEE - B =R DT -
RTHAREFHNEEMERIIRE
AEEEZEMANEBRBZ AR MEE
JE o R2021F12H31H ' tEAHE
EXEHRNERBBZEREN A
58,9468 & /& 7t (20204 : 48,183
BEBT) WHEEHFREESH
ROTEFESD °

HTFEFNEHER
REBTRAZEFREEHER - B
EEMEE g2ZHEREFHNE
TEEE AR A R BT & 3R A R 4R
= NMEE - R2021F12A31BK T
ZEEREHERA21,210,522,000
75 7T (20204F : 456,128,000/ 7T) -
HE s A S & 34,621,000 7T
(20204 : 32,290,000/ 7T) ° 4 T
EFNTETHERNEEEREEL AT
(EREEER




224 Guotai Junan International | Annual Report 2021

Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R 3R M RE

31 December 2021
2021 12A31H

17. Loans to directors 17. 8 FTESBHNER
Loans to directors, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the R AE B A B K F) 5383(1)(0) 15 A
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies ANE(BBEBESHNZER) HEIES
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, WP F  KREFBRLTEESHNERE
are as follows: =T
Maximum Maximum
amount At 31 amount
At 31 outstanding December outstanding At
December during the 2020 and 1 during the 1 January
Name 2021 year  January 2021 prior year 2020  Collateral held
#2020
12A31H
R2021% ERER R20215% EERNRSE 120205
#e 12A31H KEEEH 1A1R REEEH 1818 KRERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TER THET TER TET
Mr. LI Guangjie (note(i)) = 525 525 9,726 - Marketable securities
FRALE (W) REES
Ms. QI Haiying = - = 4,189 - Marketable securities
WeERT EEES
Mr. WONG Tung Ching (note(i) = - = 3,029 - Marketable securities
B S BEES
The loans granted to directors bear interest range from Hong Kong BRYEENERNEBSTREEA
dollar prime rate +/- 3% per annum depending on risk assessment KN BB EI%TE - BFEE UK
on collateral received and the facilities were granted to the directors R ZHRETEEmE  EFETE
for a period of 3 years ended on 31 December 2020 and renewed EvRELE  BELZHEEE2020
for a period of 3 months ended on 31 March 2021. F12A31B It EE AHIEREE
20213 H31 R IEFE EH&3ME A H
fR e
Note (i): Mr. WONG Tung Ching and Mr. LI Guangjie resigned as executive director Miax() : EXBFTLRERTHANEEDBE
with effective from 14 December 2021. HITES » H2021F128 148 #
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18.

Accounts receivable

The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course
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18. EWFIE

ARG B X BIR T T E £ M BIAK

of business of the Group are as follows: HBREESAT
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Accounts receivable arising from brokerage 4% 42 % 75 & It 3k 18
— cash and custodian clients - RERTAERF 64,814 110,705
— the Stock Exchange and other — B A T R EL A
clearing houses EERT 3,195,809 1,642,743
- brokers and dealers —RERZ 5 2,786,524 2,800,396
Accounts receivable arising from insurance R 48 42 IR 75 & Uk 5B
brokerage services
— cash and custodian clients —“BERAERP 4 5
Accounts receivable arising from securities & % fi & 2 75 & I A
borrowing and lending
— brokers and dealers —BERR 5 419,506 720,545
Accounts receivable arising from corporate M ¥fhE - EEEIE -
finance, asset management, financial SREM - MMk
products, market making and investments & & 3 7 & I UE
- corporate clients, investment funds and —1H¥EF - &E
others Ee RHM 117,538 371,455
6,584,195 5,645,849
Less: Loss allowance W BEEE (24,514) (7,052)
6,559,681 5,638,797
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. FEUW R IE ()
The movements in the impairment allowance on accounts receivable FEWZFERERESESHWOT

are as follows:

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

At 1 January M®1A1H 7,052 7,574

Loss allowance charged to profit or loss FANFFABEREE

during the year B 17,816 1,177
Loss allowance reversed during the year FAEE R EERE (354) (1,699)
At 31 December W12A31H 24,514 7,052
The contractual amount outstanding on accounts receivable have R20216F12831H  EMEEEDA
been written off but were still subject to enforcement activity was nil TR HIETTE A EU R IBRE

at 31 December 2021 (2020: nil). BANSTEAEZ (2020F : E) o
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. EWFIE (&)
The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course 7N £ B S 75 B T2 R BT EE A HY FE R R
of business of the Group are as follows: EREBEENT
31 December 2021 2021§12A31H
Accounts
receivable
Accounts Accounts from
receivable receivable corporate Accounts
from cash  from the Stock Accounts clients, receivable
and Exchange and receivable investment from
custodian  other clearing  from brokers funds and insurance
clients houses and dealers others brokerage Total
B R BER PEEF Rig
RERAE At E 258 REEER RREH
RFEWTE Bl A EhFmE HtERE WA @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET THET TER TER TER
Gross carrying amount BERE 64,814 3,195,809 3,206,030 117,538 4 6,584,195
Less: impairment B RE
- Stage 1 -F—[RE& (32) (1,499) (5,198) N/A &R = (6,724)
- Stage 2 -F_RR ) - - N/A iR - (3)
- Stage 3 = (453) - - N/A &R - (453)
- Simplified approach -B5E N/A R N/A R N/A FiE R (17,334) N/A &R (17,334)

64,326 3,194,310 3,200,837 100,204 4 6,559,681
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18. Accounts receivable (continued)
31 December 2020

18.

PE WL FRIE ()
2020512831 H

Accounts
receivable
Accounts Accounts from
receivable receivable corporate Accounts
from cash  from the Stock Accounts clients, receivable
and  Exchange and receivable investment from
custodian  other clearing from brokers funds and insurance
clients houses and dealers others brokerage Total
BeR B2 R &aRk rEZP R
TEER &S RPEE REEER R
Y5 FTRE ISR WioE  AfbEREE EYFE EE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TATL TR TBT T THT
Gross carrying amount BREE 110,705 1,642,743 3,520,941 371,455 5 5,645,849
Less: impairment B RE
- Stage 1 o 1 (55) (821) (1,312) N/A 7 = (2,188)
- Stage 2 -F-RR 2 - - NATER - 7
- Stage 3 - FRB (371) - - N/A 7@ - (871)
- Simplified approach @5 N/A R E N/A R EH N/A @A (4,491) N/A 7 E (4,491)
110,277 1,641,922 3,519,629 366,964 5 5,638,797

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients represent
unsettled client trades on various securities exchanges transacted
on the last two to three business days prior to the end of the
reporting year. When the cash and custodian clients fail to settle
on the settlement date, the Group has the rights to force-sell the
collateral underlying the securities transactions. The collateral held
against these receivables is publicly traded securities. The loss
allowance is made after taking into consideration the recoverability
from the collateral. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the
opinion of the directors, an ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of these accounts receivable.

RBeLAERFPHEEKEAEERERE
BEFERZANREME =ET
EFRARETREZFRZZAETHAR
BEEFPXRP —BREEFAEER
FRENGERENKE  AKH
Bt HEEFR HEMN KR
fn o &t ¥ 52 % R U TR IR H5 A HO 1R 4R
mRARARRZES  BREFES
BHEMRDOAKREEEREL - EF
RE ARNZFEBEFENKEE
Rk DT A& H REIMEE  #R
WBEEARE D -
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18. Accounts receivable (continueq) 18. EWFIE (&)
Analysis of the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL KA S NIEERE PR EWIE 2
allowance of accounts receivable arising from brokerage of cash BEEEE RAETEE = BB EAEE
and custodian clients are as follows: MR :
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

AMEERE EREERE
128 AR NEHES NEHES

EREX EHEX HEEPS @
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(F-KR) (B=PER) (B=RE&)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET
Gross carrying amount as at 120201 A1H &)
1 January 2020 BREE 40,158 - 221 40,374
New assets originated, purchased B EX - EREMNTEE
or assets transferred NEEENEE 109,818 7 58 109,883
Assets derecognised or repaid ERIEERABER
WEE (39,552) - - (39,552)
Transfer of stages BYRRER (96) 4 92 =
Gross carrying amount as at 202012431 H }
31 December 2020 and as at 1 2021451 A1H K
January 2021 BEEE 110,323 11 371 110,705
New assets originated, purchased or EE%L  EBENHEE
assets transferred JEERNEE 60,512 5 67 60,584
Assets derecognised or repaid BERIEBAZEER
MEE (106,467) - 8) (106,475)
Transfer of stages BBEE (20) () 23 -
Gross carrying amount as at 2021412 A31H A

31 December 2021 BERAE 64,348 13 453 64,814
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. EUWFKIE (&)
The movements in the ECL loss allowance of accounts receivable KIS NI ERE PR EWRIER
arising from brokerage of cash and custodian clients are as follows: JEEE Bk B EEEEES Y W
™ :
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

AMEERE EREERE
128 AR NEHES NEHES

EREX EHEX HEEPS @
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(F—F&) (F-KR) (B=RE&)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET TET TET
ECL allowance as at 1202051 B1HA/
1 January 2020 BHERBLER (20) = (183) (203)
New assets originated BEELEZEEEN
or purchased HEE (46) 2 (122) (170)
Assets derecognised or repaid ERIEERABER
WEE 20 - 1 21
Changes to risk parameters B2 %E ) = (67) (76)
ECL allowance as at R2020F12A31H K
31 December 2020 and 2021F1 A1 A K
1 January 2021 HHGREXEE (55) @) (371) (428)
New assets originated BEAZEEEN
or purchased nEE (30) () (42) (75)
Assets derecognised or repaid ERIERRABER
MEE 29 2 10 41
Changes to risk parameters BR2EEE 24 = (50) (26)
ECL allowance as at 2021412 A31H A

31 December 2021 BHRERABRXERE (32) (3) (453) (488)
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. BN R IE ()

For accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other
clearing houses, brokers and dealers, and insurance brokerage, no
ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, an
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature
of these accounts receivable. None of the transfer of impairment
to different stages were made during the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds
arising from asset management, corporate finance, investment
holding and market making which have not yet been settled by
clients after the Group’s normal credit period. The credit rating and
reputation of the trade counterparties were considered as sound
for the past due accounts receivable from corporate clients and
investment funds.

HRBIFEEMEER &8 K&
R 58 DA R AR B & 40 /O B Uk 3R0E -
BEERE ARZEREKZFENE
g ERROM TS REIIMEE -
MABECWEED N REZE
20214F 202012 A1 B L& -
BESREEBEEIRAKE -

BEPRAKE —REEHERARE
ENEEEFRREESHEENK
H(EEBEEEE GXRE -
REEZEBREMT) HREXEFP
RREESNCBHEKFIE R
SHFHINEETREBERE R

REREMBMRRER B HREEH B

The ageing analysis of relevant trade receivables at the date of A
consolidated statement of financial position based on past due date HIME R E W E 5 NI ERE 95 M a0
is as follows: N
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T TATT
Not yet past due i A 80 H 48,412 346,409
Past due less than 1 month B HI— 8 A AR 3,076 3,017
Past due between 1 to 3 months BmE—Z=={EA 7,693 18,104
Past due over 3 months A =& H LA £ 58,357 3,925
Total RET 117,538 371,455

Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds
arising from asset management, corporate finance, investment
holding and market making using a provision matrix under
simplified approach. The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer
type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of
credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

AP EERBRBEREFENTE
EPREREESWENRFE(EL
BEEERE LtXERE REEK
K)o B R TIER K AEU
EER (AR R - EmEE -
BEPERRTIHR ULEREEE
HESIEHBEANEERR) 2&
BEEFPDBETY A BRI
AE A ERRBRNESER
SR ERBEAMREBBEES
- B AT MR R EAM R TR
AMBE BRI ESNAE R
HEER - —ME - WEKE SR
HEM—FA L AIMEERES
BIE - WA REIRITIEE AR
BR -
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. EUWFKIE (&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on NTRERBEREENARBA
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: EFHEWREZESFBEZ ZERRER :
2021 20214
Gross carrying

amount ECL Total

HMEEEE FEHERABX et

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FBT FHET

Not pass due i A 80 2 48,412 (22) 48,390

Past due less than 1 month E B — 1 A A A 3,076 (18) 3,058

Past due between 1 to 3 months #HI—Z= =1{& A 7,693 (1,536) 6,157

Past due over 3 months BE=E AN E 58,357 (15,758) 42,599

Total @t 117,538 (17,334) 100,204

2020 20204
Gross carrying

amount ECL Total

REEEME TEHEABEX KET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FA T FABIT FAIT

Not pass due i A 80 A 346,409 (78) 346,331

Past due less than 1 month 0 B — i A A A 3,017 (18) 2,999

Past due between 1 to 3 months #E—ZF =1 A 18,104 (3,621) 14,483

Past due over 3 months wAEI =& A LA £ 3,925 (774) 3,151

Total @t 371,455 (4,491) 366,964

19. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 19. AR ZE - Z € R H #b

=
P& W R IE

2021 2020

2021 % 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET TETT

Prepayments and deposits AN RERES 107,529 129,302

Interest receivables & U 71 8, 10,782 14,442

118,311 143,744
None of the above assets is either past due or credit-impaired. The bt & B B 4 e BR T 3 4 (= EOR
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables Bt A Lt S & EHm

for which there was no recent history of default. Him B AR E N R IE A R -
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20. Financial assets at fair value 20. RAFEFFENERMEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T TAT
Non-current FEMmED
Financial assets held for trading and BIEEERRKRENSREE
investments
— Unlisted fixed income securities — I ETEE W EFFH 4,106,706 5,878,878
— Unlisted convertible securities — JF b AT R A% 7 5 223,427 195,758
— Unlisted equity securities —JE LR AFEFH 1,823,797 730,985
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEFAEGENSREE
profit or loss
— Financial products (note (b)) — & #Em(HsEb)) 11,214,889 10,170,940
17,368,819 16,976,561
Current mE
Financial assets held for trading and BIEEBERIEER
investments TREE
— Unlisted fixed income securities —JF 1 B E Y A A 5 5,238,267 5,261,345
- Listed equity securities — ETRAE 1,166,283 1,439,070
— Listed debt securities — T EBES 8,218,544 15,683,053
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEABRH
profit or loss EEEE
— Unlisted fund investments (note (a)) —EEMESEE (Wik@) 2,370,084 1,986,769
— Other financial instruments —HMegITA 94,880 225,618
— Financial products (note (b)) — & FEm (b)) 20,384,420 29,341,149
37,472,478 53,937,004
Total financial assets at fair value through R AFEF ABRZN L 7
profit or loss BEBR 54,841,297 70,913,565
Financial assets at fair value through other & A F{E 5+ A H 4th & Uk 25
comprehensive income B & /& E
Current mE
Financial assets held for investments BERENESREE
— Unlisted debt securities —FLEMEHES 11,529 105,574
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20. Financial assets at fair value (continuead)

Notes:

The Group invested in unconsolidated investment funds for capital appreciation
and investment income. The interests held by the Group are in the form of
participating shares which provide the Group with the share of returns from
the investment funds, but not any decision making power nor any voting right.
Given that the Group only held the beneficial interests without holding any voting
right or substantial decision making power as principal, these investments are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The financial products invested by the Group included listed equity investments,
listed debt investments, unlisted fund investments, unlisted equity investments
and derivatives. As at 31 December 2021, cash collateral of HK$96.4 million
(2020: HK$257.8 million) and securities collateral of HK$198.2 million (2020:
HK$1,541.6 million) were placed to the counterparties.

Financial assets are categorised as “financial products” when it is acquired by
the Group for the primary purpose of meeting customers’ investment needs
and used as hedging instruments for structured notes issued under the MTN
Programme (note 27), financial liabilities (note 28) or derivative instruments
acquired by customers (note 21). As a result, the variable return of these
financial products and the financial liabilities in relation to these financial
products is not significant.

20. &/

FEFAENEMEE

5

(&)
5 -

(@ AEERENRRAHREESNE
BEXRZERRERA - AEEIA
2RV AFERER REAKET
DEREESHEEE  EXEME
MRRBAEMERRE - ERAE
EEFAERERNTEEAKRERE
BIXMEFEABERNRERE %%
RESBEREBEATEAARENS
BEE °

b)) AEEREMNSREREIELTR
REE - EMEBKIRE FEWE
SHRE FETRARERITET
B o A2021F12A318 » ER R
RBEFHNIESIEH R KEFHIEA
&7 Bl A96.48 B 7 7T (20204 :
257.8E & B L) k198.2A & B T
(20204 : 1,541.6EEHBT) °

EREERHASREIZR mER
FPREGRKMEBESBERSR
Eml  XEARET BRI 8%
THAEBERRE (ffEe7) @A
& (M ae8) sk P MBEMITAT A
(M sE21) MR T A - MU ZEF S
RERIEABASREEZAZD
BIK



BEREZEZEAR | 202155% 235

Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R 3R M RE

31 December 2021
2021 12A31H

21. Derivative financial instruments M. TE€mI A

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial
instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their
notional amounts. The notional amount, recorded gross, is the
amount of a derivative’s underlying asset, reference rate or index
and is the basis upon which changes in the value of the derivative
are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding at the year end and are indicative of
neither the market risk nor the credit risk.

TREJEHKASEERRENITTE
TRTITANAFEEREEES
B2z BEER/TE
TEAMBEE 2EZEXRIIEHN
SE O UYARITETIABENEE
MEE - ZRSBERANFRRE
RO P& - BET 2% AR IRk
EERRNER -

Fair value
AFHE
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
EHLHE BE =R
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T FET
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12831H
Non-current FEMED
Interest rate swaps 7| 22 15 B 7,205,586 12,325 (61,468)
Foreign exchange forwards = HY SN[ 440,530 - (41,004)
Warrants = b 1,200 - (129)
Callable bull/bear contracts SRR 89,766 = (3,808)
7,737,082 12,325 (106,409)
Current mE
Interest rate swaps 71| 22 4 B 3,505,749 - (43,538)
Foreign exchange forwards = B HNGE 9,913,566 232,968 (166,275)
Index futures BEAHE 338,195 756 (825)
Listed options T AR 1,990,827 68,915 (26,343)
OTC options % 5N B 133,979 1,383 (23)
Warrants =i 4,309,812 = (22,351)
Credit default swaps EEENIEH 389,925 77,199 =
Credit Derivatives EETETAR 46,791 1,419 (25)
Callable bull/bear contracts R 77,250 - (2,796)
Rates Swap B RiF 70,187 155 (4)
Equity swaps % #E = 2R 3,492,603 103,052 (105,419)
Other swaps H b 35 B 38,211 306 (114)
Other equity derivatives HBRATETA 1,027,641 120,752 (58,839)
25,334,736 606,905 (426,552)
33,071,818 619,230 (532,961)
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21. Derivative financial instruments (continued) 21. T4 €mI B
Fair value
ANEE
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
HETHE BE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAT TAT
As at 31 December 2020 R2020F12H31H
Non-current FEmED
Interest rate swaps | 2 12 HA 7,594,189 = (218,994)
Foreign exchange forwards = B SN 3,979,163 107,326 (113,138)
Warrants B 2,114 - (244)
Callable bull/bear contracts AR 13,000 = (1,023)
Other equity derivatives HiRRITETA 9,643 846 (846)
11,598,109 108,172 (334,245)
Current i
Interest rate swaps ) = 2 5 3,208,476 - (24,730)
Foreign exchange forwards iz HASINE 11,312,550 696,907 (70,834)
Index futures BEHE 376,828 = (10,196)
Options HAtE 4,291,752 204,316 (75,790)
Currency options B HA 232,584 8,009 =
Warrants & b 6,861,314 - (204,995)
Callable bull/bear contracts HRERE 8,953 = (156)
Equity swaps & i = HA 3,182,947 134,046 (110,756)
Other equity derivatives HaRATETER 1,396,271 109,904 (30,727)
30,871,675 1,153,182 (528,184)
42,469,78 1,261,354 (862,429)
The Group entered into International Swaps and Derivatives AEBHEHBRID>MTAELAR
Association, Inc. (“ISDA”) master netting agreements or similar 5 5B E BRI AEm
agreements with substantially all of its derivative counterparties. # & (International Swaps and
Where legally enforceable, these master netting agreements give Derivatives Association, Inc.)
the Group the right to offset cash collateral paid or received with (['I1SDA |) 5 BB 1K $5 48 15 s = BB L
the same counterparty. As at 31 December 2021, amounts of cash W o EEOER R ITERT -
collateral of HK$545.0 million and HK$661.0 million were paid ZEFHEBHAZE T AEERE
to and received from respective counterparties (2020: HK$422.9 FMAKHEEAERR ZHHENHE
million and HK$1,086.7 million), which are included in “accounts W IR € 3 5 - 52021412 A 31
receivable and accounts payable arising from brokerage — brokers B -BeERRESED A545.08
and dealers” in notes 18 and 24 to the financial statements 25T k661.08 87 7T (20204 -
respectively. 422,98 BB T &1,086.7E BB TT)

DR TFRKEHEBRSTT 0 75
BT B S R MY s 18 24k [
AT S5 R MR IR K B R — I AL
ERZE] -
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22. Receivable from reverse repurchase
agreements

The receivable from reverse repurchase agreements arises
when the securities are bought by the Group with a concurrent
agreement to resell at a specified later date and price. These
securities are not recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position as the counterparty retains substantially
all risks and returns of the securities. The amount paid by the
Group is recognised as receivable. In the event of default by
the counterparty, the Group has the right to sell the underlying
securities for settling the outstanding receivable.

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding amount paid for the
reverse repurchase FHagreements was HK$4,443,729,000 (2020:
HK$3,022,800,000) and was recognised as receivable from reverse
repurchase agreements.

The fair value of financial liabilities held for trading received as
collateral for the outstanding receivable at the year-end was
HK$4,426,919,000 (2020: HK$3,506,175,000).

22.
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J= 12 (2] §5 165 % M W 5K IR

J 17) [2] A& 199 2 < e W AR IR IR AR 5
BEBSREL EWRKEIL—
A AIREERRAHRER
BE ZEFEFLERAEEES
MBMRRKRTHER RARXST
REZEEFNBRBD AR NE
o ARE N HHIBTER SR
KRB -WMXBHEN AKEBERE
HERBEZAEERBBHEW

TRIH °

R2021F12H831H @ #t & @
DEBEITNAREERES
4,443,729,0007% jt (20204 :
3,022,800,0008 7t) T HER AR
1w [21 8% 173 % FE MR A ©

REREWEEAR KB RIFKIE
KRB EFEECRHABRNATF
8 /&4,426,919,0007% 7T ( 20204 :

3,506,175,000/# 7T ) °

23. Cash and cash equivalents and client trust 23. B &R BEEEBYRE
— /=
bank balances EERBRITHER
2021 2020
202145 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHETT
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTEH 5,080,107 5,178,802
Time deposits TE HifF K 197,767 329,977
— with original maturity of less than three —REHBE LR
months =& A 74,641 79,286
— with original maturity of more than three ~ —RE|E3 A BB
months =f&A 123,126 250,691
Total cash and cash equivalents HekReEEMER 5,277,874 5,508,779
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23. Cash and cash equivalents and client trust 23. B¢ RESZEEBEYRE

bank balances (continued) FEEAEITESR =
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T T
Cash and cash equivalents BUATEESENER S X

denominated in: REFEY
HKS$ T 1,483,748 1,505,453
Us$ ETT 3,507,671 3,623,042
RMB AR #& 116,891 195,765
VND WEE 85,304 115,031
Others HAty 84,260 69,488
5,277,874 5,508,779

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one month and 13 months depending on the cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no history of default.

As at 31 December 2021, the ECL allowance of bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, and client trust bank balances
amounted to HK$10,535,000 (2020: HK$13,085,000) aggregately.
All of them are classified as Stage 1 under the ECL model and there
was no transfer to/from the other stages.

The Company maintains segregated accounts with authorised
institutions to hold client money in the normal course of business.

RITHSERTHARITERFERIZ
FBF R E - EHERNFERH
BAREENREFLME > N F—
BAZ+=M@A  X%EETEHRTF
RHMERFE - RITERCFEAGE
RiFBEABRESLHRITH

R2021F128318 » SR17FH -
RekREeEBUWUARETFLERT
RITEHRNTBERERELREES
# 510,535,000 7T (20204 :
13,085,000/ 7T) * iz 78 B {5 A
BRAEAESEF—BEER - BX R
A e H MR -

AARERBERBRBBILRS
REBEXRBBRTRAETFES -
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24. Accounts payable

24. FEFRIE

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Accounts payable arising from brokerage 4% 42 3 75 JE 1~ 7B
- clients —5P 16,986,206 17,961,145
- brokers and dealers —RERZ 5 790,787 2,652,515
— the Stock Exchange and other — B R P R E A A E P
clearing houses 2,212,759 1,365,299
Accounts payable arising from securities BHEEEBENKIE
borrowing and lending 37,289 17,299
Accounts payable arising from corporate TXERE BEERE -
finance, asset management, financial SREM - BB
products, market making, investments K2 H A 375 FE S 5RIB
and others 559,622 785,658
Accounts payable arising from insurance 4R & 42 AR 75 JE 1< 5108
brokerage services 503 1,316
20,587,166 22,783,232

The majority of the accounts payable are repayable on demand
except for certain accounts payable to clients which represent
margin deposits received from clients for their trading activities in
the normal course of business. Only the excess amounts over the
required margin deposits stipulated are repayable on demand.

The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payment
within one business day. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the
opinion of the directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of these businesses.

Accounts payable to clients also include those payables in trust
accounts with authorised institutions of HK$17,815 million (2020:
HK$18,707 million), Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing
Corporation Limited and other futures dealers of HK$215 million

(2020: HK$224 million).

REBOENRBAEAREREEE -
HETRERNTEFMREAR/IER
REFXEBBEFETEEITPIK
REFPHNREEHRIN - REBHA
EREENEEARERKHREER
B o

AEEERE—[EEXBRBERMR
BNREFR - REEI E R FEREK
o REREEZERIREFEY
MEE  BREROT TS RHEE
SMEME °

BN TEERFIEIREED BT
KRR KESTRFMN17,815688
77T (20204F : 18,707 A &AT) »
EAEREAER AR REMBEE
R 5 EK2158 & 7%t (20204 :
224BFBAIT) EMFRIA -
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24. Accounts payable (continued) 24. BT FIE @)
Accounts payable arising from insurance brokerage services 1R B 4% 42 BR 75 JFE 1~ 7k I8 B 75 32 Al H
include those payables in trust accounts with authorised institutions 1% =52 Bk P &9 FE 5 X I8503,000%8
of HK$503,000 (2020: HK$1,316,000). Accounts payable are JC (20204 : 1,316,000/ 7t.) ° B
non-interest-bearing, except for the accounts payable to clients. FENZREZRIBIN B RIBY Tt
B o
25. Other payables and accrued liabilities 25. H fth B ¥ R ITE K& B 5t
8\
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FABTT
Other payables H b & T 5K I8 46,154 9,697
Accrued liabilities et B fE 586,163 921,104
632,317 930,801
Other payables and accrued liabilities are non-interest-bearing and HENREREBESY T
have an average term of three months. B FHHRAE=EA -
26. Interest bearing borrowings 26. 5T EER
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TAETT
Non-current: FERED -
Lease liabilities HEBE 40,542 6,557
Current: meE :
Lease liabilities HEARE 27,322 17,004
Unsecured bank borrowings AR IR IRIT I 3K 5,307,339 9,715,836
5,334,661 9,732,840

Total interest bearing borrowings R B AR 5,375,203 9,739,397
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26. Interest bearing borrowings (continued) 26. st EER (2
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T8I
Denominated in: BT EERE :
HK$ BT 3,157,025 3,960,621
Us$ ETT 2,167,983 5,775,836
Other currencies Hih g 50,195 2,940
5,375,203 9,739,397
The Group’s bank borrowings bear interest at the Interbank Offered RNREFETETIHRETRERE
Rate plus an interest spread. MEZEFR °
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their AR MEEY NBE KN %
fair values as the impact on discounting is not significant. SFRTERNEEELRE QN FEE
% o
The Group’s lease liabilities bear weighted average interest rate at NREBNHEEBENMEEHE
3.35% per annum (2020: 4.23% per annum). K & 53.35% (20204 @ F F| &

4.23%) ©
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27. Debt securities in issue 27. B RITEKRF
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T T
Non-current IEME
At amortised cost (note(a)): R# KA (M 5E(a) -
Unlisted unsecured medium-term notes JE TR IR AR R 3,139,345 1,549,563
Designated at fair value through profit EERA T E AER
or loss (note (b)): GEAOE
Structured notes issued in relation to BEEITHNEME®R
financial products Bz &R R 8,198,613 10,293,530
11,337,958 11,843,093
Current mE
At amortised cost (note(a)): R# KA (M 5E(a) -
Unlisted unsecured medium-term notes JE T EE R H R 18,298,551 13,798,151
Designated at fair value through profit EERA T EG AER
or loss (note (b)): GEIOE
Structured notes issued in relation to EETHEMEM
financial products &R R 15,855,274 22,278,628
e 34,153,825 36,076,779
45,491,783 47,919,872
Unsecured medium-term notes T &3 E R
denominated in: R R
us$ ETT 11,903,280 7,227,977
HK$ &I 9,242,162 8,095,905
RMB AR 192,709 23,832
Other currencies Hih g 99,745 =
e 21,437,896 i 15,347,714
Structured notes issued in relation to BT 5 E85E®
financial products denominated in: BERITHESRER
ARz R MR
HK$ BT 3,077,692 2,034,539
uss$ =TT 19,437,596 28,059,361
RMB AR 974,462 1,862,637
NZD caiicl: v 564,137 615,621

24,053,887 32,572,158

45,491,783 47,919,872
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27. Debt securities in issue (continued)

Notes:

(@)

The outstanding balance of HK$21,438 million (2020: HK$15,348 million) stated
at amortised cost represents the amount of unsecured notes issued by the
Company under the Company’s Medium Term Note Programme (the “MTN
Programme”). As at 31 December 2021, the debt securities in issue bore fixed
interest rates ranging from 0.4% to 3.5% (2020: 0.3% to 3.1%). The carrying
amounts of the debt securities in issue approximate to their fair values.

The outstanding balance of HK$24,054 million (2020: HK$32,572 million)
represented the amount of unlisted structured notes which arose from selling
structured products under the MTN Programme with underlying investments
related to listed equity investments, listed debt investments, unlisted debt
investments, unlisted fund investments and derivatives.

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other
breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year (2020: nil).

Part of debt securities in issue are repayable on demand and the
Group has a practice to satisfy the request for redemption on the
settlement date.

27.
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ERITEERS @
GEE

(8 BREHFEKAIEMNKREEHRE
21,4385 B % 7T (20204 : 15,348
BEBIT) BEARRAREARRQAF
HEEAE ([P HEEE)) #1T
A K 1R = AR FRRE 0 R2021512
A318  BERITEKEFFZETEF
R0.4%%E3.5% (2020%F : 0.3% &
31%) TR - BEETEBIEFMNE
EEEEAFEREE -

(b)  K{EIE#2%824,0548 & 7 T (2020
F:32,572HE5 ) IEIRIEH I
Brtdl s EARERELENIELD
HEEERIERE HBEEEEET
BAZE EWEBKERE -FLW
BEEE FLTESBRERTE
TAEFR-

REBRFALEHEREMAE
MEKHEMABTEETNEBER
(20204 : )

BERTEBESBOARERE
B MmAKENEMSELE BB
B E K o

28. Financial liabilities at fair value through 28. R AFEHIAEZNE
profit or loss A E
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TR
Financial liabilities held for trading: HIEEENERAE
— Listed equity securities — ETRAES 69,105 263,722
— Listed debt securities — FHEBES 4,760,009 2,956,878
— Unlisted debt securities — LT EBES 13,370 =
Financial liabilities designated at fair value 5§ FE IR A FET A B R
through profit or loss PRARE
- Financial products (note (a)) — e BEm (M 3E@) 3,120,012 2,968,586
— Other financial instruments —HEmemIT A 36,601 =
— Third-party interests in consolidated —MAEHIEEESH
investment funds (note (b)) F =z (M ED) 773,708 477,074
8,772,805 6,666,260
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28.

29.

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)

Notes:

(@) Included in the fair value in financial products is cash collateral of HK$2 million
(81 December 2020: HK$65 million) received from counterparty.

The amount of change in fair value of financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, during the year and cumulatively, attributable to changes in own
credit risk was insignificant.

(b) Third-party interests in consolidated investment funds consist of third-party
unitholders’ interests in consolidated investment funds which are reflected as
liabilities since they can be put back to the Group for cash. The realisation of
third-party interests in investment funds cannot be predicted with accuracy
since these represent the interests of third-party unitholders in consolidated
investment funds that are subject to market risk and the actions of third-party
investors.

Obligations under repurchase agreements

The obligations under repurchase agreements arise when the
securities are sold by the Group with a concurrent agreement to
repurchase at a specified later date and price. The amount received
by the Group is recognised as liabilities as the Group retains
substantially all risks and returns of the securities.

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding amount received
from repurchase agreements was HK$9,255,723,000 (2020:
HK$17,396,163,000) which was recognised as obligations under
repurchase agreements.

29

@ﬁ
Y b
WH

E+ Bafs

B

TREMZATFESERYF K
B EE M MR2E BBt (20204
128318 : 65 BB L) °

=

RER BXAFEERREDHZE
MEIEAFEFABENEHEA
BRFEERNSHELPHAL TEK -

b) MAGHEBREESCHNE=7THERD
BERMAGHEBEEESHNE = EN
BAAEZ BRZEREEM
AEBUKBRES  BIABAEE-
REESHE=AEZNEREE
ERETEN - DTEEEESRERAA
EHEBEEESHE=FEMNEEFA
Mg WEHRMERRRE=
FIREENITER -

=] &5 1t = Y B 1]

AEERBEOBHHEHEES
5 [R B R] S — TR B s A IR IR E ,\1§
BHREREERES AEEKER

HRIARER S RE J?l%$%@
REE SR BRI R B 3

A202112A318 - B EE =K
HR B9 7k 4% 75 7K 18 59,255,723,000

7 7T (20204 : 17,396,163,0005
Jo) - WiER A BB FHENEE -
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29. Obligations under repurchase agreements

(continued)

Fair value of financial assets under the repurchase agreements:

20. BB EE 2

EfEHZR T ERMEENAFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBT FHET
Financial assets held for trading HEEENSHEE
— Listed debt securities —FTEBES 2,724,914 8,570,137
— Unlisted debt securities —JEEMERRES 91,772 42,626
Financial assets designated at fair value EEEAFEFAEE
through profit or loss K& B & B
— Financial products — % BEm 9,067,314 12,704,127
Clients’ pledged securities BEFERES = 1,356,941
11,884,000 22,673,831
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30. Share capital 30. g7
Number of
issued and
fully paid Share
shares capital
ERITRAR
ik 4= [N
HK$’000
FE T
At 1 January 2020 #2020%1 A1H 7,715,673,090 8,125,856
Shares issued under rights issue (note (a)) A2 L AR 277 B 15 (K 5= (a)) 1,919,219,266 2,779,976
Shares repurchased (note (b)) Fr & 51 A% 12 (BT 3E(b)) (20,000,000) =
Shares issued upon exercise of BT BB T
share options under the share BREmMEITHRGD
option scheme (note 31) (F$3E31) 2,336,288 2,917
At 31 December 2020 and 72020F12 4318 &
1 January 2021 202141 A1R 9,617,228,644 10,908,749
Shares issued upon exercise of IEARERT BT 1T
share options under the share FE AR T B2 1T YRR (9
option scheme (note 31) (Pt 5E31) 1,766,063 2,414
At 31 December 2021 20214124318 9,618,994,707 10,911,163
(@) On 14 January 2020, the Company proposed a rights issue on the basis of one () H2020F1A14H ' AR EEHEMN
(1) Rights Share for every three (3) existing Shares held at a price of HK$1.45 FiEA =) IR A D AT 3 —(1)
per Rights Share. On 17 March 2020, the Company completed the Rights Issue & ft A% A%t &0 B 2% - DA RR AR AR
and allotted a total of 1,919,219,266 Shares for a gross proceed of HK$2,782 M1.458 T B ETHRR - #HR
million. M2020F3817H T © AN A A B

% 4£1,019,219,2668% f% 15+ L A% AT
BRIBRZE A2, 782E BB T °

(o)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company bought back and (b) H E2020F12A31HIEEE » &K
cancelled a total of 20,000,000 shares at an aggregate consideration (before A AR B BB R BT A & #%0.92% 7T
expenses) of HK$19.9 million on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange at share F1.05B THERBEE RFHE R
prices ranging from HK$0.92 to HK$1.05. 20,000,0008% iz 7 - &K B &19.9

B&EBT (HRFEXAE) -
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3. BRERE

31. Share option reserve

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and
motivating key staff members. The board of directors has the
discretion to grant share options to employees and directors of
any members of the Group, including independent non-executive
directors. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 19 June
2010 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date (i.e., ended 18 June 2020).

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme (i.e.
164,000,000 shares). The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time (i.e. 16,400,000 shares). Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
ends on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of
offer of the share options.

RNAREA —HERES ([FER
EETED  EEWMBBE BBX
BETIEEI S BBRANX
SEEAKEAFTNEERES (B
BB IENTES) KL ERE-
% A% #E 51 21 A 2010FE6 5198 4
Mo mIERTECEER] & Al
15 B 7% B B+ 4 (B Z=202056 A
18H) B °

BB IR R AT 2118 T IR B WO BT /5 B8 AR
EITEMBITHRODBETESS
MRIBTERERSHER AR RFE
B 1T 3% 19 B910% (BN164,000,000/%
) > REM+ =@ B # R A Al
BEEREDERESITHNESR
ARER2HEBERITHERRMHEE
TiBR A AN R B AR fa] B fE B 32 17 IR
5 #91% (B116,400,0000% f% 15) °
ER B MR E — PR LB
AR RAR R RS EHEE -

RTYARBAIEEREZESTHRAE -
S REEMBHEANBRE 58
EREGEUGFMITESNAE -
e SN - PMEAAT + —{E B R AR T
ARAETERRIBLFERTE
FARFEMBREANTAER
B LBERARRRNEMERDE
TR B0 1% E&E (REAR
AREE AR ZRENE) BiB5A
BRET HARKRRARE LEEM
BRECRE R ©

REBEENEQOAHARABR
WAMES T NAARINEE
REAKIBTRFEM AR D
BRENTENHESEE  &E
EEBREZEHERET R TFZ
BALE-
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1. ERERE

31. Share option reserve (continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the
share options; and (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer.

The fair values of share options at the date of grant of the options
are calculated using a Binomial Option Pricing Model. The fair value
of the share option is based on the terms and conditions of the
share options upon which the options were granted, share price
at the date of the grant, the historical volatility of the Company’s
shares, the historical dividend vyield and the risk-free interest rate
is referenced to the prevailing interest rate of the Hong Kong
Government Bonds.

Upon completion of the bonus issue on 9 July 2015, the exercise
price and the number of shares to be issued and allotted under the
outstanding share options had been adjusted pursuant to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme in the manner set out below:

Immediately before the completion

of the bonus issue

BRENTEEREEETE T
AERRAT&ESE : ()RR AKRN
P RB RS HE 40 H BAFE Bt XX P O U T
B RARARNDREEEZLN A
Hi AT LA R 5 B B R AT e T 15 M

BREXHASNAFEIR-R
ABREERUAE - BREND
FAE AR R T 18 AR B (R 5K R
HTAMNKRE AARKRN
RBERIE  BERE RS EXME
REEME(2ZFEBNESFNR
IMER)FESH -

R2015F7 A9R SEAK AL AR B8 714 -
M ARITE B R R 1T B R R I A
FEITREERGHE EREER
REETEIMERARELT ¢

Immediately after the completion
of the bonus issue

FEARBTRRA EREARBITRRE

Exercise price Number of Adjusted exercise  Adjusted number of

Date of share options granted per share  outstanding options price per share  outstanding options

AMIEE BRERTHE

RiBREND S FRATEE RENEE RAZERTRE BRENHE

24/4/2012 HK$2.48 4,856,448 HK$0.827 14,569,344
2.48% T 0.827% T

10/1/2014 HK$3.79 36,959,910 HK$1.264 110,879,730
3798 T 1.26478 7T

11/6/2015 HK$14.56 4,500,000 HK$4.854 13,500,000
14.56/8 7T 4.85438 T

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

1,766,063 share options were exercised during the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: 2,336,288), resulting in the issue of
1,766,063 shares (2020: 2,336,288) for a total cash consideration
of HK$1,681,000 (2020: HK$1,934,000). HK$733,000 (2020:
HK$983,000) was transferred from the share option reserve to the
share capital account upon the exercise of the share options. The
weighted average closing share price immediately before the dates
on which the share options were exercised during the year was
HK$1.23 per share (2020: HK$1.24).

BREYERTRHE ABIRKE X
RIRRAEG LIREZRER -

B E2021F12A318 IEFE -
1,766,063 i B # & 77 (£ (2020
F 1 2,336,28819) + & 21,766,063
A& P& 17 2% 77 (20204 : 2,336,288
i) - Me R EBEHEEAE1,681,000
7 7T (20204 : 1,934,000/ 7T) °
733,0005 7T (20204 : 983,000/
JC) B BE A% 4 2 17 {F T B B AR A R
HEBEERAR TR ZEER
WEEITE B HY 2 AT A9 A0 AE S 15 Uk Th
85 & %1.237% T (20204 : 1.24
BIL) °
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31. Share option reserve (continued) 3. EBRERE®
For the year ended 31 December 2021, GJIHL has recognised HE2021FE12831HIEEE B
an equity-settled share-based compensation expense of ELBBRERD ERESTZIIET
HK$1,462,000 for the share options under the Share Option MERENERERIAEREE
Scheme in profit or loss (2020: HK$6,239,000). P& 17 7 5 Tt &Y 357 B 38 < 1,462,000

7 7T (20204 : 6,239,000/ 7T) °

For the year ended 31 December 2021, 1,783,337 and 9,981,186 HZ2021F12A831H IEFE © A
share options were lapsed or forfeited (2020: 1,216,668 and WE THEB 2 5lHF1,783,337 &
8,048,630 share options were lapsed and forfeited, respectively) 9,081,186 B ENEE B B
prior to the vesting date as a result of staff resignation. AT 2R 3 308 Ur (20204 : o Rl A

1,216,668 %8,048,63017 & Iz # 5
IR e

2021 2020
2021 20204

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise price Number of  exercise price Number of
HKS$ per share options  HKS$ per share options

MELHTEE MEFHITEE
FRET BREZE SRBT EREZE
At 1 January M1A1H 1.544 63,292,717 1.498 74,894,303
Granted during the year FRE L - - - -
Forfeited during the year F R 1.593 (9,981,186) 1.326 (8,048,630)
Lapsed during the year FREB 1.506 (1,783,337) 1.520 (1,216,668)
Exercised during the year FRTE 0.952 (1,766,063) 0.827 (2,336,288)
At 31 December ®12H31H 1.557 49,762,131 1.544 63,292,717
At 31 December 2021, the Company had 49,762,131 (2020: MN2021F12A831H A2 Al B
63,292,717) share options outstanding under the Share Option 49,762,13115 (20204 : 63,292,717
Scheme, which represents approximately 0.52% (2020: 0.66%) ) BERR ST 218 T M R 17 1F B9 BE
of the Company’s shares in issue as at 31 December 2021. The RE#E - (H AR A B R2021E12A31H
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the B 21T I% 19 B 490.52% (20204 :
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue 0.66% ) ° IRIEA A A B AT A & AN
of 49,762,131 additional ordinary shares of the Company and B RHEERERHESE 2
additional share capital of HK$77,464,000 (before issuance B EEINEE1749,762,1310% AN A &)
expenses). The option periods of the share options are from 24 LBRAR - LA R EE YRR ANT77,464,000
April 2012 to 9 June 2021, from 10 January 2014 to 9 January B (RTBETRY) - BIE#ED
2024, from 13 July 2017 to 12 July 2027, from 4 July 2018 to 3 B RE T {E HAFS] B20124E4 A24F &
July 2028 and from 11 September 2019 to 10 September 2029. 20216 H9H ~ 2014FE1 108 &

202451 H9R - 20177 H13R =
20277 H12H - 201857 H4R =
202847 H3H Kk2019F9H11H =
20294 9H10H -
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32. Share award reserve

32. R B =S

On 27 October 2011, the Company adopted the share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) under which shares of the
Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected
employees (including directors) of any members of the Group
(the “Selected Employees”) pursuant to the terms of the scheme
rules and trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. The share
award scheme became effective on the adoption date and, unless
otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date, i.e., 26 October 2021.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be
awarded under the Share Award Scheme throughout the duration
of the Share Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the adoption date (i.e. 164,000,000
shares). The maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may
be awarded to a Selected Employee in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of award shall not in aggregate exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date
(i.e. 16,400,000 shares).

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions,
which might include service and/or performance conditions,
specified by the board of directors of the Company at the time
of making the award and become entitled to the shares of the
Company forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall
transfer the relevant Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost.

The voting rights and powers of any shares held under the Share
Award Scheme shall be exercised by the independent trustee who
shall abstain from voting.

R2011F10H27H » KR A &K 4
B 1D SEE AT & ([AR 1D 22 B AT &) -
B AQE D (BB 1) 7]
R4 A% 0 2B 5T 8 A9 5T 8148 Al R A5
ARBEFEBETASEEAKER
AMEEREE (BRES) ([EEE
8]) - Rty RENFT S A A B BB AE
W BRIESITRIESNIER] TS
BB He+F (B E2021410H
268B) B °

R P& An S Eh =t 21 B R A B 1D 22 B &t
218 TR AR HA SRR G BT
BRBAARNRERMBEBHEEHTR
ZRE)10% (BN164,000,0000% A7) °
MEZEERIMNERNRMNESH
BEEERERMZB (251 H)
IEER+ =@ R BEAE ETE B
AARAERA B BB TR AR1%
(EN16,400,0008% 8% 15 ) -

MEEREENEARAEZTSINIE
A B 22 R B DI B B 2 BE 5 B AR
(PR ERBFHRH K
BE R BRI EEA R ER
ARARD  ZEABEBERAZS
EEEZEHERKD -

B ZEABRITER D RE) A S
T NRRA W EA B ) IR R e A
h HEBIXFTABRERE -
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32. Share award reserve (continued) 2. BRI EBEEE =
Details of the Awarded Shares granted and unvested as at 31 MR2021FE12B31AFEEH R REEBHN
December 2021 are set out below: BENIS (D RIS EFI T ¢
Number of
Average fair Awarded Number of Number of Number of
Date of Awarded value per Shares Awarded Awarded Awarded Vesting
Shares granted share granted  Shares vested  Shares lapsed Shares unvested dates
RAHER EEBRR BAMER AERRR

REHEBRGNAS SRFHAVE R4 12 B R4 K& B gl ok gl ok 5%E A5
16/4/2019 HK$1.60 11,687,000 (11,168,000) (519,000 - 30/11/2019
1.6078 7T 11,621,000 (10,123,000) (1,498,000) - 30/11/2020

11,564,000 (9,484,000) (2,080,000) - 27/10/2021

22/10/2021 HK$1.23 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - - 27/10/2021

1.23% 7T
The Group has recognised a share-based compensation expense RNEBD G M IERETEIB T /5
of HK$6,314,000 for the Awarded Shares under the Share Award BN BEEERABR D AER
Scheme in profit or loss (2020: HK$19,223,000). 9,856,000 7 3 B A 526,314,000/ JT (2020
Awarded Shares have been either transferred to the grantees £ : 19,223,000/ ) ° &, 22021
or sold in accordance with their instructions at no cost (2020: F12H31H It F & © 9,856,000%
18,402,000 Awarded Shares) for the year ended 31 December HBENAR (D O 38 TR AN E E T AR A
2021. AR B 1R F 818 R & (20204 ¢
18,402,0000% 2@ AR 17 ) °

578,000 Awarded Shares were lapsed prior to their vesting date as HZEZ2021F12A31HIEEE ' B
a result of staff resignation for the year ended 31 December 2021 B T EE: - §578,000% 2% E) A%
(2020: 1,082,000 and 2,027,000 Awarded Shares were lapsed and B B A Al 2k A (20204 :
cancelled). 1,082,000/% &2,027,000/% £ B A%

I RB K EH) -
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33. Shares held under the Share Award Scheme

Movements of shares held under the Share Award Scheme during
the year are as follows:

B.RORBFEETNRESR

HY IR 40

A7 SERD AT EIIE T # A W R 1 7 R
MR EBMT -

2021 2020
20214 20204

Number of Number of

HK$’000 shares HK$'000 shares

THER R EE TAT Bin g E

At 1 January M AR 30,672 18,487,400 73,058 36,889,400
Vested and transferred out REABBREN

during the year (16,879) (9,856,000) (42,386) (18,402,000)

Disposed during the year REALE (13,793) (8,631,400) = =

At 31 December MW12A31H - - 30,672 18,487,400

34. Other Reserve

35.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
represents a merger reserve, being the difference between the
issued share capital of HK$31,980,000 of Guotai Junan (Hong
Kong) Limited and the amount of share capital and share premium
of HK$1,268,440,000 of the Company transferred and issued to
GJHL in exchange for the entire issued share capital of Guotai
Junan (Hong Kong) Limited on 14 June 2010.

Capital commitments and other commitments

Capital commitments

The Group had capital commitments for system upgrade and
renovation of premises of approximately HK$16,034,000 which
were contracted but not provided for as at 31 December 2021
(2020: HK$17,772,000).

Other commitments

The Group undertakes underwriting obligations on placing, IPO,
takeover and merger activities and financial obligations to loan
facilities granted to customers. As at 31 December 2021, the
underwriting obligation was approximately HK$145 million (2020:
HK$5 million).

34. Hfb B

35.

AEENRESBRREEPNEGA
REEHRANZH -

R20214F K2020F12A31H » A&
BHEMBEEREOFEE - BIR2010
F6A14B BEHRELZ (FEB)BR
A A A B 317 % 24831,980,0007% 7T
BEARRRMERE TIEREE R
TR AN B 15 0% (B A (AR B B F=
B (BB)BRRANEIE BT
i% ZN) & %81,268,440,0007% 7T 2 [E
By Z= %8 o

BERAEREMAR

BARERE

REBRARZG RWERIEIED
& A & HE #916,034,000/8 7T © 7% X
HE R 4B RMR2021F12H31H
F A B (20204 : 17,772,000/8
JL) °

H{th & i

AEBARE BXARAEE K
BN A BHE BN IR (A S AL R AR
FTREEFNERBERERERE -
MN20215FE12A8318 » A EEAE LN A
145 B & TT (20204 : 5EEBTT) ©
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36. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s 36. EE - FEREETH
emoluments AEME
(a) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s (@ EB5 - EFERESITH
current emoluments ABBEEMSE
The current emoluments of every director of the Company N H & £20214F k20204
paid/payable by the Group for the years ended 31 December 12A31B L FEER B
2021 and 2020 are set out below: AABZEFRHENES S
B0
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12A31 B LFEE
Employer’'s

contribution
Directors’ Salaries and Discretionary  to pension

fees allowances bonuses scheme Total
TaRHiE

EZHE HEREW g sTEIf R @it

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Name of director EERE THER THER TERT THERT TER
Executive directors: HITEE
YIM Fung (note (i) 7 & (Fi3EG) - 3,755 7,324 14 11,093
WONG Tung Ching (note (i)) E£7 (FifzE(i) - 3,528 2,732 18 6,278
Ql Haiying (note (v)) B E (FEEv) - 3,482 5,956 14 9,452
LI Guangjie (note (i) ZH (B i) - 3,420 2,788 18 6,226
Non-executive directors: FHITEE
LIU Yiyong (note (ii)) 25 5 (Pt (i) - - - - -
XIE Lebin (note (i) At 4 5 (B = i) - - = = =
YU Jian (note (iv)) e (B RE(v)) - - - - -
HU Xupeng (note (iv)) B S (KI5E(v) - - - = =
YU Xuping (note (iv)) BB (&) - - - = =
Independent non-executive B HHTEE -

directors:

FU Tingmel (EREES 550 - - - 550
SONG Ming R 550 - - - 550
TSANG Yiu Keung TR 550 - - - 550
CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer BRxR 550 - - - 550

2,200 14,185 18,800 64 35,249
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36. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
emoluments (continueq)

(a) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
current emoluments (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2020

b.EE - ETFERESTH

Directors’  Salaries and

AEME»

(@ EB -XEREBESTH
AEBBEEME o)
HZE2020512A31HILEE

Employer's
Discretionary  contribution
bonuses to pension

fees  allowances (note (vi)) scheme Total
MEEL EXmERE
EEHe HekEH GE) IR BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director EEMS FHBT FTAET FBT FTAET FHBL
Executive directors: HITEE -
YIM Fung (note (i) g (BIE()) - 3,755 12,187 18 15,960
WONG Tung Ching (note (i)) E&3 (KizE(i) - 3,528 6,181 18 9,727
Ql Haiying (note (v)) B (B () - 3,498 8,463 18 11,979
LI Guangjie (note (i) ZHA (B i) - 3,420 5,999 18 9,437
Non-executive directors: FHITEE -
LIU Yiyong (note (ii)) Bz 2 (B (i) - - - - -
XIE Lebin (note (ii)) 45, (P = i) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BT HHTEE :
directors:
FU Tingmel BEx 550 - - = 550
SONG Ming R 550 - - - 550
TSANG Yiu Keung ey 550 - - - 550
CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer BRx R 518 - - - 518
2,168 14,201 32,830 72 49,271
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief FAWEEEFHFEZTHA
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during B N E =k [ B 5E E [ &
the year. B2 Bk ©
Note (i): Dr. YIM Fung is the executive director and chairman of the el : MEBEBIZAARQRNTT
Company. EEB -
Note (i): ~ Mr. WONG Tung Ching and Mr. LI Guangjie resigned as executive MieEi): EEXBEERZTHEAR

director with effective from 14 December 2021.

Note (ii):  Mr. XIE Lebin and Mr. LIU Yiyong resigned as non-executive
director with effective from 14 December 2021.

Note (iv):  Mr. YU Jian, Dr. HU Xupeng and Ms. YU Xuping was appointed as
non-executive director with effective from 14 December 2021.

Note (v): Ms. QI Haiying is the executive director and chief executive of the
Company.
Note (vi):  The amount in 2020 was restated upon completion of evaluation of

the performance of the executive directors in 2021.

EEBREIHTES B
20214512 514 B AR -

kG : WEEBERBEREBE
EBEERTES A
2021512 514 BB ARK -

MisE(v) : MfEst 4 - SR NS IE &
FEBFZTEZEE
EHMITE S © 520214
12A 148 #BAEMK -

MizE(v) : #BELETBARRDAHN
TERFRITHAE °

MieE(vi) : TRFBHHITEFR
2021F M KRFE  BEE
F2020F K] £ &8 ©
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36. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s 36. BEE - XFEREETH
emoluments (continued) AEME»
B

(b) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s b) E5-EERESTT

deferred emoluments

During the year, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the following directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration disclosures.

Certain directors were granted share awards under the share
award scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 32 to the financial statements. The amount of
share-based compensation expense illustrated in the below
table represents amortisation to profit or loss of the fair value
of these share options and awarded shares granted to the
directors measured at the respective grant dates.

ABBEEMNE

RER  ETEERARAE
BHEFEBETHRESAEE
RER RS MERBRE £
—THBERMBRERNE
31 - EHBRENAFE(E
REBHENEaEGE
g R P RERR) TR IR A
HIEETE @ Mat ARFEM SR
TNEBRCIATNESER
TERTHABHMBEES

ETESRAQA KM IR
STEIIETERR D EE - &
— 2 EFIE B P B 7S R MY A
32 TRATIMARRGD BER
MNEMRZSBEARTES
MERERERBROIES @
HEHBHFAENAFERE
mPREESE -
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36. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s 36. ZEE-FBEERE S TH

emoluments (continued) AEME @)
(b) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s b) EE-EFERESITH
deferred emoluments (continued) ABEEME &)
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021F12A31HILFE
Share-based compensation reserve Cash-based compensation
SR 5 EL 8 5 B 4 UREREREM GG
Share option scheme Share award scheme Deferred cash bonuses
BRETE TR 4 % Bt & BEREEA
Share option Share award Deferred
Date of expense Date of expense Date of Vesting  cash bonus
grant (Note 31) grant (Note 32) grant dates expense
BRERX R REH X BLRE
REAH (H&E31) BB (Ki5E32) RYAH 5RAH TARX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director ESpg TEL FET TAT
Executive directors: HITEE:
YIM Fung (note () 7 & (F3%() 4/7/2018 19 -
11/9/2019 117 16/4/2019 -
WONG Tung Ching (note (i)~ E£ % (HE(i) 4/7/2018 19 -
11/9/2019 117 16/4/2019 152
Ql Haiying (note (v)) B () 4/7/2018 19 -
11/9/2019 117 16/4/2019 267
LI Guangjie (note (i) A (H3E() 4/7/2018 19 -
11/9/2019 17 16/4/2019 173
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
LIU Yiyong (note (i) % 8 (W3(ii) - - -
XIE Lebin (note (i) EiESEAC () = - -
YU Jian (note (iv) Hin 2 (P () - - -
HU Xupeng (note (iv) EAGE) - - -
YU Xuping (note (iv) B8 (M &E(v) - - -
Independent non-executive B HHTEE -
directors:
FU Tingmei BEX - - -
SONG Ming R - - -
TSANG Yiu Keung LiEn - - -
CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer RR % - - -
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36. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s 36. EE - XFERESTH

emoluments (continued) AEME =)
(b) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s b) EE-EERERSITH
deferred emoluments (continued) ABIEZEME 2
Year ended 31 December 2020 B Z2020F12A31HILFE
Share-based compensation reserve Cash-based compensation
SRR RE RS MG R eREREMER
Share option scheme Share award scheme Deferred cash bonuses (note (vi))
LGRS | TRt Bl BIER 2 74 (i =Evi)
Share option Share award Deferred
Date of expense Date of expense Date of Vesting cash bonus
grant (Note 31) grant (Note 32) grant dates paid
ERERX RiA REIFE RANBAT:
il =k (MzE31) RINAH (M7E32) RLAH GERS Befel
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director BEA FAT FisT THT
Executive directors: HITEE:
YIM Fung (note (i) 7 & (F3%() 13/7/2017 53 3/4/2020  30/11/2020 851
4/7/2018 67 13/4/2018 -
11/9/2019 262 16/4/2019 -
WONG Tung Ching (note (i) T % (HE(i) 13/7/2017 53 3/4/2020  30/11/2020 803
4/7/2018 67 13/4/2018 223
11/9/2019 262 16/4/2019 412
Ql Haiying (note (v) MER (M) 13/7/2017 53 3/4/2020  80/11/2020 1,008
4/7/2018 67 13/4/2018 404
11/9/2019 262 16/4/2019 725
LI Guangjie (note (i) A () 13/7/2017 53 3/4/2020  30/11/2020 714
4/7/2018 67 13/4/2018 180
11/9/2019 262 16/4/2019 469
Non-executive directors: FHITEE
LIU Yiyong (note (i) AR B (Fi) = = =
XIE Lebin (note (i) B3 (3 (i) - - -
Independent non-executive BV FEHTEE
directors:
FU Tingmei BEx - - -
SONG Ming R - - -
TSANG Yiu Keung LR - - -

CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer L - - -
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36. Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
emoluments (continueq)

(b) Directors’, chairman’s and chief executive’s
deferred emoluments (continued)

Note (i):

Note (ii):

Note (jii):

Note (iv):

Note (v):

Note (vi):

Dr. YIM Fung is the executive director and chairman of the
Company.

Mr. WONG Tung Ching and Mr. LI Guangjie resigned as executive
director with effective from 14 December 2021.

Mr. XIE Lebin and Mr. LIU Yiyong resigned as non-executive
director with effective from 14 December 2021.

Mr. YU Jian, Dr. HU Xupeng and Ms. YU Xuping was appointed as
non-executive director with effective from 14 December 2021.

Ms. QI Haiying is the executive director and chief executive officer
of the Company.

The deferred cash bonus was paid after the completion of
evaluation of the 2019 performance of the executive directors in
2020.

The director remunerations included share-based
compensation and share award expenses of approximately
HK$0.5 million (2020: HK$1.5 million) attributable to share
options granted and of HK$0.6 million (2020: HK$2.4 million)
attributable to share awards granted by Company, part of
which was in respect of their services to the Company.

b.EE-FEREEITH
AEEE 2
b) EE-EERESITH
ABEEME =)

NEAOE

B = (i)

B = i) -

B 3£ (iv) ¢

B 5 (v) -

AR

BIEE L RARABHART
BEERIRF -

EFLXBFEERTHAAN
EEBREIHITES B
202112 14 B ARK ©

HERBE L REEB L
EBAEFANTES B
2021F12 A14BBAERK ©

W O A - AR B IS 1 &
FERBFLZTEZTA
FEFNITES - B20215F
128148 AR -

WEBELLTBARAH
TESFRITHBAEE

MR20204F 58 A 20194F %,
TESRANTEE -
SHEER S IEA -

EEFWEEALTREN
BERERGUBRDAERSD
o & R 0 22 B A 2 490.568
BB T (2020F : 1565 & B
T0) R IR 5 2 E) FE150.6
BEBIT (2020 : 2485 &
BIT) c HRE S I EER
AR AR A AR 7 i SZ A o
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37. Notes to the consolidated statement of
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7. ZEHEREXRME

cash flows
(a) Cash flows from operating activities (a RETHELENERSE
5 T E
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities KRETHEENEERE
Profit before tax B 54 A0 g A 1,287,646 1,814,679
Adjustments for: &R
Depreciation e 78,639 68,859
Share-based compensation expense BARR 15 7 518 79 37 B 5 =2 7,776 25,462
Vesting of shares for the share award i fn LB T 21 55 B AR 0
scheme (6,004) (2,797)
Unrealised loss/(gain) on financial EAFEFGFABEFTEDN
instruments measured at fair value SR T AREIR
through profit and loss (EB18) M= 2,893,978 (913,791)
Unrealised (gain)/loss on debt BRITERESFARE
securities in issue (Wa) B8 (1,844,523) 1,739,592
Unrealised gain on derivative financial TESR T EREE WS
instruments (110,595) (682,498)
Finance cost A& B AR 774,863 830,256
Interest income M E WA (1,372,054) (1,822,643)
Dividend income Hﬁ S A (75,730) (11,530)
Effect of loss allowance on loans and LTEFPERRBRERE
advances to customers, net %ﬂ% B FH 198,296 352,484
Effect of loss allowance on accounts JEURIEEERETE
receivable, net R 17,462 (522)
Effect of loss allowance on client trust B EFEIRTT iﬁ%)ﬁﬂ?ﬁ
bank balance, net BETEFA (2,744) 11,008
Effect of loss allowance on other H b e W 5 IﬁEﬁTEﬁé‘1
receivables, net 2R 326 (1)
Effect of loss allowance on = 7] [B1 5 173 % & WK 0B
receivable from reverse repurchase EEEETE SR
agreements, net (3,144) (424)
Effect of loss allowance on cash and RekReEEBEYEER
cash equivalents, net HEE TR - (742)
Effect of loss allowance on bank RITTF B 18
deposits, net HR B FE 191 (18)
Effect of loss allowance on Financial EAFEFAEMEEK
assets at fair value through other mNEREERBEES
comprehensive income e 10,210 1,700
1,854,593 1,409,154
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37. Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows (continued)

7. mERETREBERWE @

(a) Cash flows from operating activities

() EREZTBHELANRE

(continued) RE(#)
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Increase in other assets H b & EIE N (16,346) (3,087)
Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets at & A FEF ABZHEH S &l
fair value through profit or loss BERD, () 13,551,271 (10,258,748)
Decrease in derivative financial PTESET AR
instruments 423,251 289,374
Increase in loans and advances to BTEFPHERRBFIEM
customers (256,765) (4,258,219)
Increase in accounts receivable JE W SR IE 22 N (938,345) (1,487,254)
Increase in receivable from reverse = 17 [B] & 177 =% & W 0B
repurchase agreements 3 hn3E hn (1,417,785) (774,463)
Decrease in obligations under 5] B 1op i B0 B TR R A
repurchase agreements (8,140,440) (803,063)

Decrease in prepayments, deposits and BT I8 « & K EAbfE
other receivables WK IR A 24,710 126,066
Increase/(decrease) in financial liabilities & A F{ET Az 4 Bl

at fair value through profit or loss &M CR D) 2,342,064 (909,126)
Decrease/(increase) in client trust bank B {E:ER1T4& %R

balances (3% 50) 904,929 (7,536,142)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits EHEFEFORL (38 m) 127,565 (52,992)
Decrease in bank deposits RITF B - 66,440
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable &t ZIE Ot 4>) 48 in (2,196,066) 8,195,860
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HihENFIEREAE

and accrued liabilities CRL ) /45 (203,309) 310,499
Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets at R AFE AEH M2

fair value through other comprehensive Wz K& gt & &

income w3 ) 92,143 (114,529)
Cash generated from/(used in) KETERTR,/ (FA)

operations Bé 6,151,470  (15,800,230)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EECRIET (51,378) (346,122)
Interest received 2 W8 571,580 1,855,014
Interest paid =EENEESS (868,746) (792,727)
Dividend received 2R E 76,126 11,530
Net cash flows from/(used in) KETEBE, (FA)

operating activities ReRn= 55 5,879,052 (15,072,535)
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7. mEBEEREXRKMT 2

37. Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEEBHEENEES
activities 3]
Debt
Bank Lease securities
borrowings liabilities in issue
RITHR HEAE CRTEEES
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FTHT
At January 2020 M202041 A 11,201,110 48,771 33,499,582
Changes from financing BREREREL
cash flows (1,424,242) (26,756) 12,627,953
Foreign exchange HNFE B4 B 7 2R
movement, net (61,032) (27) 52,743
Interest expense FEREZ 287,113 1,353 280,078
Additions NE - 220 -
Interest paid classified DEARKERERE
as operating cash flows HE T F B (291,555) = (229,925)
Decrease/(increase) in interest &~ 7| S5 4 /
payable (3% 1n) 4,442 = (50,151)
Unrealised loss on debt BETERE S
securities in issue REIR Es A - - 1,739,592
9,715,836 23,561 47,919,872
At 31 December 2020 and 7R2020%F12A31H
at 1 January 2021 20211 H1H 9,715,836 23,561 47,919,872
Changes from financing BMERERER
cash flows (4,414,153) (31,656) (811,322)
Foreign exchange movement, 4FE % 8f 5 48
net 5,656 2,259 227,756
Interest expense FEREZ 109,649 1,292 355,507
Additions NE - 72,408 -
Interest paid classified as DERKEE S
operating cash flows mEHE A (113,754) — (475,647)
Decrease in interest payable &~ Fl| 28 4> 4,105 = 120,140
Unrealised gain on debt BEITERE
securities in issue REAIE IR - - (1,844,523)
5,307,339 67,864 45,491,783
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37. Notes to the consolidated statement of 37. Z2BELREXRMET o
cash flows (continued)

(c) Major non-cash transactions (c) EEFREXRS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right ﬁ’\ilﬁ AEEBYE - BE
of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$74,599,000 (2020: REHERHF D RIS
HK$220,000) and HK$72,408,000 (2020: HK$220,000), i/dﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéééw?ﬁﬁﬁ
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for property, &74,599,0007% JT (20204 :
plant and equipment. 220,000/ 7t) & 72,408,000/
7t (20204 : 220,000/ 7T) °
38. Unconsolidated structured entity 38. RérEHEBEHER
A structured entity is an entity in which voting rights are not the %ET%’lEE%‘a?%&mT%iE#J&ET il
dominant factor in deciding control. Structured entity is generally BEHTEREZMNERE -SBIEER
created to achieve a narrow and well defined objective with Eﬁ%?fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ’\] BiEm
restrictions around their ongoing activities. % BEFBEEEHIIRE -
Depending on the Group’s power over the activities of the entity %E?L"El”ﬁ ERETHNENRE
and its exposure to and the ability to influence its own returns, it ERODGNTEREERATER
may consolidate the entity. In other cases, it may sponsor or have ’E‘g@i&ﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬁ MmE " Al ER
an interest in such an entity but does not consolidate it. The Group REAR - EHEMBART - HAJ g8
sponsors an entity when: EPERIRNERTHEER B
THEERBEAEARE T B RBA
SEED—HEE:
() It is the majority user of the entity; () EHEAZEBNIZAP
(i) Its name appears in the name of the entity or on the products iy HEBLIREZEBNRE
issued by the entity; RZEBETNER
(i) It provides implicit or explicit guarantees of the entity’s iy HAZEBNEERHERS
performance; and LEARRER &
(iv) It led the formation of the entity. (iv) HZEFEKUZER -
The unconsolidated structured entities invest in a range of asset RITERBUEERBRERLEBEE
classes. The Group receives income from these unconsolidated Hpl  c AEBFBEZRETERET
structured entities through the receipt of arrangement fees and WEr EZ BRI L H B A kA2
interest income from interest bearing notes issued by these entities. AT B #ZERGEEEB M E R IER
As of 31 December 2021, the Group held notes of HK$ 2,519 WA - B E20216F12A318 * K&
million (2020: HK$4,536 million), under financial assets held for EEFEEEARESCREE (W
trading and investments (note 20), issued by these entities. H20) ETRAEZEERBETNE

#2,56198 &8 7T (20204 : 4,536
BEBL) °
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38. Unconsolidated structured entity (continued) 38. AR EHEBEMEE »
Income from the sponsored structured entities and assets KESTEHNEBEEEEN KA R
transferred to the structured entities are as follow: EETLEBUEEREBNEENOT ¢

2021 2020
20215 2020%F
Interest Commission Assets Interest Commission Assets
Income and fees transferred Income and fees transferred
FERA HERER CEEEEE ME A RHeRER BBZZE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TAT TAT TAL
Assets securitisations BEEH 290,768 42,439 - 375,575 74,781 540,607

39. Five highest paid individuals 0. EUERSFMAL
Excluding amounts paid or payable by way of commission of sales BRAEALTEENHEEREN A
generated by the individuals, the five highest paid employees AN Z AR FRIEIN  FARN
during the year included two (2020: two) directors, details of = EES BEME (20204 ¢
whose remuneration are set out in note 36 above. Details of the M) EE HFEMFBEHR EX
remuneration of the remaining three (2020: three) non-director and I 5536 o & A E & = & (20204 :
highest paid employees for the year are as follows: =R)FEZFREHMNES N

RIS ¢

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Salaries and allowances e MOEBL 7,893 9,360
Discretionary bonuses B FEAL 12,249 27,000
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme & = ARk & =1 2] 4 7% 44 54
Sub-total /NG 20,186 36,414

Share-based compensation reserve LA R 19 7 EE 1t 5 B = s
— Share option expense —ElRERX 181 494
— Share award expense — BB 927 4,058

Total HE 21,294 40,966
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39. Five highest paid individuals (continued) 0. ANEEEHEMA L=
The number of non-director and highest paid employees of the FEEE MAREESZSHFEIES
Group whose emoluments fell within the following bands is as MABIREMESESEREWMT :
follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
Number of Number of
employees employees
BEAE EE A

Emolument bands B < &1 &
- HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 -6,000,0014 7T 26,500,000/ 7T 1 -
- HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 -6,500,0014 7t £7,000,000/% 7T 1 -
- HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 -7,000,0017 7C £7,500,0007% 7T 1 -
- HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000 -11,000,001% £ £11,500,000/5 7T - 1
- HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 -11,500,001%7C £12,000,000/5 7T - 1
- HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 -18,000,001,%7£ 213,500,000/ 7T - 1
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40. BB A R Z

BREBHRRAZTEHIINR
5 RAERRIN  ARERFRE
R T EITATERR S -

40. Related party transactions

(@) In addition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere (a)
in the financial statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties during the year.

2021 2020
202145 2020%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FBT T
Commission expenses to the ST &REZER R R
ultimate holding company ikl (i) (1,570) (1,059)
Professional and consultancy ST RAKER R
fees paid to fellow subsidiaries FEERFEARE (ii) (64,599) (38,027)
Management fee income and KAaZ2EME AT
performance fee income of EENRRKB
a private fund managed by a RARENLSES
wholly-owned subsidiary of HEEBERAR
the Company and invested KBEWA
by a fellow subsidiary (iif) - 1,026
Commission income received B _EatFLEE S WEAY
from the above private fund HElA (iv) - 300
Commission income of a public R ZK B A REER
fund managed by a fellow REESNAEBA
subsidiary (V) 25 15
Commission income from an B H IR A B 4 ER &Y
immediate holding company He A (Vi) 5 =
Commission income from the B s AR A m W E Y
ultimate holding company el A (vii) 143 76
Underwriting fee and sponsor B s AR A 7 WA Y
fee income from the ultimate BHBERERERA
holding company (viii) 793 -
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40. Related party transactions (continued)

40. BB R F )

(@) (continued) (@ (&)
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FET T
Commission income from fellow EREES NN
subsidiaries A (ix) 1,661 2,669
Commission income and handling B % — & & & 2 = WER &)
income from another fellow e ARFEEBA
subsidiary (x) 570 757
Consultancy service fee and XA T E S ERA R R
corporate finance service fee =N obi
paid to the ultimate holding BRPERERGE
company and fellow subsidiary (xi) (44,678) (29,497)
Advisory income of a public fund R R B A&l %E 2
managed by a fellow subsidiary REESERIIA (xii) - 70
Commission income of private eI SENEEEE
funds managed by a fellow LEESAS KA
subsidiary (xiii) 721 1,386
Management fee income from BARRZEWERF
a public fund managed by a BEERFBPNERRAF]
wholly-owned subsidiary of the WENNEHES WE
Company and invested by an HWEEE WA
immediate holding company (xiv) 2,540 -
Notes: PaE -

(i)

(i

(ii)

The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were
calculated based on the percentage of the transaction value stated in the
Cooperation Agreement signed with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The professional and consultancy fees paid to the fellow subsidiaries
for the provision of capital market information were charged at
HK$64,599,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$38,027,000).

The management fee income and performance fee income received from
a private fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and invested by a fellow subsidiary were charged at 1.5% per annum
of the net asset value at the last working day of each month and 20%
of the positive increment in the net asset value for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: 20%).

(ii)

(iii)

XN FREERARNAR
M DIREARAN—KE
&P B A R RS A T R
FIANRZ ZEB DL E -

B E2021F12A31B8 I E
REEMBARREREELRS
BENMNBEERABAES
64,599,000/ 7t (20204 :
38,027,000/ 7 ) °

BAARZENBARERE
FREMBARKRENILE
ESWHMHEREWARE
/B W ARE E2021F1248
SIBEFESEAZE —ET
EBMEEFESTF1.5%MU
& & 7= % {E IE 32 0 58 6920%
(2020%F : 20%) W & -
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40. Related party transactions (continued)

(@)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

The commission fees received from the private fund mentioned in note (iv)
above included commission income which was based on 0.15% (2020:
0.15%) of the transaction value.

The commission income received from the public fund managed by
the fellow subsidiary was based on the pricing stated in the signed
brokerage agreement with the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The commission income received from the immediate holding company
was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The commission income received from the ultimate holding company
was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The underwriting and sponsor fee income received from the ultimate
holding company was based on the underwriting and sponsor agreement
with the ultimate holding company.

The commission income received from fellow subsidiaries were based on
the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company.

The commission income and handling income received from another
fellow subsidiary were based on the pricing stated in the signed
brokerage agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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40. BB R F )

(@) (&
sk : (&)
vy B LEXHEivATiLEES

(vi)

(vil)

(viil)

(i)

KEHnEEBERBERRS
fE#90.15% (20204 : 0.15%)
ATERESRA -

SN NG SBER PN
E2 B Aok ARER
RA—HF2EMBARARL
MR A DI R FE B AR

BEZRERARRERNMEE
WA REBAR R 2 &K B
A ) ER N HY KR AT thh 51 BR EY
EEKE -

B & AR ER QR WE [
WATIREKRRNE —RE2E
B /B8 /A B %5 3L B A8 42 15 =& S
AHEBKE -

B & &R A 7 W EH B 8
REBEREAZKIZERA A
BUHBHREBDHELE -

BRZKE QR KRN EE
WA REBAR R 2 & KB
NIRRT F SR RN
EERE

B%—RAMER KRR
BEeRARFEBERATDR
BEARB—RE2EMEAQF
B KL HHEF B E B
Y -
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40. BB R F )

(@  (continued) @ (&

40. Related party transactions (continued)

iEE : (4F)

Notes: (continued)

(xi) The consultancy service fee and corporate finance service fee paid (i) AT HEEERAFRKNENR
to the ultimate holding company were based on the pricing stated in R E R L ERE RS ER
consultancy services and corporate finance services agreements with HARRZENBARNE
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. o AR 75 R 1 2 Bl & AR 75 1 a2

Fr &l & B ULER ©

(xi)y ~ The advisory income received from a public fund managed by a fellow i) BRRXWBARETEASZE
subsidiary was based on the pricing stated in the advisory agreement £ W EH) B & T AN E A
with wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. REIZ2EWMEB AR R LEA

5] 199 2% BT &5 6 (B MER ©

(xii)  The commission income received from private funds was based on the xiiy BALEESUWENEEER
pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with wholly-owned DERERRAZENRER
subsidiaries of the Company. RIFTRT M S48 e 8 e (B

WeER ©

(xiv)  The management fee income received from public fund managed by a xiv) BARSEZ2ENEQRERE
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group and invested by the immediate RHRNERAREENRE
holding company were charged at percentage stated under respective E2WBmHEBERATIE
management fee agreement. REBERBRHBAMESEE D

LE W & o

(xv)  Included in the Group’s accounts payable was a broker payable due to xv) AEEHENRESER
the ultimate holding company of HK$8,013,000 (2020: HK$7,184,000) 2021 12A31HEE & &
arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December 2021. The balance EENEREKRERARE
was unsecured, interest-free and payable on the settlement day under - 4% 42 5K 758,013,000/% 7T
the relevant market practices. (20204 : 7,184,000/ 7T) °

RIEEATHIEG - &R
REER 2ERERKER
B fte

(xvi) Included in the Group’s accounts receivable was a broker receivable (xvi) 7N 5 B B FE W R IE B 5RO
due from the ultimate holding company of HK$94,463,000 (2020: 2021F12ABIHEEEFE
HK$89,937,000) arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December AR EREEIERRREL
2021. The credit terms provided to the ultimate holding company were X IE94,468,000/% 7T (2020
consistent with the practice of the securities dealing industry. The £ 1 89,937,000/ L) ° M &
balance was unsecured, interest-free and receivable on the settlement IR A RIRHEHEE KK
day under the relevant market practices. BEAFBERTENEG B -

BB 5B 0 & &%
REEAR SEREREE
A U ER -

(xvii) Included in the Group’s prepayment, deposits and other receivable of (xvi) AEBMELGRE B2 R

HK$27,599,000 (2020:HK$38,370,000) was an advance repayment to
the fellow subsidiary for professional and consultancy fee mentioned in
the note (ii).

H b fE U FX1E27,599,0007%
7t (20204 : 38,370,000/
JT) B3 ¥E ik B R (Gl P ot B 2 %
BABMRRNE QR A
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40. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

Included in the Group’s accounts payable were amounts due to the
ultimate holding company of HK$169,000 (2020: HK$160,000) and the
fellow subsidiaries of HK$201,853,000 (2020: HK$12,526,000) and
another fellow subsidiary of HK$145,226,000 (2020: HK$12,159,000)
arising from dealing in securities, futures and foreign exchange as at
31 December 2021. The balances were unsecured, interest-free and
payable on demand.

Included in the Group’s accounts payable were the accounts payable to
the ultimate holding company mentioned in note (xi) for the consulting
service fee and corporate finance service fee of HK$28,646,000 (2020:
HK$14,644,000) as at 31 December 2021.

Included in the Group’s accounts payable was accounts payable to
private funds of HK$489,000 (2020: HK$nil) arising from dealing in
securities as at 31 December 2021. The balance was unsecured,
interest-free and payable on the settlement day under the relevant
market practices.

Included in the Group’s accounts receivables were amounts due from
a public fund managed by a fellow subsidiary mentioned in note (xii) of
nil (2020: HK$34,000) arising from advisory service provided as at 31
December 2021.
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(@)

(&

MisE : (42)

(xviii)

(Xix)

(xx)

(Xxxi)

R2021512HA318 - A& B
ZENFEREREERS
HERIINEEE ZENEK
22 f% A 71169,0005% 7T (2020
4 : 160,000/ 7T) * B A
Z M B A 7]201,853,000/8 7T
(20204 : 12,526,00078 T )
FEMS—HRZRKE AR
145,226,0007% 7T (20204 :
12,159,000/ 7T.) ° &% & 2 J)
MR B RARERE
AT o

R20215F12H318 * A& B
K FE T R B R R £ SRR
(Xi)FT AL 45 T fR AR P2 AR A Al Y
BARBERCERERS
#28,646,0007% 7T (20207 :
14,644,000/ 7T) °

R2021F12A8318 » A &
EMENRECERNEE X
FEEXRMNILAESFRE
489,0007 Jt (20204 : T
TL) KB AEET SRR
BIZHEETSEG R B
At e

R2021412H318 * "&E B
O FE U 5118 B 3E B AR A EE S
BR 75 7 AE HO B UK _E ST P R (xii)
REMBRAREEAEES
KT IE Z (20204 : 34,000/
TT) °
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40. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The Group’s ultimate holding company, Guotai Junan, is
subject to the control of the PRC Government which also
controls a significant portion of assets and entities in the
PRC (collectively referred to as “state-owned enterprises”).
Therefore, transactions with state-owned enterprises are
regarded as related party transactions.

Majority of the bank borrowings and deposits of the Group
were entered into with state-owned banks. In addition, the
Group enters into transactions with state-owned enterprises
that relate to the Group’s normal business activities, including
but not limited to brokerage services, corporate finance
business, asset management business, loan and financing
business and investment holding and market making business.
These transactions are entered into in the ordinary course of
business at an arm’s length and under the normal commercial
terms and conditions as to those that would have been
entered into with non-state-owned enterprises, which were
not considered as individually significant in accordance with
HKAS 24.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i) to (ix) and
(xi) to(xiii) also constitute continuing connected transactions to
be disclosed in the annual report as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Details of the remuneration of the key management personnel
of the Group are disclosed in note 36 to the financial
statements.

40. BB R F )

(@)

(%)

AEBHNREERABDBEZE
BRXTPEBFES - mF E
BT 70 #2 1 o BB O KD
NEENER (BREAIBRA
) - Fit - EEADEHN
RPVPBRERBEH TS -

AEBABIR|RITERLE
I EBE B RITRISL © bEHh
AEBEEEALRETHERE
BRESXEBEDEHENRS -
BREETRRBLRTS %
MEXD BEEEXHK &
REBEED  REZER MM
MER - ZEXHIRAFE
BRRPRATMEEIFEEE
CRETHNRSBUNESR
SRR MR ETT - IRIR
AR B EAF24H L AR
BREMNERRZS °

b STE ()2 (ix) B (xi) Z (xiii) B 5
B X 5 I8 K B RS R
BEREI2EERERS (EER
EMARAE TWOAE) o

AEBEFTEZEABSFHMF
BB 75 Rk MY iE 361K B8 -
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M. emERER

41. Financial risk management

The Group’s activities mainly expose to such financial risks as
credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management framework focuses on the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and monitoring of these risks which are an inevitable
consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore
to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimise any potential adverse effect on the Group’s financial
performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are approved by the board
of directors and are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information.
The board of directors provides written principles for overall risk
management. The Group regularly reviews its risk management
policies to reflect any change in the market and clients.

The main financial risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The
policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below:

Credit risk

Credit exposures arise principally from loans and advances to
customers, accounts receivable, debt securities, bank balances and
client trust bank balances which are included in the Group’s asset
portfolio.

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

The board of directors delegates to the management committee,
include credit committee and risk management committee the
duties to monitor the credit risk of the Group. Members of the
credit committee and risk management committee include, inter
alia, the chief executive officer, the chief financial officer, the chief
risk officer, responsible officers and the head of related control
departments. The credit committee is mainly responsible for the
development of margin financing business and approval of major
credit exposure and the risk management committee to provide
independent supervision of all credit risk metrics and limits.
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41. Financial risk management (continued) M. emEREE#)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

The risk management department and business department are
responsible for approval, monitoring and review of the Group’s
credit risk of financing clients. It is also responsible for making
settlement calls when the trades of financing clients exceed
their respective limits. Failure to meet margin calls may result
in liquidation of the client’s position. The credit limit and margin
limit for each client and the lending ratio of securities acceptable
as collateral prepared by business department and approved by
risk management department, the significant transaction will be
approved by the credit committee or other management committee.

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for
subscription of new shares are normally settled within 1 week from
the drawdown date. Forced liquidation action would be taken if
the customers fail to settle their shortfall within a specific period of
tolerance after the IPO allotment result is announced.

For debt securities, external rating such as Standard & Poor’s
and Moody’s ratings or their equivalents are used by the risk
management department for managing credit risk exposures as
supplemented by the Group’s own credit assessment.

The Group’s bank balances are deposited in respectable and
large commercial banks. For the client trust bank balances which
are held in segregated accounts, they are deposited in authorised
financial institutions in Hong Kong. The credit risk of bank balances
and client trust bank balances is considered insignificant.

Accounts receivable from clients represent receivables from clients
arising from dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery-
against payment settlement term of 1 to 3 days. The Group allows
credit up to the settlement dates of the respective securities
transactions (normally from T+1 to T+3 days). All applications for
credit limits must be reviewed by the credit manager and approved
by risk management department or the credit committee. The risk
management department and business department determines
whether a forced liquidation action is to be taken against clients
with overdue balances on a case-by-case basis. The credit
committee regularly reviews the overdue balances.
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41. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

The Group only accepts margin deposits in the form of cash for
futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and
broking. No unauthorised transaction is allowed to be executed
if the current position of the customer exceeds its trading limit.
The margin deposit placed and the aggregate of the required
margin deposits of each futures, options and leveraged foreign
exchange contract are timely monitored by both the dealers and
the risk management department. Margin calls will be executed
by the on-site duty staff for futures, options and leveraged foreign
exchange brokerage business if there is a deficit with the margin
deposit. Forced liquidation of the customer’s position will be
executed if the customer fails to meet the margin calls.

Management considers that the credit risk of the Group resulting
from securities, futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange
brokerage business as well as margin and other loan financing is
properly managed within the defined internal control framework.

The Group established monitoring measures for loan business,
including pre-lending limit approval, real-time post-lending
monitoring, executing margin calls and forced liquidations,
setting single client and single securities collateral loan limit, and
conducting regular stress tests, etc. Should the borrowers fail to
fulfil their obligations, the business line and control units will firmly
carry out the loss recovery actions under the procedures of the
Group.

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large
financial institutions which are governed by regulators. The credit
risk of accounts receivable from brokers and dealers is considered
insignificant.

Ageing of accounts receivable from corporate clients and
investment funds arising from corporate finance, asset management
and investment holding and market making businesses is closely
monitored. There were no significant defaults in the past.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and
other clearing houses is considered to be minimal.
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41. Financial risk management (continued) M. emEREE#)

Credit risk (continued)

Loss allowance and provisioning policies

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual outstanding
amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9, where the loss allowance
requirements under HKFRS 9 are based on an expected credit loss
model. The Group applies simplified approach to measure expected
credit losses (“ECL”) on accounts receivable from corporate
clients, investment funds and others; and general approach to
measure ECL on loans and advances to customers, time deposits
and other financial assets accounted for at amortised cost and
fair value through other comprehensive income as well as loan
commitments. Under the simplified approach, the Group measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. Under the
general approach, financial assets migrate through the following
three stages based on the change in credit risk since initial
recognition: Stage 1: 12-months ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the
Group’s historical experience and expert credit risk assessment,
including forward-looking information. The loan and advances
use the number of days past due (“DPD”) and loan-to-collateral
value (“LTV”) to determine significant increase in credit risk. For
non-standard financing, internally derived credit ratings have been
identified as representing the best available determinant of credit
risk. Credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly if the
credit rating has significantly deteriorated at the reporting date
relative to the credit rating at the date of initial recognition.
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41. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Calculation of expected credit losses

The ECL are assessed by the Group on semi-annual basis. Based
on DPD, LTV and internally derived credit ratings, loans and
advances to customers are classified into 3 stages.

Under stage 1 is calculated on collective basis. The probabilities
of price changes of various scenarios are calculated based on the
observed historical price movements of the underlying collateral
stocks. The ECL of each scenario is then calculated in accordance
with the respective loan exposure. When the loans are classified
under stage 2 and stage 3, the lifetime ECL is calculated.

As at 31 December 2021, the average loss rate for 12-month ECL
and lifetime ECL was 0.01% (2020: 0.02%) and 94.04% (2020:
85.52%) respectively.

If there is material decrease in collateral value and the full recovery
of the loan is in doubt, the retail and non-standard loan will be
classified into stage 3. For the loans classified as stage 3, the
Group may further calculate the ECL based on probability-weighted
scenarios to measure the expected credit loss. Each scenario is
associated with different exposure at default and probability.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

When estimating the ECL on loan and advances to customers,
the Group has incorporated forward-looking economic information
through the use of industry trend and experienced credit judgement
to reflect the qualitative factors, and through the use of multiple
probability-weighted scenarios by the stock market analysis.
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41. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at the end of the
reporting period, in relation to each class of financial assets, is the
carrying amount of those assets as indicated in the statement of

financial position.

These amounts represent the worst case scenario of credit risk
exposure to the Group at 31 December 2021 and 2020 without
taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements

attached.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure
(@) Bank balances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank balances and the
majority of cash and bank balances are located in Hong Kong.
As the Group’s bank balances and client trust bank balances
are deposited with a number of financially sound financial
institutions, in the opinion of the directors, the concentration
risk of the Group’s bank balances and client trust bank

balances is insignificant.

(b) Loans and advances to customers and accounts
receivable from clients

The counterparties of the majority of loans and advances to
customers (including margin loans, IPO loans and other loan
financing) and accounts receivable from clients are individuals
who are mainly located in China. The business department
and risk management department daily prepares an analysis
of key financing client and futures, options and leveraged
foreign exchange client exposure for review to avoid excessive
concentration of risk. The Group manages its concentration
risk by diversified clients and collateral portfolio and various

concentration limit.
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41. Financial risk management (continued) 41.

Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

exposure (continued)

(c) Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers as well as
clearing houses and others
The Group also has accounts receivable from clearing houses,
brokers and dealers from its securities, futures, options and
leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business as well as
other receivables from asset management, corporate finance
and investment holding and market making businesses.
Responsible officers manage the concentration of risk by
monitoring their respective exposures on a timely basis.

Securities borrowing and lending

In the normal course of brokerage business, the Group enters into
securities borrowing and lending arrangements with customers and
financial institutions. The Group is not subject to significant price
risks under the securities borrowing and lending arrangement. The
cash collateral received and cash collateral placed are included in
the accounts payable and accounts receivable from brokers and
dealers, respectively. The Group is principally liable for repaying the
borrowed securities in case of any default by the customers.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s outstanding securities
borrowed/lent to customers and financial institutions and their
corresponding cash collateral paid/received are as follows:
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institutions % 1 75 5 407,779 688,738

Equity securities pledged by margin customers R & & & F &S IR E
for stock lending i 455 150 ) % 4 75 o 6,481 16,476
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Cash collateral received from customers B WE R IR & 1 & 37,289 17,299
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41. Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk
that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks mainly
arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity
products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or
prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices.

The financial instruments held by the Group mainly exposed
it to interest rate risk and price risk. The market risk mainly
includes cash flow interest rate risk and price risk. The Group has
established policies and procedures for monitoring and controlling
the market risk arising from these financial instruments.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s loans and advances to
customers, accounts receivable, financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, accounts payable to clients,
bank borrowings, debt securities in issue, receivable from reverse
repurchase agreements, obligations under repurchase agreements,
client trust bank balances and cash and bank balances. Debt
investments usually bear a fixed rate interest and they are managed
through the strategy of trading them within a short period of time.

Interest on cash at banks will fluctuate at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Bank borrowings and margin loans
receivable at variable rates exposed the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Other financial assets and liabilities which are mainly
carried at amortised cost are either non-interest-bearing or fixed
interest-bearing with short term maturities within one year, of which
the interest rate risk is also considered to be minimal. The Group
mitigates its interest rate risk by monitoring market interest rate
movements and revising the interest rates offered to its customers
on an ongoing basis in order to limit potential adverse effects of
interest rate movements on net interest income. The Group regularly
calculates the impact on profit or loss of a possible interest rate
shift on its portfolio of bank borrowings, margin loans receivable,
debt securities investment and interest-bearing bank deposits.
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41. Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table illustrates the potential impact, of a parallel
upward or downward shift of 100 basis points in interest rate
curves with all other variables held constant on the Group’s net
profit for the next twelve months from the reporting date, based on
the Group’s positions of interest-earning assets, interest-bearing
liabilities and debt securities investments at year end.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
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Increase/(decrease)
in profit before tax
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2021 2020

2021% 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

Interest rate increase 100 basis points  F/= £ A100E % FE T TAT
Interest-earning assets and interest-bearing £ BB ENTEBE

liabilities 73,123 3,596

Debt securities investment BIEBEHFEE (62,978) (360,764)

Net Amount FHE 10,145 (357,168)

The estimated 1% increase in interest rate represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual reporting period.
The sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative because the year-end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

For the financial products and derivative financial instruments held
by the Group are structured as debt securities in issue for sales to
customers. They are not subject to significant risk as the risk has
been transferred to customers accordingly.

For the value of private bonds and private equities held by the
Group are not sensitive to the movement of interest rate or equity
index, they are not subject to the sensitivity analysis.
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41. Financial risk management (continued) 41.

Market risk (continued)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk from equity
derivative instruments and fund investments held by the Group
which are classified in the statement of financial position as
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Price risk is the risk of changes in fair value of financial instruments
from fluctuations, whether such a change in price is caused by
factors specific to the individual instrument or factors affecting all
instruments traded in the markets. The Group mitigates its price
risk by performing detailed due diligence analysis of investments
and dedicated professionals are assigned to oversee and monitor
the performance of investments.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
assumption that the price of all the investment of equity instruments
and funds move according to the historical correlation with the
Hong Kong Hang Seng Index and other relevant indices. The
analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had
changed by 10% with all other variable held constant, it represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
equity index.
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2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$’000

Changes in relevant index HBEHES THET T8It
Increase 10% EF10% 187,748 181,220
Decrease 10% TBE10% (187,748) (181,220)
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41. Financial risk management (continued) M. emEREE#)

Market risk (continued)

Price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative because the year-end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

For the financial products and derivative financial instruments held
by the Group are structured as equity derivative products in issue
for sales to customers and for hedging purpose. They are not
subject to significant risk as the risk has been either transferred to
customers or properly hedged and mitigated accordingly.

For the value of private bonds and private equities held by the
Group are not sensitive to the movement of interest rate or equity
index, they are not subject to the sensitivity analysis.

Besides, the asset quality of the margin clients’ margin collateral
will deteriorate when the market comes down drastically, scenario
analysis and stress testing are regularly performed on an individual
client basis.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements in foreign
currency exchange rates will affect the Group’s financial results and
its cash flows.

The Group’s foreign exchange risk principally arises from its
leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking business as well as
the Group’s transactions which are denominated in currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollars.

For the leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business, the Group
hedges the majority of the client positions through back-to-back
transactions with external counterparties. The Group adopts
stringent control over its positions to minimize its exposure to
foreign exchange risk.

The Group’s principal operations are transacted and recorded in
Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars (“US$”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”). The Group is not exposed to material foreign exchange
risk because HK$ is pegged with US$. The Group also conducts
appropriate hedging activities when it is exposed to material
exchange risk in RMB. Other foreign currency exposure is relatively
minimal to its total assets and liabilities. The foreign exchange
risk is daily managed and monitored by the treasury and finance
department.
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41. Financial risk management (continued) 41.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient
cash, the availability of funding from an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, the
treasury department maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
available committed credit facilities from the banks.

Sources of liquidity are daily reviewed by treasury department
to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all
obligations.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
reserve (comprising undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows in strict compliance
with statutory requirements. This is achieved by monitoring the
liquidity position of the individual companies within the Group on a
daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet
all obligations and compliance with the statutory requirements such
as the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules.
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41. Financial risk management (continued) 41.

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables summarise the maturity profile of the Group’s
financial liabilities, based on the contractual and undiscounted cash
flows:

As at 31 December 2021 M2021F12H831H

Up to 1to 3to 1to
1 month 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
-k —Z=@F =Z+={@AR =ZEahE @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THER TR TAR THER TRR
Liabilities a8
Accounts payable & A 20,587,166 = = - 20,587,166
Bank borrowings BITER 3,530,516 - 1,785,416 - 5,315,932
Lease liabilities MEARE 1,455 2,911 13,111 23,455 40,932
Debt securities in issue BRTERES 25,132,155 1,616,571 7,405,099 11,337,957 45,491,782
Financial liabilities at fair value RATEF ARG
through profit or loss cRAR 8,772,805 = = - 8,772,805
Obligations under repurchase [l 15 M R IR
agreements 3,775,095 4,101,885 1,378,743 - 9,255,723
61,799,192 5,721,367 10,582,369 11,361,412 89,464,340
Off-balance sheet items EEBEXRIMNEBE
Underwriting obligations A EGE 144,900 - - - 144,900
Capital commitments BARAE 16,034 - = = 16,034
160,934 - - - 160,934
Derivative cash flows TERERE
Derivative financial instruments ReBEENTE
settled on a gross basis SRTH
Total inflows FEN TN 996,330 675,478 8,459,008 589,905 10,720,721
Total outflows ECh oy (978,025)  (676,131) (8,416,829)  (631,845) (10,702,830)
18,305 (653) 42,179 (41,940) 17,891
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41. Financial risk management (continued) M. EcRBEREE®
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRR &)
As at 31 December 2020 #2020%F12H31H
Up to 110 3to 1to
1 month 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
—@AR" —Z=fA =E+=fdA —EhF wEt

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TR TAT

Liabilities &
Accounts payable AN 22,783,232 - - - 22,783,232
Bank borrowings RITEK 7,677,534 300,649 1,764,305 - 9,742,488
Lease liabilities MERE 2,233 4,466 12,452 7,404 26,555
Debt securities in issue BETEBES 26,665,472 1,592,447 7,940,383 11,843,094 48,041,396
Financial liabilities at fair value BLTEFABR
through profit or loss cHEE 6,666,260 - - - 6,666,260
Obligations under repurchase |15 i 228
agreements 12,873,451 4,109,181 413,531 - 17,396,163
76,668,182 6,006,743 10,130,671 11,850,498 104,656,094
Off-balance sheet items EEBBRINER
Underwriting obligations A G 5,178 = = = 5178
Capital commitments BAREE 17,772 = = = 17,772
22,950 - - - 22,950
Derivative cash flows TERERE
Derivative financial instruments RRBEENITAE
settled on a gross basis SRTA
Total inflows BRA 861,532 1,900,121 9,625,996 4,018,074 16,405,723
Total outflows Eehohi (805,173)  (1,827,880)  (9,015,513)  (4,091,667) (15,740,233)

56,359 72,241 610,483 (73,593) 665,490
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M. EFEREE 2

41. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
Financial instruments not measured at fair value

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values of the Group’s
financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value were not
materially different from their carrying amount due to their short
term nature.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Group’s valuation process

The fair values of financial assets in Level 1 and Level 2 are
measured by reference to quoted market prices and brokers’
quotes, respectively. The Group engaged independent professional
valuers to perform the valuation of financial instruments in Level 3
for financial reporting purposes. These valuation reports are sent to
the finance department and the Audit Committee for discussion at
least twice per annum, which is in line with the Group’s reporting
dates.

At each financial year end, the finance department reviews all
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments used to
measure the fair values of financial instruments in Level 3. Changes
in fair values of financial assets in Levels 2 and 3 are analysed at
each reporting date.
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41. Financial risk management (continued) M. EcRBEREE®
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities EMEEREENAFE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BAFHEGTEMLHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy NI EEFR
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TXRXEBRAEBRESRm T AN AFEE
of the Group’s financial instruments: STEER
Assets measured at fair value: EAFEFENEE
As at 31 December 2021 #2021%12831H

Fair value measurement using

RAATEENATENE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
prdid BRY BREHL
mIERE BE2Y BR2Y
(B14) (E24%) (38) #gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THER THER TR
Non-current ERE
Financial assets held for trading and #{EEERRE S RMEE
investments
- Unlisted fixed income securites ~ —3E EEE W E 5 - 4,106,706 - 4,106,706
- Unlisted convertible securities —JF EmARRES - - 223,427 223,427
- Unlisted equity securities —FEMRAES = = 1,823,797 1,823,797
Financial assets at fair value through & A F{Ezt A B &)
profit or loss SHEE
- Financial products —SREM 728,229 6,111,341 4,375,319 11,214,889
Derivative financial instruments TEEmIA - 12,325 - 12,325
728,229 10,230,372 6,422,543 17,381,144
Current B
Financial assets held for trading FEEBERIREN
and investments PREE
- Listed equity securities —EMRAES 1,166,283 - - 1,166,283
— Listed fixed income securities — B ENEES - 8,218,544 = 8,218,544
- Unlisted fixed income securities ~ —3F EEE Wz E 5 - 3,651,761 1,586,506 5,238,267
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEGABZNEH
through profit or loss BE
— Unlisted fund investments —FEMEERE - 1,979,986 390,098 2,370,084
- Other financial instruments —HEpemTA - 94,880 - 94,880
- Financial products -~ S REM 1,786,320 16,906,167 1,691,933 20,384,420
Financial assets at fair value through &2 FEzF A E {1 2 E W
other comprehensive income ANCREE
- Unlisted fixed income securites ~ —3E M EKES = 11,529 = 11,529
Derivative financial instruments fTESMIA - 606,905 - 606,905
2,952,603 31,469,772 3,668,537 38,090,912

3,680,832 41,700,144 10,091,080 55,472,056
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41. Financial risk management (continued) M. cRBEBREE®
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities tHEEREBENATE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) B FEGTENTH LA (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NYEBEEL &)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BATEFENEE : (8)
As at 31 December 2020 M2020%12H31H

Fair value measurement using

RAATSENATENE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Vg BXA EPN
iGME BR2Y BR2Y
(B1R) (F2M%) (534) @5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL FTAL TAL TAL
Non-current ERE
Financial assets held for trading FIEEERIRE
and investments SHEE
- Unlisted fixed income securiies ~ —3F AT KE&EH - 5,878,878 - 5,878,878
- Unlisted convertible securities —FE LM AR EES - - 195,758 195,758
- Unlisted equity securities —FEMBRAES - - 730,985 730,985
Financial assets at fair value BATEEFABREN
through profit or loss SHEE
~ Financial products —EREm 309,887 4,149,699 5,711,354 10,170,940
Derivative financial instruments fTESMIA - 108,172 - 108,172
309,887 10,136,749 6,638,097 17,084,733
Current E
Financial assets held for trading FEEERIREMD
and investments SHEE
- Listed equity securities —EMRAES 1,439,070 - - 1,439,070
- Listed fixed income securities — FHETE W& E R - 15,683,053 - 15,683,053
- Unlisted fixed income securities ~ —3F FEE W E S = 5,261,345 = 5,261,345
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFAERR
through profit or loss CREE
- Unlisted fund investments ~kETMESKRE - 1,986,769 - 1,986,769
- Other financial instruments —HEpemTA - 225,618 = 225,618
- Financial products —EREM 1,928,282 25,558,371 1,854,496 29,341,149
Financial assets at fair value RATFEFALM
through profit or loss through FEMENE R
other comprehensive income BE
- Unlisted debt securities —FETEBES - 105,574 - 105,574
Derivative financial instruments fTESMIA - 1,153,182 - 1,153,182
3,367,352 49,973,912 1,854,496 55,195,760

3,677,239 60,110,661 8,492,593 72,280,493
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41. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2021

M. EFEREE 2
EREEREBN QA FE

(%)

ffﬂ?ﬁ#gﬂ?ﬁgsﬂIﬁ(%

RFEER &)

BATFEAENAR:

M2021%12H31H

Fair value measurement using

RAATEENAFETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
5 B EDNG| BREL
hiERE BE2y BE2Y
(B14R) (%2%%) (8838) @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET TER TET
Non-current Ei )
Debt securities in issue designated 35 5E & A FExH A
at fair value through BRA B ET
profit and loss B - (3,823,294) (4,375,319) (8,198,613)
Derivative financial instruments fTESBMIA - (106,409) - (106,409)
= (3,929,703) (4,375,319) (8,305,022)
Current E
Debt securities in issue designated 15 E R A FET A
at fair value through BamBET
profit and loss BHEH - (13,882,070) (1,973,204) (15,855,274)
Financial liabilities held for trading FEEESBEE
- Listed equity securities t MR AR % (69,105) - - (69,105)
- Listed debt securities —EMEKES - (4,760,009) - (4,760,009)
- Unlisted debt securities —FEMEBES - (13,370) - (13,370)
Financial liabilities designated at TR ATFEFAER
fair value through profit or loss MemaRE
- Financial products —SREM - (3,120,012) - (3,120,012)
- Other financial instruments —Hi&@mMIT A - (36,601) - (36,601)
- Third-party interest in —HAREESN
consolidated investment funds E=FER - (773,708) - (773,708)
Derivative financial instruments fTESBMIA - (426,552) - (426,552)
(69,105)  (23,012,322) (1,973,204) (25,054,631
(69,105) (26,942,025) (6,348,523) (33,359,653)
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41. Financial risk management (continued) M. ESRBEREE®
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities EtREEREBN QA FE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) B FEGTEN T TA (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) N EERE)

Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued)

BATEFENAE : (&)

As at 31 December 2020 M2020%12H31H

Fair value measurement using

RAATSENRTEH=Z
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
R EpNGl| BAEE
m%RE BR2Y BER2Y
(B1R) (F2M) (534) @5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FTAET FTHBL BT
Non-current ERE
Debt securities in issue designated 38 5E R A FExH A
at fair value through BRA B ET
profit and loss B = (4,311,695) (5,981,835) (10,293,530)
Derivative financial instruments TESMTE - (528,184) = (528,184)
- (4,839,879) (5,981,835)  (10,821,714)
Current E
Debt securities in issue designated 35 R A FEx A
at fair value through BamBET
profit and loss BB ES - (20,424,131) (1,854,497 (22,278,628)
Financial liabilities held for trading  HEEESBEE
- Listed equity securities t MR AR % (263,722) - - (263,722)
- Listed debt securities —EMEBES - (2,956,878) - (2,956,878)
Financial liabilities designated at T HRAFEFAER
fair value through profit or loss NEeRmAaE
- Financial products —&REM - (2,968,586) - (2,968,586)
- Third-party interest in ~GAREEEM
consolidated E=TkER
investment funds - (477,074) - (477,074)
Derivative financial instruments TESMTE - (334,245) = (334,245)
(263,722)  (27,160,914) (1,854,497)  (29,279,133)
(263,722) (32,000,793 (7,836,332) (40,100,847)
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M. EFEREE 2

THEERRENAFTE
(%)
BAFEFENT TR (&)

41. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NYEBEEL &)
(@) Financial instruments in Level 1 (@ HF1ZkeHmIE

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, or broker and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market prices used for financial assets and
financial liabilities held by the Group are the current bid price
and the current ask price.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-the-counter) are
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs used in the valuation for
financial instruments are observable, the financial instruments
are included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on
observable market data, the financial instrument is included in
Level 3.
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41. Financial risk management (continued) M. EFEREE 2
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities TREENEENAFEE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) B FEFENEHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEEEHRE)
(c) Financial instruments in Level 3 (c) F3PemMTA
The following table presents the changes in Level 3 financial T % 2% 8, £20214 %2020
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2021 and F12A8318 IFEE @ B35 4
2020. BMIAME -
Level 3 financial assets FIMEMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B ZFE2021%F12831 B ILEE
Unlisted
Unlisted fixed Unlisted Unlisted
equity income fund convertible Financial
securities securities  investments Securities Product
(note 20) (note 20) (note 20) (note 20) (note 20) Total
¥Em  FEDERE FEm FLEH
N2 LON:L: ESRE  WBRRES ERER
(MfzE20) (MfzE20) (MfzE20) (MfzE20) (Mf&E20) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiER TiER TiER TiER TiER
At 1 January 2021 R202151A18 730,985 - - 195,758 7,565,850 8,492,593
Purchases BE 966,918 - - - - 966,918
Disposal e - - - - (1,749,666)  (1,749,666)
Transfer to level 1 (note1) EANE1R (H3E1) (193,820) - - - - (193,820)
Transfer from level 2 (note 2) P EINLE ) - 1,558,530 389,790 - - 1,948,320
Net gain recognised in RERBEANNZFE
profit or loss 319,714 27,976 308 27,669 251,068 626,735
At 31 December 2021 20214124318 1,823,797 1,586,506 390,098 223,427 6,067,252 10,091,080
Note 1: The unlisted equity securities investment was related to an MizEq - JELFETRAZAEITEE
investment in a pre-IPO company. The shares of the investee BB XAXLOHESE
company were linked to American Depositary Shares listed on the ANAIWEEEM - Wik
New York Stock Exchange during the year, thus the fair value of the BRElfEm I EFERNE
investment was based on quoted market price. BRABEEZT G EHH

ERGREEEM
WRR AN A TETE
REFRAE -

Note 2: The valuations of unlisted fixed income securities and unlisted Bt sE2 : ELETEEWAZS R
fund investments were previously determined by observable FEETESEENGHE
broker quotes or market price of the reference securities. As of 31 S B 3 B A] B R AR 40 1R
December 2021, the valuations were determined by unobservable BRREZEALANTES
inputs such as the credit assessment of the issuer and value of F o B E22021FE 12 A 31
collateral held. H HERETANE

EFFE KPR AR m e
BEEETAESEHAH
IRETE °
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M. EFEREE 2

41. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities tHEEREBENATE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) HRFEFENE T A E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEZER (&)
(c) Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) (c) 3BT A #E)

Level 3 financial assets EIMEMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE2020F12831H L EE

Unlisted
Unlisted convertible Unlisted
equity promissory convertible Financial
securities note Securities Product
(note 20) (note 20) (note 20) (note 20) Total
kLW FEmAA )
BAES  REAKRE  ATRERES SHEM
(Fi7£20) (H3E20) (Fft7E20) (FizE20) 25t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TR TET TR TR
At 1 January 2020 R2020%1 A1H = 4,298 - 7,104,661 7,108,959
Purchases EE 730,985 = 195,758 161,827 1,088,570
Disposal HE = (4,298) = (91,854) (96,152)
Transfer to level 1 (note) BAE1E (M) - - - (695,734) (695,734)
Net gain recognised in profit or loss HM 8 25 AU 25 % 58 - - - 1,086,950 1,086,950
At 31 December 2020 M2020%12A31R 730,985 = 195,758 7,565,850 8,492,593
Note: The unlisted equity securities investment was related to an Fff 53 EEMBREZEIEEES

investment in a pre-IPO company. The shares of the investee S = NN ==

company were linked to American Depositary Receipts listed on the
New York Stock Exchange during the year, thus the fair value of the
investment was based on quoted market price.

AIARMEE - KKE
DA B Ty A R
BOBHFRHH LT
FEFARIERH
HRENAFEHER
P& -
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41. Financial risk management (continued) M. EFEREE 2
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities EMEEREENAFE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BN FEEAEN DT A E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEEEHRE)
(c) Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) (c) ZE3memIE(E)
Level 3 financial liabilities FamEeHmas
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12831 B L EE
Debt
securities
in issue
(note 27)
21T
BkES
(Pt &E27)
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2021 R2021%F1 818 7,836,332
Redemption on maturity A B B B B B (1,749,666)
Net loss recognised in profit or loss RiB = R A BB F R 261,857

At 31 December 2021 M202156F12 H431H 6,348,523
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41. Financial risk management (continued) M. EFEREE 2
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities tRHEENEBEENATE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BN FEEAEN DT A E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NFEEEHRE)
(c) Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) (c) ZE3memIE(E)
Level 3 financial liabilities FamEeHmas
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12831 B L EE
Debt
securities
in issue
(note 27)
B 1T
(Mt 5E27)
HK$'000
AT
At 1 January 2020 7R2020%1 A1H 7,436,208
Issuance 1T 57,271
Transfer to level 2 (note) A B2 (MisE) (695,732)
Redemption on maturity 7 EI| HA B B B (48,760)
Net loss recognised in profit or loss RiB = R A BB F 58 1,087,345
At 31 December 2020 M2020F12831H 7,836,332
Note: The structured note issued was related to an investment in a pre-IPO e DR TRAEEEEAEN —
company. The shares of the investee company were linked to American RERABRER AT
Depositary Receipts listed in the New York Stock Exchange during the B o ImBERNRE G Ty HEE
year, thus the fair value of the investment was based on quoted market NIEBLELEZT DT FTHH
price. XEFLERELEHR Btz
BRENRATFEDERA®RT
& -
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to TXRE /I ER2021
the valuation of financial instruments as at 31 December F &2020F 12 A31H 14
2021 and 2020: BEHNEABEZBER2H

M=
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41. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
(c) Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

31 December 2021
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M. EFEREE 2

TRMEEREENAFE

(%)

HAFEFEHEBTAE

DNFEEH &)

() HEIMESMTA (&)
2021512A31H

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of the
technique unobservable input Average fair value to the input
ATEH2HH
fEER EARLER2Y 19 SRS
Unlisted convertible Market Approach Pricing multiples of market 10.33 10% increase or decrease in the
securities comparable companies used to underlying stock price, the fair
determine the estimated equity value would be increased by
value of the Project Company: HK$22 million or decreased by
- Price to earnings multiple HK$22 million, respectively.
I ET AR % %% BRETER At REEEN 10.33  AMRE EAKBEE10%  ATFE
msAELRARNEBREE K RIE M2 A & F T akim
-mEE 22BEET -
Unlisted fixed income Income approach Collateral value N/A N/A
securities
FEETEERAESR W% ERREE TEA TEA
Unlisted fund investments  Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
FETESRE BEFE A TER  TER
Unlisted equity securities ~ Recent transaction N/A N/A N/A
I ETRARE 5 AR5 TR A TEA
Financial products Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
SHEM BEFE Gyl &R &R
Debt securities in issue Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
BETERES BERE TR TEA TEA




296 Guotai Junan International | Annual Report 2021

Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R 3R M RE

31 December 2021
2021 12A31H

41. Financial risk management (continued) M. EFEREE 2
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities EtREEREBN QA FE
(continued) (%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) BN FEEAEN DT A E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) N EEL (&)
(c) Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) (c) ZE3memIE(E)
31 December 2020 2020512831 H
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of the
technique unobservable input Average fair value to the input
ATEH2HH
BRI EARLER2Y T BRE
Unlisted equity securities ~ Recent transaction N/A N/A N/A
FEMRAES B 5 TER TER  PER
Unlisted convertible Recent transaction N/A N/A  N/A
securities
I ETi AR 5 BAR5 TEA NEA  TER
Financial products Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
SRER BEFE TER TEA  TER
Debt securities in issue Net asset value N/A N/A N/A

BRETREEES BEERE gyl TER  TEA
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41. Financial risk management (continued) M. EFEREE 2

Capital management

The Group’s objectives for managing capital, which represent a
broader concept than the “equity” on the face of the statement of
financial position, are:

° to comply with the capital requirements under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules for its
subsidiaries which are licensed corporations;

° to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

° to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

° to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business.

The liquid capital is monitored daily by each individual licensed
subsidiary’s management based on the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules. The required information is filed
with the SFC on a timely basis. The SFC requires each licensed
corporation to maintain a level of required liquid capital which is
the higher of the floor requirement ranging from HK$0.1 million to
HK$15 million and 5% of the aggregate of its adjusted liabilities
and clients’ margin. All licensed corporations within the Group
complied with their required liquid capital during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

A subsidiary of the Company is a member of the Hong Kong
Confederation of Insurance Brokers and is required to maintain
a minimum net asset value of HK$0.1 million at all times. Two
subsidiaries of the Company are registered with the Monetary
Authority of Singapore and are required to maintain a minimum
base capital requirement of SG$250,000 and SG$1,000,000 at all
times, respectively.

The capital of the Group mainly comprises its total equity.

EXER
AEEEATENBEH LM
RRRE (S ERERM - B :

s HRAFRBEEABNKERQ
BAmME  NeFEEF AR
(MBER) RANERNRE

s REAKEFERLENESN
NEERBRRREHREER S
H 5540 IR M

s KRAKENRERER: R

s KFEREMEAER  UXF
HEBHER -

ERENBAANEEERERE S
MHE (MBEIR) A & RKEER
PFES TEHEOEESREZNS
BEf o BESHTE  SHBREEE
REMERBERNKEAENT018
EATEISEEBTHREERK
EEAZRBEREFREBCHENE
5% & F R =& - RNE E2021
FN2020F12HA31HIEFE - N&
EETHEREEENTERHER
EBESKFERE ©

AR —RKMBRBEEERRE
Rt e KB NAEMERIRER &R
KEEFEHOABE BT - AR A
MEMBRBAEFMESRERR
BREMBEMBRRD BlGFRE
E K& 7K #3 F£250,000%7 il 3% 7T K
1,000,000 N3 JT °

AEBENEATZREE DA -
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42. Offsetting financial assets and financial 42. K $i ¢ RS EH £ &

liabilities a8 fE

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the NEE B R EA S E 0] #1787 3K
Continuous Net Settlement (CNS) money obligations receivable and HERBEENEEFREIW (GFE
trade payables with HKSCC and it intends to settle on a net basis VR EE AT YD) FE AR B 22 5 FE ST FRIE -
as accounts receivable from or accounts payable to the Stock 7 5% 4R 7 e A YE R & e Uk s FE A5 B
Exchange. The net amount of CNS money obligations receivable or RFBERGEE - BEBEENFE
payable with HKSCC and the guarantee fund placed in HKSCC do FEIWEI RSk BN ERA)FRE &
not meet the criteria for offsetting in the financial statements and EHRNEEEENREBESTTF
the Group does not intend to settle the balances on a net basis. ERUBRERABHMNZLE K&

BT RIFEEEEERRER -

Gross
amount of
recognised Net
Gross financial amounts Related
amount of (assets)/ of financial  amounts not
recognised liabilities liabilities  set off in the
financial  offset in the reflected in statement
assets/ financial  the financial of financial
(liabilities) statements statements position Net
iNGIE e

ERACH EECBER  REBERR  HARME
BE/(BF) 2SR(EE)/ 25NeR MRRRE#N

“E BEAHE 8EFE EHSE RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TaR TaR FHERT FHERT TAER
As at 31 December 2021 "W2021F12A31H
Financial assets tREE
Accounts receivable arising from brokerage 442 %7 FE WA
- the Stock Exchange and other clearing  — B BT R E fth & & B
houses 6,730,363 (3,536,053) 3,194,310 - 3,194,310
Loans and advances to customers BYEFNERRBH 15,854,687 - 15854,687  (15,788,103) 66,584
Financial liabilities SRER
Accounts payable arising from brokerage & 42 £ e 5B
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing ~ — BB B Efth 45 B Fy
houses (5,748,812) 3,536,053 (2,212,759) - (2,212,759)
As at 31 December 2020 1220204124318
Financial assets SREE
Accounts receivable arising from brokerage 442 5 % fE Y708
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing  —B X Fi R A& &R
houses 6,385,553 (4,743,631) 1,641,922 - 1,641,922
Loans and advances to customers LIREMETRER 15,604,244 - 15,604,244 (15,214,093) 390,151

Financial liabilities SRAE
Accounts payable arising from brokerage ~ 4R47 £ fE I B
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing  — B P K E b & E Fy
houses (6,108930) 4743631  (1,365,299) - (1,365.299)
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42, Offsetting financial assets and financial 42. KéiSRMEEHESREA

liabilities (continued) &
The tables below reconcile the “net amount of financial assets/ TRE EXFTE R [R5 ER
(liabilities) presented in the statement of financial position”, as set SRV ERMEE(AE) FE|H
out above, to the amounts presented in the statement of financial BIEIAN R ERNCREETHERR -
position.
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Net amount of accounts receivable arising = X Ff il 5 18 48 40 £ 15
from brokerage after offsetting as stated JE WK IR F 58
above
- the Stock Exchange and other clearing — B R FT R E At A E P
houses 3,194,310 1,641,922
Accounts receivable other than the Stock B 38 By K2 E b 45 & B LA SNED
Exchange and other clearing houses JE YR IE 3,388,386 4,003,106
Less: Impairment B ORE (23,015) (6,231)
Accounts receivables in the statement of  BA A S 2% I & U 70 0B
financial position 6,559,681 5,638,797
Net amount of accounts payable arising from = 3 ffr it # 884 18 8 40 2 715
brokerage after offsetting as stated above  JE{f 7k IEF 58
— the Stock Exchange and other clearing — B R P R A M A E T
houses 2,212,759 1,365,299
Accounts payables other than the Stock Bk 22 P Je L0 45 & BT DA SN AY
Exchange and other clearing houses FES ROE 18,374,407 21,417,933
Accounts payables in the statement of B 75 AR L 2% 9 JE S 3B
financial position 20,587,166 22,783,232
The “net amounts of financial assets/(liabilities) reflected in the FYFEN [ REBRERIEDN S
financial statements”, as set out above, is included in “accounts mEE/ (AR FHEIHSBERE
receivable and accounts payable arising from brokerage — the B 765 3R R B sE18 241 [ 48 42 £ 75
Stock Exchange and other clearing houses” in notes 18 and 24 to FEWHRBELEMNFRB-BTEREE

the financial statements, respectively. M &EE T o

A
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43. Statement of financial position of the

43. AR R B B B AR OR &

Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the BRAARRA N ImE BRI BN
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: KERAT -
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH& T THETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries AN B AR 21,619,135 7,812,698
Fixed assets EEE 5,731 =
Defered taxassets  #BEWREHAE 120 1
21,626,156 7,812,699
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENFRIE - Ze Kk
other receivables H b fE U FR I8 5,956 8,821
Amount due from subsidiaries FE LB B A R IR 17,767,582 19,682,414
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEY 36,204 11,273
_Totalcurrentassets  nBAEM®E 17809742 19,702,508
Current liabilities REAaE
Lease liabilities HEEAE (5,982) -
Accrued liabilities EEtBE (1,412) (121,551)
Debt securities in issue BEETEBES (15,609,267)  (14,650,768)
— At amortised cost — FREE SH X AR (13,667,909)  (11,626,675)
- Designated at fair value through —BEZAFEFAER
profit or loss (1,941,358) (3,024,093)
Bank loans |ITE N (4,078,058) =
Amount due to a subsidiary B — R B A R FIE (99,009) =
Tax payable FEH 18 (264) (1,311)
_Total current liabilites ~~ #"BAGAA®m  (19,793,992)  (14,773,630)
_Netcurrent (liabilitiesassets =~ RE(SMN\KRESE BN =~ 4926878
Non-current liabilities eI =K
Debt securities in issue BETEBRES (3,318,121) (1,744,655)
— At amortised cost — JR 8 SR AR (3,139,345) (1,549,564)
- Designated at fair value through —ETEEAFEFABR
profit or loss (178,776) (195,091)
e B818121) (1,744,655)
Net assets EEFE 16,323,785 10,996,922
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43. Statement of financial position of the 43. AATBMBERREK =
Company (continued)

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Equity R
Share capital fi% 7 10,902,195 10,899,780
Currency translation reserve BN G 187 187
Share-based compensation reserve VAR A9 7 05t 357 B 1o £ 27,429 41,606
— Share option reserve (note) — IR RE R (B 5E) 27,429 32,521
— Share award reserve (note) — &1 SE B 4 (BT =) - 9,085
Shares held under the share award f&H iRENET BB T A MR D
scheme (note) (Fe&E) - (30,672)
Retained profits (note) R A (B 5E) 5,393,974 86,021
Total equity ERAE 16,323,785 10,996,922
Dr. YIM Fung Ms. QI Haiying
EEE L PigEL L
Director Director

EF EFE
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43. Statement of financial position of the 43. XA TMBERREK =
Company (continued)

Note: B E -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KARIFEEREWT :
Share held
under
Currency Share Share the share
translation option award award Retained
reserve reserve reserve scheme profits Total
R4 =B
BgRg fE IR IR 45 % B sHEIET
& 1) "E BENRG REBF st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET TERT TET TET FET FTET

At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 187 30,513 25,576 (73,058) 273,461 256,679
Total comprehensive income FREEW LR

for the year - - - - 356,046 356,046
Shares repurchased (note 30) B8 ER% (M ##30) - - - - (19,903) (19,903)
Recognition of equity-settled BRI EREEUARD B

share-based payments LT 6 49 3K (P 5581 )2.32)

(notes 31 and 32) - 6,239 19,223 - - 25,462
Vesting of shares for the share award {3 &) 51 &1 57 & I% 1

scheme (notes 32 and 33) (Hi#£32%33) - - (35,714) 42,386 (9,469) (2,797)
Shares issued upon exercise of share MR ERT B TR IEETE

options under the share option /TR (B &E31)

scheme (note 31) - (983) - - - (983)
Transfer of share option reserve upon i B 4 5% 2% M &5 3 B8 A% 4

the forfeiture of share options e - (3,248) - - 3,248 -
Final dividend paid for 2019 £ 420195 K HAR &

(note 10) (Fi3£10) = - - - (191,628)  (191,628)
Interim dividend paid for 2020 420204  HfR B

(note 10) (HzE10) - - - - (325,734)  (325,734)
At 31 December 2020 and 12020512 A31 8 &

1 January 2021 202141 A1H 187 32,521 9,085 (30,672) 86,021 97,142
Total comprehensive income FRE2ENELE

for the year - - - - 6,279,355 6,279,355
Recognition of equity-settled TR A 25 45 B AR 15

share-based payments BEBROFR

(notes 31 and 32) (Bt #£31%32) - 1,462 6,314 - = 7,776
Vesting of shares for the share award & {5 52 ) =1 £ 57 & I% 1

scheme (notes 32 and 33) (Hi#£32%33) - - (15,399) 16,879 (7,484) (6,004)
Shares issued upon exercise of share IR ERT B TR IEETE

options under the share option /TR (B &E31)

scheme (note 31) - (733) - - - (733)
Transfer of share option reserve upon i B 4 55 2% M &5 3 B8 A% 4

the forfeiture of share options e - (5,821) - - 5,821 -
Disposal of shares held in share award € & SR BT 21 BT a5 AR

scheme - - - 13,793 - 13,793
Final dividend paid for 2020 FF2020F KEAR B

(note 10) (HzE10) - - - - (489,670)  (489,670)
Interim dividend paid for 2021 F {20217 E A% B

(note 10) (Fi3£10) = - - - (480,069)  (480,069)

At 31 December 2021 M2021612A31H 187 27,429 - - 5,393,974 5,421,590
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44, Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, and a new standard, HKFRS
17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 3, 1 January 2022
Reference to the conceptual framework
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, 1 January 2022

plant and equipment: Proceeds before intended use

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous contracts — 1 January 2022
cost of fulfilling a contract

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2022
2018-2020 cycle
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as 1 January 2022

current or non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS 1 January 2022
Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of accounting policies

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting 1 January 2022
estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax 1 January 2022

related to assets and liabilities arising
from a single transaction

The group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements
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AFMBERE

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

RESULTS

AEBBERFTE
EHMEEHINAT

- 4=

MXENREER

=]
For the year ended 31 December
BE12B31ALEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20215 2020F 2019 20185 20175
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL AL THL T FEL
Revenue and other income WARE K& 3,971,694 4878400 4,250,171 3,020,822 3,134,792
Profit before tax BRE LA 1,287,646 1,814,679 1,005,443 983,272 1,559,112
Profit for the year FERRA 1,103,278 1,567,772 902,559 840,174 1,334,491
Profit attributable to ordinary equity AAREARBRR
holders of the Company iyl 1,004,743 1,562,587 895,303 796,835 1,228,174
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
As at 31 December
M2A31R

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
2021% 20204 2019% 2018% 20175
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT THT THTL THT
Loans and advances to customers LTEPHERREH 15,854,687 15604244 117150902 12,275,375 15,583,573

Financial assets at fair value through BATETABRN
profit or loss CREE 23,253,517 31,507,060 20,881,154 15,019,421 8,924,271
Financial products SHER 31,599,309 39,512,089 38,110,044 32,842,048 28,246,491
Receivable from reverse repurchase agreements % [ B 5 3 fE W 5008 4443729 3022800 2,247,913 3,109,006 1,513,177
Derivative financial instruments fTEERIE 619,230 1,261,354 155,652 76,832 110,461
Cash and cash equivalents ReLBReEED 5277,874 5508779 7,150,847 4105672 2,212,502
Client trust bank balances REERARTEHR 17,804,841 18,707,026 11,181,982 14,319,985 12,348,012
Other current assets AREEE 6,711,577 5936,096 4,421,056 5675775 4,475,149
Other non-current assets EhERGEE 723,329 661,303 873,607 610,177 546,748
Total assets BESRE 106,288,093 121,720,741 96,738,157 88,034,291 73,960,384
Bank borrowings RITIER (5,375,203  (9,739,397)  (11,249,881)  (9,441,083)  (13,781,721)
Debt securities in issue BETERER (45,491,783)  (47,919,872)  (33,499,582)  (25999,272)  (16,363,891)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss AT E:F ABRHMEHAR (8,772,805  (6,666,260)  (6,810,580)  (8,731,117)  (9,008,776)
Obligations under repurchase agreements B HENER (9,255,723)  (17,396,163)  (18,199,226)  (13,156,517)  (6,244,957)
Derivative financial instruments fTEemIA (532,961) (862,429) (149,851) (23,620) (27,722)
Other liabilities A EE (21,422,679)  (23,897,453)  (15,417,250)  (19,488,400)  (17,541,891)
Non-controlling interests FEfR R (129,578) (121,048) (115,869) (11,567) (36,546)
Shareholders' fund &S 15,307,361 15,118,119 11295924 11,182,715 10,954,880
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